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PART |
Iltem 1. Business.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General Description

We design, develop, manufacture, market innovative patented safety medical pragitatthe healthcare industry.

Our VanishPoifft safety needle piatd (consisting of 1cc tuberculin, insulin, ankkmy antigen VanishPoiftsyringes; 3cc, 5¢
and 10cc VanishPoirft syringes; the VanishP8int dloallection tube holder; autodisable syringe dralYanishPoinf IV safety cathete
utilize a unigue friction ring mechanism patentgdltnomas J. Shaw, our Founder, President, and Ekiefutive Officer. VanishPoirft safety
needle products are designed specifically to prieweedlestick injuries and to prevent reuse. Thtidn ring mechanism permits the automi
retraction of the syringe needle into the barrekhed syringe, directly from the patient, after detly of the medication is completed. -
VanishPoint® blood collection tube holder utilizes the same na@itm to retract the needle after blood has beawrdifrom the patier
Closure of an attached end cap of the blood catledtuibe holder causes the needle to retract tiréctm the patient into the closed blc
collection tube holder. The IV catheter also opesatith a friction ring mechanism whereby the neésliretracted after insertion of the catr
into the patient. We also have a Patient Safgyringe which reduces the risk of infection rasgltfrom IV contamination that will likely t
introduced into the market this year.

Advantages of our VanishPoitit safety needle products include protection from tesgitk injuries, prevention of crc
contamination through reuse, and reduction of diap@nd other associated costs. Federal regulation requires the use of safe ne
devices. We have an exclusive license from Thoma&hdw, our President and Chief Executive Offifer,the patent rights for our saf
needle products which is in the process of beingratad to cover additional patents and products.

We and Thomas J. Shaw entered anfechnology License Agreement dated effectivefahe 23rd day of June 1995, wher
Mr. Shaw granted us a worldwide exclusive licersentanufacture, market, sell, and distribute ‘Lieh$roducts’ and ‘Improvementshtil
the expiration of the last ‘Licensed Patents’ uslegoner terminated under certain conditions withigint to sublicense. ‘Licensed Produgts’
‘Improvements’, and ‘Licensed Patentse all terms that are extensively defined in teelhology License Agreement. In exchange, we [
$500,000 initial licensing fee and a five percenytalty on gross sales after returns of ‘LicensentiBets’. Mr. Shaw entered into an agreen
whereby Ms. Suzanne August, his former spousentilez] to $100,000 per quarter payable out of eyalties. See ‘Patents, Trademar!
Licenses, and Proprietary Rightdor a more detailed discussion. The Technologyeh#e Agreement is in the process of being amera
cover additional patents and products.

Our goal is to become a leading/gter of safety medical products.

Our Development Over the Last Year

Our products have been and contindee distributed nationally through numerousriistors. However, we have been blocked {
access to the market by exclusive marketing prestengaged in by Becton Dickinson and Company ()Biffich dominates our market. \
initiated a lawsuit in 2007 against BD. The suifas patent infringement, antitrust practices, &de advertising.

We continue to attempt to gain ascd® the market through our sales efforts, ouovative technology, introduction of new prodt
and, when necessary, litigation. We are focusimgnethods of upgrading our manufacturing capabdityg efficiency in order to enable u:
offer our technology at a reduced price. We beliewecurrent capitalization provides the resoumesessary to implement these change:
improve our manufacturing capacity and efficierttygreby reducing our unit cost.

We are developing new safety mddioaducts, some of which do not utilize our pagehtetraction technology. The Patient Safe
syringe is one such product. This product redtivesisk of infection resulting from IV contaminati.
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Financial Information

Please see the financial statemiaritsm 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Datéor information about our revenues,
profits, and losses for the last three years, atal &ssets for the last two years.

Principal Products

Our products with Notice of SubsiainEquivalence to the U.S. Food and Drug Admiaison (“FDA”) and which are currently sc
include the 1cc tuberculin, insulin, and an autabis syringe allergy antigen VanishPoft  syringgsg, 5cc, and 10cc VanishPoifit
syringes; the VanishPoift  blood collection tulmédir; the VanishPoirft IV safety catheter; andhaals diameter tube adapteWe als:
received a Notice of Substantial Equivalence farRatient Safé" syringe, which reduces the risk of infection résgl from IV contaminatior
We expect to have the Patient Sdfesyringe in the market in 2008. From 1999 to 2864 in 2003 ECRI (formerly known as the Emergt
Care Research Institute), a recognized authoritgvimluating medical devices, awarded the VanistPoigsyringe and blood collection tu
holder its highest possible rating. Syringe sateaprised 98.6%, 98.8%, and 98.0% of revenues i15,28006, and 2007.

Our products (without Notice of Stdmtial Equivalence to the FDA), which are curyeit development, include a dental syring
butterfly 1V, and an autodisable syringe.

Principal Markets

Our products are sold to and usethdnlthcare providers primarily in the United 8&afwith 18.4% of revenues in 2007 genel
from sales outside the United States) which inclidde are not limited to, acute care hospitalgratite care facilities, doctorsffices, clinics
emergency centers, surgical centers, convalesampithls, Veterans Administration facilities, maliy organizations, public health faciliti
and prisons.

The syringe and needle device ntackatinues to be a market in transition. The reatir the products comprising the marke
slowly changing from standard to safety devices. The ingp#dr the change to safety devices is the riskithaarried with each needlest
injury which includes the transmission of over 208dalborne pathogens, including the human immuneggfcy virus (“HIV,” which cause
AIDS), hepatitis B, and hepatitis C. Because of dbeupational and public health hazards posed byaional disposable syringes, pu
health policy makers, domestic organizations andegument agencies have been involved in the eftodet more effective safety nee
products to healthcare workers. Federal legislati@s signed into law on November 6, 2000, by foriegsident William Clinton. Th
legislation, which became effective for most statesApril 12, 2001, now requires safety needle potsl be used for the vast majority
procedures. However, even with this requirememyrhospitals are neglecting to follow the law imtted to protect healthcare workers.

Methods of Marketing and Distribution

Under the current supply chain eysin the U.S. acute care market, the vast majofityecisions relating to the contracting for
purchasing of medical supplies are made by theesgmtatives of group purchasing organizations (“€P@ther than the endsers of th
product (nurses, doctors, and testing personnbh.GPOs and manufacturers often enter into tengexclusive contracts which can prot
entry in the marketplace by competitors.

We distribute our products throughthe U.S. and its territories through generaé land specialty distributors. We also uti
international distributors. We have developed donat direct marketing network in order to market @roducts to health care customers
their purchaser representatives. Our marketers walkeon target markets that are users of thesgupts. Our marketers make contact wit
of the departments that affect the decisioaking process for safety products, including thecpasing agents. They call on acute care
alternate care sites and speak directly with tloésten-makers of these facilities. We employ trdine
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clinicians, including registered nurses and/or roaldiechnologists that educate healthcare proviaedshealthcare workers on the use of s
devices through exhibits at related tradeshowspadications of relevant articles in trade jourrafsl magazines. These nurses provide cli
support to customers. In addition to marketing praducts, the network demonstrates the safety astl effectiveness of the VanishPoft
automated retraction products to customers.

In the needle and syringe markwed, harket share leader, BD, has utilized, amongrdtiings, longerm exclusive contracts whi
have restricted our entry into the market.

We have numerous agreements wigfardrations for the distribution of our productsfareign markets. Sales to these mai
increased from 12.2% to 18.4% of revenues in 20@62007, respectively. The total population of VEestEurope exceeds 310 million,
the recognition for the urgency of safe needle evin parts of Europe has followed the UnitedeStamodel. In France, England, Germ.
and Italy, organized healthcare worker unions Haken action to force hospitals and government eigerio place safety as a priority. Reg
within Asia and Africa are also recognizing the shdéer our products. In the past, we were giveraamard (from PATH) to supply syringes
various African countries. Awards increased sigaifitly from 2004 to 2007. However, currently #hés no funding for this program. We
hopeful that funding will be re-established. If ae will again also distribute our products unttes program.

Key components of our strategynoréase our market share are to: (a) focus on metbbupgrading our manufacturing capab
and efficiency in order to enable us to offer praduat a reduced price and improved profit marg{bscontinue marketing emphasis in
U.S.; (c) continue to add Veterans Administratiaailities, health departments, emergency medig@icas, federal prisons, lortgrm care ar
home healthcare facilities as customers; (d) edubslthcare providers, insurers, healthcare wsrkgovernment agencies, governn
officials, and the general public on the reductidrrisk and the cost effectiveness afforded by pnaducts; (e) supply product through Gl
and Integrated Delivery Networks where possibleg@hsider possibilities for future licensing agremts and joint venture agreements fol
manufacture and distribution of safety productthim United States and abroad; (g) introduce newymts where market access is possible
(h) continue to increase international sales.

Status of New Products

We have patented and are in thegqe® of developing additional safety medical pré&gluSuch products include a Yzcc ins
syringe, and a dental syringe for which we haveetigped early stage prototypes. We have shippetketinguantities of the autodisable syri
and IV catheters. We have also developed a Pefiafe™ syringe which reduces the risk of infection resgltfrom IV contamination. O
limited access to the market has slowed the inttidi of these products into the market.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

We purchase most of our product ponents from single suppliers, including needleeadres and packaging materials. There
multiple sources of these materials. We own thedsi¢hat are used to manufacture the plastic commsred our products. Our suppli
include Magor Mold, Inc., Helix Medical (formerlyPEC),Multivac, Inc., Exacto Spring Corporation, Sterigexy and ISPG. Some suppli
have increased their prices generally due to tbeease in costs of petroleum products.

Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, and Proprietarytfigh

We and Thomas J. Shaw entered anf@chnology License Agreement dated effectivefate 23rd day of June, 1995, wher
Mr. Shaw granted us “... a worldwide exclusive licermnd right under the ‘Licensed Patents’ and ‘Imfation’, to manufacture, market, <
and distribute ‘Licensed Products’ and ‘Improvenséntithout right to sublicense and subject to suchexatusive rights as may be posse:
by the Federal Government...”. ‘Licensed Patentsifdimation’, ‘Licensed Products’, and ‘Improveméndse all defined extensively in 1
Technology License Agreement. We may enter into




sublicensing arrangements with Mr. Shaw’s writt@praval of the terms and conditions of the licegsigreement. The ‘Licensed Products’
include all retractable syringes and retractahlé fsampling devices and components thereof, adsent unassembled, which comprise
invention described in ‘Licensed Patents’, and iowpments thereof including any and all ‘Produetsiich employ the inventive conct
disclosed or claimed in the ‘Licensed PatenfBhe Technology License Agreement is in the proadsseing amended to cover additic
patents and products.

In exchange, we negotiated a livengee and agreed to pay a five percent royaltgmmss sales after returns. The license termi
upon expiration of the last licensed patents unkssner terminated under certain circumstances. liteasing fees have been paic
accordance with this agreement with the exceptfidil¢b00,000 in fees which were waived by Mr. Skeand his former wife.

We have the right and obligationdiotain protection of the invention, including peostion of patent properties. The lice
unilaterally changes to a nonexclusive licensehindvent of a hostile takeover. Also, if Mr. Shawadluntarily loses control of the Compa
the license becomes a nonexclusive license arghatd information.

We seek foreign patent protectiomtigh the Patent Cooperation Treaty and have #ifgulications for regional and national pa
protection in selective countries where we belitheVanishPoin® syringe can be utilized most.

We hold numerous U.S. patents edldadb our automated retraction technology, inclgdiatents for IV safety catheters, wingec
sets, syringes, dental syringes, and blood cotledtibe holders. In addition, we have multiple agtions for patents currently pending.
principal syringe patent in the U.S., as well asfdreign counterpart, will expire in May 2015. Wave also registered the following tr
names and trademarks: VanishPdint , VanishPbilttgos, RT with a circle mark, the Spiral Logo usegackaging our products, and
color coded spots on the ends of our syringes. W lzave trademark protection for the phrase “ThesvN6tandard for SafetyWe havi
applied for a trademark for the Patient Sdfe  g@in

We have a patent infringement claending against BD. There are also two pateningément claims pending against us as we
a declaratory judgment action seeking a deterntnaif non-infringement. These claims are detaitelem 3. Legal Proceedings We hav
decided, on the advice of patent counsel, not tolfase patent insurance because it would requapgpiiopriate disclosure of information the
currently proprietary and confidential.

We currently obtain roughly 73.1%oaar finished products through Double Dove, a @k manufacturer. We believe we ci
make up any longerm disruption in these supplies by utilizing mofehe capacity at the Little EIm facility, excefpr 5¢cc and 10cc syring
which comprised about 7.6% of our 2007 revenues.

We have a Licensing Agreement with Baiyin Tum&/edical Device Co., Ltd. (“BTMD"Wwhich expires on May 13, 2008. Royal
that were expected in 2007 were not received dukedime needed to build the factory, assemblyipgrient, and the related infrastructur
well as the need of BTMD to meet the requisite €@eengovernment requirements. The facility has loeempleted and BTMD is in the proc
of meeting Chinese government requirements. Aljhauccessful renegotiation and/or extension afdlgreement cannot be assumed, we
continue to expect royalty payments although weusr@ble to predict the date we will begin to reeesuch royalties. Royalties should be
once Chinese government requirements are met aMDB3 able to produce and sell products.

Seasonal Effect on Business

We have generally experienced higlyenge sales during the last half of the yeaictvlwe believe is due to flu season.
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Working Capital Practices

Cash and cash equivalents includesiricted cash and investments with original mitis of three months or less.

We record trade receivables whemmae is recognized. No product has been consignmedstomers. Our allowance for douk
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that arétéflduof collection are included in t
allowance. An additional allowance has been eistaddl based on a percentage of receivables outstan@hese provisions are reviewet
determine the adequacy of the allowance for doulstfgounts. Trade receivables are charged off where is certainty as to their be
uncollectible. Trade receivables are considerdidgleent when payment has not been made withinraonterms.

Inventories are valued at the lowkcost or market, with cost being determined gsinstandard cost method, which approxin
average cost. A reserve is established for anyssxgeobsolete inventories.

Receivables are established foeffgldand state taxes where we have determined everditled to a refund for overpayment:
estimated taxes or loss carry backs.

Accounts payable and other shemta liabilities include amounts that we believe ave an obligation for at the end of year. T
included charges for goods or services received0idi7 but not billed to us at the end of the yeldralso included estimates of poten
liabilities such as rebates and other fees.

Our domestic return policy is satth in our standard Distribution Agreement, a copwhich was attached as exhibit no. 6.3 tc
Form 10SB filed on June 23, 2000. This policy providestta customer may return incorrect shipments witlfirdays following arrival at tl
distributor’s facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorization code from us and affix¢bde to the returned product.
will not accept returned goods without a returnedds authorization number. We may refund the ecostts money or replace the product.

Our international contracts do piatvide for any returns.

Our return policy also providesttaacustomer may return product that is overstock@derstocking returns are limited to two tir
in each 12 month period up to one percent of thigtar’s total purchase of products for the prior 12 mgrghiod upon the following terms:
an “overstocked” product is that portion of distribr’'s inventory of the product which exceeds disttor's sales volume for the product dul
the preceding four months; ii) distributor must have taken delivery of the product which is ovarked during the preceding four months
overstocked product held by distributor in excefsl® months from the date of original invoice wilbt be eligible for return; iv) tt
overstocked product must be returned to us in aleable case cartons which are unopened and untedhpeth no broken or reaped seals
v) distributor will be granted a credit which mag bsed only to purchase other products from uscrbeit to be in the amount of the invc
price of the returned products less a 10% restgckire which will be assessed against distribst@ibsequent purchase of product
distributor must obtain an authorization code froor distribution department and affix the codehe teturned product; and vii) distribu
shall bear the cost of shipping the returned prtdte us. All product overstocks and returns arejext to inspection and acceptance
manufacturer.

Dependence on Major Customers

Three distributors accounted foraggregate of 36.5% of our revenue in 2007. We haweerous other distributors that sell
products in the U.S. and internationally.

Backlog Orders

Order backlog is not material to business inasmuch as orders for our productsrgiynere received and filled on a current b
except for items temporarily out of stock.




Competitive Conditions

We believe our products continuebéothe most effective safety devices in todayiarket. Our syringe products include pas
safety activation, require less disposal space,aaadctivated while in the patient. We havedhrejor competitors: BD, Tyco Internatio
Ltd.(“Tyco"), and Terumo Medical Corp.(“Terumo”).

Founded in 1897, BD is headquadéneNew Jersey. BD’s safety-engineered devicessateounted for approximately 22% of BD’
total 2007 sales. BD currently manufactures theetghbk ™ , a syringe that utilizes a tubular plastic sheh#t must be manually slid over
needle after an injection, and the SafetyGlidea needle which utilizes a hinged lever to cower ieedle tip. BD also manufactures a si
blood collection and hypodermic needle that utdiiee Eclips€” needle cover. BD also manufactures a 3cc andetcacting needle prodt
based on a license agreement with Specialized iH@atiducts International, Inc. (formerly the Medsizm Corporation). The Integra, ¢
retractable syringe offered by BD, does not offefulé product line and cannot be used with highlgcous medication due to leakage
described on their labels). The introduction okthyringe has had little impact on our sales duB@s historic market dominance. B®’
“Vacutainer® ” blood collection products are commonsed as industry jargon to refer to blood coitecproducts in general.

Sherwood Medical Co. (“Sherwoodijas acquired by Tyco, a company headquartered iméga. Sherwood manufactures
Monoject® , a safety syringe that utilizes a shesathilar to the BD SafetyLoR" syringe. Sherwood also manufactures the Magebdty
syringe, a product similar to the BD SafetyGlitie

Founded in 1974, Terumo was th& fiompany to sell disposable syringes in Japadayderumo manufactures standard syri
and blood collection tube holders, operates inténally, and has sales in some 120 countries.

Both BD’s SafetyLoR  and SherwoolMlsnoject® safety syringes require the use of two hands awerakextra steps to activ:
the tubular plastic shield which must be slid ancked into place to protect the needle. These mtsdnust be removed from the patier
order for the safety mechanism to be activatedcolntrast, use of the VanishPoftsyringe is identical to that of a standard syringél the
end of an injection, when the automated retracti@thanism retracts the needle directly from thépasafely into the barrel of the syrin
This allows both hands to remain safely out of Harmay. BD’s Integra™ operates in a similar way but may have to be resddvom thi
patient in order to have retraction of the needieuo.

BD and Sherwood have controllingsUmarket share; greater financial resources; taagd more established sales, marketinc
distribution organizations; and greater marketuefice, including the lontgrm and/or exclusive contracts with GPOs descrieadier. Th
current conditions have restricted competitiontia heedle and syringe market. BD may be able tatssesources to improve its prodt
through research or acquisitions or develop newlyxts, which may compete more effectively with products.

We continue to attempt to gain access to the mahketigh our sales efforts, our innovative techggldntroduction of new produc
and, when necessary, litigation. We are focusingnethods of upgrading our manufacturing capabéitg efficiency in order to enable us
compete by offering our technology at a reducedepriVe believe our current capitalization provitles resources necessary to impler
these changes and improve our manufacturing cgpad efficiency, thereby reducing our unit cost.

Our competitive strengths inclubattthe VanishPoirft syringe is one of four syringes previously giver tlighest possible rati
by ECRI. Our blood collection tube holder is one of only teafety products previously given the highest gmesiating. Our safety nee:
products also have an advantage over non-retrastifegy needles because minimal training and clat@eractitionershormal routines a
required. Use of our products also prohibits unfoate and improper reuse. Several factors coulcenmlly and beneficially affect tl
marketability of our products. Demand could be éased by existing legislation and other legislativel investigativeefforts. Outsourcin
arrangements such as our purchases from Double Bexeincreased our manufacturing capacity witkelitr no capital outlay and provid
competitive cost. Licensing




agreements such as the one with BTMD (which we epebe renegotiated and/or extended prior teeitsination in May 2008) could provi
entry into new markets and generate additionalmegeA discussion of the BTMD agreement can be domritem 1. Patents, Trademarl
Licenses, and Proprietary Rigl#sd repeated ihtem 7. OVERVIEW and_Internal Sources of Liquidity

Our competitive weaknesses inclodecurrent lack of market share because two egtblished companies control most of the
market. Our competitive position is also weakengdhle method that providers use for making purcigadiecisions and the fact that our in
price per unit for our safety needle products maynigher. However, our price per unit is competitor even lower than the competition ¢
all the costs incurred during the life cycle ofyaisge are considered. Such life cycle costs inelddposal costs, testing and treatment cos
needlestick injuries, and treatment for contradfleésses through needlestick injuries. Demandofar products could decrease due to the
of the Integrd” , a retractable syringe manufactimgd®D, which dominates the market. Although, &ie] the introduction of the Integfa
has not noticeably impacted our sales, BD ha-damwange of product offerings and more capitabueses.

Research and Development

We spent $934,209; $958,798; an®&l,143 in fiscal 2005, 2006, and 2007 respectiveh research and development. Cos
2007 were primarily for validation testing and diexgnent work for the safety catheter as well ashéigcompensation costsOur ongoiny
research and development activities are perfornyeanbinternal research and development staff. Tdd@m of engineers is developing prot
improvements for current and future automated nmashiProducts currently in development include a ¥sulin syringe, a Patient Safe
syringe, an IV catheter and a dental syrinQar limited access to the market has slowed theduoction of these products into the mai
Possible future products include needle medicalcdsvto which the automated retraction mechanismbesaapplied as well as other sa
medical devices.

Environmental Compliance

We believe that we do not incur enial costs in connection with compliance with eommental laws. We are considere
Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator bessawe generate less than 100 kilograms (220 Idshamardous waste per mor
Therefore, we are exempt from the reporting requéets set forth by the Texas Commission on Enviemal Quality. The waste that
generated at our facility is primarily made up lainimable liquids and paimélated waste and is sent for fuel blending by tgaféeen. Thi
fuel blending process completely destroys our wastksatisfies our “cradle-to-grave” responsibility

Other nonhazardous production wastkides clean polypropylene regrind that is soidrecycling. We also grind dirty plasti
syringes, and needles for disposal by Waste ManagerAll other nonhazardous waste produced is densd municipal solid waste and ¢
to a sanitary landfill by Waste Management.

We also produce small amounts glilted biohazardous waste from contaminated slargdaboratory wastes. This waste is
for incineration by Stericycle.

Employees

As of March 1, 2008, we had 138-fuhe employees, five patime employees, and six independently contractedwtants. Of tr
138 fulltime employees, seven persons were engaged inrchsaad development activities, 56 persons werag@eg in manufacturing a
engineering, 17 persons were engaged in qualityrasse and regulatory affairs, 36 persons weregawa sales and marketing, 20 per:
were engaged in general and administrative funsfi@md two persons in facilities. No employees @eered by collective bargaini
agreements. We are dependent upon a number of eraeag and technical personnel, and the loss oficesnof one or more of su
employees could have a material adverse effecso@ur President and Chief Executive Officer, ThemaShaw, has an
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employment contract with an initial term that endmd September 2002 that contains an automatic antncious renewal provision 1
consecutive two-year periods.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

We have no loriiyed assets in foreign countries. Shipments terimtional customers generally require a prepayrigmer by wir
transfer or an irrevocable confirmed letter of dre®Ve do extend credit to international customamssome occasions depending upon ce
criteria, including, but not limited to, the credibrthiness of the customer, the stability of tlemry, banking restrictions, and the size of
order. All transactions are in U.S. currency. Wdlaute sales to countries based on the destimatichipment.

2007 2006 2005
Domestic sale $ 21,461,71 $ 22,240,34 $ 22,310,15I
International sale 4,828,001 3,084,17. 1,924,86¢
Total sales $ 26,289,72I $ 25,324,51! $ 24,235,011
Long-lived asset:
Domestic $ 11,483,42: $ 12,212,141 $ 11,925,971
Foreign $ — $ — $ —

Government Funding of Research and Right to License

Thomas J. Shaw developed his initeasion of a safety syringe with the aid of geby the National Institute of Drug Abuse
subsidiary of the National Institutes of Health. &sesult, the federal government has the righgretthe public interest justifies it, to dispe
the technology to multiple manufacturers so thatghfety syringe can be made widely available ¢optiblic. However, the funding was o
used to develop and patent the earlier syringegdess of 1991. That syringe was a bulkier, lessctiffe, and more expensive version of
current VanishPoin® product. Accordingly and on the advice of counsééhnagement believes that the risk of the governndemtandin
manufacture of this alternative product is minimal.

Available Information

Our internet address is www.van@hpcom. We make our filings with the U.S. Securities &ahange Commission (the “SEC”
available via our website. Upon request, we welldgleased to deliver written copies of our filidgee of charge.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

You should carefully consider tioidwing material risks facing us. If any of thesgks occur, our business, results of operatio
financial condition could be materially affected.

We Compete in a Monopolistic Marketplace

We operate in an environment teataminated by the major syringe manufacturer énuhS., BD. We believe that its monopoli
business practices continue despite its paying @9 $nillion to settle a lawsuit for anticompetitipeactices, business disparagement,
tortious interference. Although we made limitedgress in some areas, such as the alternate cdii@tamational markets, our volumes
not as high as they should be given the natureqaradity of our product, and the federal and statslation requiring use of safe nee¢
devices.

Our Cash Position Is Decreasing and Legal Expefise$ncreasing

Due to our operating losses anderily increasing legal fees, our cash positionlided $6.3 million in 2007. The litigation w
continue to require a significant amount of castil gine issues are resolved. Our lawsuit agairi3ti® currently scheduled for trial in Mai
2009. After conclusion of the trial, legal expenhsee expected to decrease significantly.
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In the event we continue to have only limited markecess and the cash provided by the litigatidtleseents and generated fr
operations becomes insufficient and royalties frBHMD are not forthcoming, we would take cost cujtimeasures to reduce c
requirements. Such measures could result in reztuofi units being produced, reduction of workfoneguction of salaries of officers and of
nonhourly employees, and deferral of royalty paytsen

We Have Generally Been Unable to Gain SufficientidaAccess to Achieve Profitable Operations

Historically, we have incurred net operating lossesuding all fiscal quarters of 2007. We may enrpnce operating losses in
future. If we are unable to gain sufficient marketess and market share, we may be unable to gerttirfinance research and developme
well as support operations and expansion of praoict

We Are Dependent On Our Aging Patent Protection

Our main competitive strength is our technologye Wfe dependent on our patent rights, and if otenpaights are invalidated
circumvented, our business would be adversely eftecPatent protection is considered, in the agges to be of material importance in
marketing of products in the United States and ostmajor foreign markets. Patents covering prtdtitat we have introduced normi
provide market exclusivity, which is important thie successful marketing and sale of our products.

As our technology ages (and the associated pafergXpires), our competitive position in the magtace will weaken. The initi
patents protecting our revolutionary spring actsyminge will expire beginning in May 2015. Patdifée may be extended, not through
original patents, but through related improvemeriisentually, however, our patent protection magrdase and we will be vulnerable to o
competitors utilizing our technology.

Our Patents Are Subject to Litigation

We are currently involved in patent disputes witlh,BOccupational and Medical Innovations Limited #0) and MedSal
Technologies LLC (“MedSafe”). Sdeem 3 Legal Proceedingselow. Patent litigation and challenges involvimgr patents are costly €
unpredictable and may deprive us of market exclysior a patented product or, in some cases, tpady patents may prevent us fi
marketing and selling a product in a particulargraphic area.

We Are Vulnerable to New Technologies

Because we have a narrow focus on particular ptdéwees and technology (currently predominantlyaetable needle products),
are vulnerable to the development of superior cdinggroducts and to changes in technology whiakicceliminate or reduce the need for
products. If a superior technology is created,dimand for our products could greatly diminish.

Our Competitors Have Greater Resources

The three leading manufacturers of hypodermic gg@snand blood collection products are BD with aleweide market share in t
safety syringe market of approximately 50%, Shemvaith approximately 26%, and Terumo with a maredre of approximately 10%. .
three companies offer both standard syringes afehat one safety syringe alternative. BD alsersff retractable syringe. BD and Sherv
have greater financial resources, larger and mstabbshed sales and marketing and distributiommizations, and greater market influe
including longterm contracts with GPOs. These competitors magtibe to use these resources to improve their jptedbrough research ¢
acquisitions or develop new products, which may pet® more effectively with our products.

If our competitors choose to use their resourcesréate products superior to ours, we may be un@absell our products and ¢
ability to continue operations would be weakened.




The Majority of Our International Sales Are Filleding One Supplier

Most international sales are filled by productioani Double Dove. In the event that we were unablpurchase such product fr
Double Dove, we would need to find an alternatepsiap for the 5cc and 10cc syringes and increaseedtic production for 1cc and
syringes to avoid a disruption in supply. Currendgproximately 73.1% of our production is providgdDouble Dove.

Fluctuations in Supplies of Inventory Could Tempiydncrease Costs

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of rawteréls and inventory and the ability to maintaéivdrable supplier arrangements
relationships could result in the need to manufactll (as opposed to 26.9%) of the products inlt& This could temporarily increase |
costs as we ramp up domestic production.

We Are Controlled by Two Shareholders

Thomas J. Shaw, our President and a Directorahille. Salerno, one of our consultants, and Ms.Swezéugust own 35.3%, 10.2
and 11.8%, respectively, of the outstanding Comi@tmtk as of March 1, 2008. The shares held byAdgust are controlled by Mr. Sh
pursuant to a Voting Agreement, which terminatesnugale of all the shares for value or if termidabg both parties in writing. Mr. Shaw ¢
Ms. Salerno will, therefore, have the ability toedit our operations and financial affairs and tassantially influence the election of member
our Board of Directors. The interests of thesespes may not always coincide with our interestsherinterests of other stockholders. -
concentration of ownership, for example, may hawe effect of delaying, deferring or preventing armde in control, impeding a merg
consolidation, takeover or other business comlonaitivolving us or discouraging a potential acquirem making a tender offer or otherw
attempting to obtain control of us, which in turoutd materially adversely affect the market priéel® Common Stock. Of the 23,800,
shares of Common Stock outstanding as of Marci®Q820fficers and Directors own 10,143,064 of thares.

We Have Limited Access to the Capital Markets

The volume of trading in our Common Stock on theetican Stock Exchange (the “AMEXT$ low. Accordingly, it is unclear
there is any significant market for our sharesisThay reduce our ability to raise cash throughlipudy private offerings in the future.

Our Stock Price Sometimes Decreases Below AMEXrgsBtandards

Our share price fluctuates and sometimes fallsvbeld.00 which is required for listing on the AMEXder its alternative listir
standards. The AMEX may initiate delisting procesd in its discretion. Delisting of our sharesudogreatly affect the liquidity of our sha
and would reduce our ability to raise funds frora #ale of equity in the future. However, we badisuch delisting application to be unlike
Furthermore, in the event that we receive a defyidetter from the AMEX, we will have the right &ppeal such determination. In addit
entities that are given such notices are usuallgrgiup to 18 months to execute a plan to bring sedwes into compliance with the list
standards.

Our Interest Income May Decrease

Future interest income may be negatively affectgdblvering interest rates and our current movenwérdash to U.S. Treasury b
and other U.S. government backed securities.
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Qil Prices and Transportation Costs May Increase@sts

As our products are made from petroleum produbtshigh cost of oil and transportation may havesgative impact on our costs
the extent they may not be recoverable througtepricreases of our products.

Current Economic Conditions May Decrease Colletitglnf Accounts

Although we believe that we have granted creditreditworthy firms, current economic conditions may afféwe timing and/c
collectability of some accounts.

We Face Inherent Product Liability Risks

As a manufacturer and provider of safety needleyets, we face an inherent business risk of exgosuproduct liability claims
the event of product failure or claim of harm calibg product operation. Product failure could regulinjury to the patient and could exp
healthcare workers to the risk of blood borne pgéms. If any of our products prove to be defective may be required to recall th
products. If a product liability claim is made addmages are in excess of our product liabilityecage, our competitive position could
weakened by the amount of money we could be regjtirgpay to compensate those injured by our pradudle have product liability covere
with St. Paul Insurance Company covering up to @1,@00 per occurrence, with coverage up to $2,@0iA the aggregate. Each clain
subject to a $25,000 deductible. Additionally, gve additional product liability protection under Umbrella Liability Policy. This polic
provides an additional $10,000,000 per occurrenzk aggregate limits in the event claims exceedptimary commercial general liabil
policy limit. We have not had any product lialyilitlaims.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable and none.
Item 2. Properties.

Our 22,500 square foot headquarters is located htL®bo Lane, on 35 acres, which we own, overlogkiake Lewisville in Little
Elm, Texas. The headquarters are in good conditi@mhhouse our administrative offices and manufawfacility. The manufacturing facili
produced approximately 26.9% of the units that veald in 2007. We placed a 45,000 square foot large in service in March 2005. In
event of a disruption in service of our outsideigy, Double Dove, we believe we could producerditi@s sufficient to meet demand un
current circumstances except for demand for 5cc i@t syringes which are sold principally in théeiational market. In that event,
would attempt to engage another manufacturer. Weatrently utilizing less than 50% of our currpmductive capacity.

We obtained a loan fromsL International Bank {“International”)for $2,500,000, secured by the land and existinglimgs, whict
provided funding for the construction of the 45,G@fuare foot warehouse placed in service in 2008. groceeds from the loan were use
pay off the remaining $475,000 of the revolvingditeagreement with ' International in addition to funding the warehows® relate
infrastructure. The payments for the permanent ighéire based on a twenty-year amortization wifivecyear maturity. Interest rates
based on the amount of funds kept on deposit vighltank. Accordingly, interest will vary from theal/ Street Journal Prime Rate (
“WSJPR”) to the WSJPR plus one percent, with flottrat may range from 4.25% to 6.50%. Compensatignzes at F Internatione
affecting the interest rate will range from $0 &08,000.

The Board of Directors has approved our obtainingrfcing for up to $4.5 million for a capital projgo expand the warehouse.
expansion will include additional warehouse spaakditional office space, and a new Clean Room. aiéein the process of finalizing
financing which will be secured by a second lierttoaland and buildings.
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In the opinion of Management, the property and gaeint are suitable for their intended use and dexj@ately covered by
insurance policy.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On August 12, 2005, we filed a lawsuit against Ablhaboratories Inc. (“Abbott”jn the United States District Court in the Eas
District of Texas, Texarkana Division. We are aifegfraud and breach of contract in connection wlign National Marketing and Distributi
Agreement dated as of May 4, 2000, which was teatathon October 15, 2003. We are seeking damageb wie estimate to be in millions
dollars of lost profits, out of pocket expenses] ather damages. In addition, we are seeking menitamages, pre-judgment and postgmen
interest, and attorney’fees. On October 31, 2005, Abbott moved to dismig suit and to compel arbitration of the disputée Court ruled |
our favor and denied the motion to compel arbitrati Abbott appealed the decision to the Fifth @iron February 27, 2007. Briefing |
been completed and oral argument was conductedarnhVB, 2008. It is not possible to predict wheaatly the Fifth Circuit will decide tt
appeal or how. Whether the matter proceeds welitbn or arbitration, Abbott may counterclaim &mnounts that Abbott believes are owel
us under the agreement.

In August 2006, we were sued by OMI in Federal €CofirAustralia, alleging that two letters writtem ©MI by our outside couns
contained unjustified threats, but seeking no dasa@MI later amended its complaint to seek a datdey judgment that OMI does 1
infringe our Australian patents, again seeking amdges. Following a orgay trial in June 2007, the Court held that onghef two letter
written by outside counsel contained an unjustitieetat and awarded costs to OMI. A atee trial of the declaratory judgment (that C
does not infringe on our Australian patents) acisoset for April 2008.

On June 15, 2007, we filed a lawsuit against BEhenUnited States District Court for the Easteratiiit of Texas, Marshall Divisio
We subsequently amended the complaint to add Th@&haw as a plaintiff. We are alleging violatiafighe federal and state antitrust ls
violation of the Lanham Act, and patent infringemeRlease see Exhibit No. 99 to our Forrd &fed on June 19, 2007, for details regar«
the factual basis underlying the action as wellttees relief sought. We are seeking both damagesim@ndctive relief in the suit.
January 2008, the Court severed the patent claioms the other claims and stayed proceedings irother claims pending resolution of
patent dispute. BD has denied the allegationshasdcounterclaimed for a declaration that our ssdqratents are invalid and unenforcea
The patent case is set for trial in March 2009.

On September 6, 2007, BD and MDC Investment Hokldithgc. filed a complaint against us in the Unigdtes District Court for tl
Eastern District of Texas, Texarkana Division. iftiffs allege that our VanishPoift product line infringes U.S. patent nos. 6,179,8t&
7,090,656. Plaintiffs seek a declaration of irdement, an injunction against further infringemexampensatory damages (with interest)
costs of the litigation, and such other relief las Court deems just and proper. We have counterethfor a declaration that the asse
patents are invalid and unenforceable. No trisd #has been set.

On March 14, 2008, MedSafe filed a complaint agailssand BD in the United States District Courttfog District of South Carolin
Greenville Division. Plaintiffs allege that our MahPoint® syringe product line and BD’s Intedta product line infringe U.S. patent |
6,074,370. Plaintiffs seek unspecified damages, including pensatory damages (with prejudgment interest) agdwather relief as the Col
deems appropriate. No trial date has been set.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securitjdolders.

No matters were submitted to a vote during thetfoquarter of 2007.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases ofdtity Securities.
RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES
There were no sales of unregisteesmlirities in the first or second quarter. Ore s&unregistered securities in the third quact
2007 was reported in our Form 10-Q quarterly refiitett with the SEC which is available via EDGAROnNe nonaccredited shareholc
converted 5,000 shares of Series Il Class B CoilerPreferred stock on a one-fone basis for no additional consideration into Cam
Stock in the fourth quarter.

MARKET INFORMATION

Our Common Stock has been listedhenAMEX under the symbol “RVPSince May 4, 2001. Shown below are the high anc
sales prices of our Common Stock as reported bAMEX for each quarter of the last two fiscal years

Common Stock

High Low

2007
Fourth Quarte $2.12 $1.40
Third Quartel $2.60 $1.72
Second Quarte $3.06 $2.25
First Quarte $3.48 $2.70

2006
Fourth Quarte $3.44 $2.20
Third Quartel $3.96 $3.16
Second Quarte $4.02 $3.22
First Quarte $4.11 $3.45

SHAREHOLDERS

As of March 1, 2008, there were 23,800,064 shafgdommmon Stock held by 280 shareholders of recatdincluding shareholde
who beneficially own Common Stock held in nomineéstreet name.”

DIVIDENDS

We have not ever declared or paid any dividendthenCommon Stock. We have no current plans to pgycash dividends on t
Common Stock. We intend to retain all earningsepkt¢hose required to be paid to the holders ofPtederred Stock as resources allov
support operations and future growth. DividendsCammon Stock cannot be paid so long as prefernddetids are unpaid. As of Decem
31, 2007, an aggregate of $12,500,000 in prefetiddends were in arrears.

On March 27, 2007, the Board of Directors declaeatividend on the Series | and Series Il Class Bv€dible Preferred Stock to
paid on July 24, 2007 to Shareholders of Recorduy 2, 2007. Arrearages were paid through Jun&807 in the approximate amoun
$1.1 million.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Seeltem 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Omers and Management and Related Stockholder Matterfor a chat
describing compensation plans under which equityisiges are authorized.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data are qualifiegl reference to, and should be read in conjunciiith, our audited financi
statements and the notes to those statementslandgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operation:
appearing elsewhere herein. The selected StateroEfiperations data presented below for the yeaded December 31, 2004 and 2003,
the Balance Sheet data as of December 31, 2005, 20@ 2003, have been derived from our auditeanfifal statements, which are
included herein.

(In thousands except for earnings per share, shakpercentages)*

As of and for the Years Ended December 3:

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Sales, net $ 26,29C $ 20,897 $ 21,157 $ 21,13¢ $ 19,07¢
Reimbursed discounts — 4,427 3,07¢ 386 —
Total sales 26,29( 25,324 24,23¢ 21,52z 19,07¢
Cost of sales 18,30( 17,77¢ 15,42¢ 16,411 14,654
Gross profil 7,99C 7,54€ 8,80€ 5,111 4,424
Total operating expenses 17,93¢€ 14,261 11,68: 13,11C 10,327
Loss from operation (9,94¢€) (6,715) (2,877) (7,999) (5,90%)
Interest incomu 1,87C 1,97¢€ 1,373 475 45
Interest expense, n (326) (411) (340) (243) (308)
Litigation settlements, ni — — — 74,63 13,88(
Net income (loss) before

income taxe: (8,402) (5,150) (1,844) 66,86¢ 7,714
Provision (benefit) for

income taxe: (1,454) (1,280) (606) 12,171 266
Net income (loss (6,94¢) (3,870) (1,23¢) 54,691 7,44¢
Preferred Stock dividend

requirement (1,39¢) (1,451) (1,503) (1,993) (2,560)
Earnings (loss) applicable t

common shareholde $ (8,347) $ (5,321) $ (2,741) $ 52,69¢ $ 4,88¢
Earnings (loss) per share —

basic $ (0.35) $ (0.23) $ (0.12) $ 233 § 0.23
Earnings (loss) per share —

diluted $ (0.35) $ (0.23) $ (0.12) $ 208 $ 0.2C

Weighted average shares
outstanding 23,727,02! 23,591,99! 23,332,27 22,600,161 21,001,00-

Current assets $ 51,91¢ $ 57,781 $ 61,48 $ 64,672 $ 13,497
Current liabilities $ 8,78¢ $ 6,891 $ 545¢ $ 785z $ 5,77¢
Property, plant, and

equipment, ne $ 11,48 $ 12,21z % 11,92¢ $ 11,057 $ 9,67¢
Total asset $ 64,33C $ 70,79t $ 73,75¢ $ 76,12 $ 23,631
Long-term debt, net of

current maturitie: $ 3,747 $ 4137 $ 4351 $ 353 $ 2,725
Stockholder’ equity $ 51,761 $ 59,71C $ 63,23t $ 63,665 $ 15,13¢
Redeemable Preferred Stot

(in shares 2,329,91¢ 2,441,16t 2,498,66¢ 2,572,11¢ 3,591,21¢
Cash dividends per commi

share $ — 3 — 3 — 8 — 8 —
Gross profit margit 30.4% 29.8% 36.3% 23.7% 23.2%
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* Events that could positively affettte trends indicated above include receipt of rigslfrom BTMD, continued reductions
manufactured costs, continued increasing averdgs paces, and the gaining of market access. rEuiterest income trends may negati
affect the trends indicated above due to possiblyel future interest rates as will our movemenbuwoif cash to U.S. Treasury bills and o
U.S. government backed securities. Furthermoreuagroducts are made from petroleum productsinttreasing cost of oil and transporta
may have a negative impact on our costs to theneittey may not be recoverable through price irseaf our products.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operation.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHiagficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs“anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar such words constitute forvloking statements within the meaning of the Pav8ecurities Litigation Reform A
Any forward{ooking statements involve known and unknown riskacertainties, and other factors that may causeaotual result
performance, or achievements to be materially difie from any future results, performance, or aghieents expressed or implied by s
forwarddooking statements. Such factors include, amongrsthour ability to maintain liquidity, our maintgmce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation (as it affects our toss well as market access and the viability of patents), the ability to successfully re-
negotiate or extend the BTMD license agreementtia@deceipt of payments thereunder, the impactarhdtic increases in demand, our ak
to quickly increase capacity in the event of a diinincrease in demand, our ability to accessntlagket, our ability to maintain or low
production costs, our ability to continue to finamesearch and development as well as operatiahgxgansion of production, the incree
interest of larger market players, specifically B providing safety needle products, and othetoiaclisted inltem 1A. Risk Factors. Giver
these uncertainties, undue reliance should notdmeg on forward-looking statements.

OVERVIEW

We have been manufacturing and marketing safetdymts into the marketplace since 1997. We are otiyréransitioning int
providing other safety medical products in additiorsafety syringe products which comprised 98.0%u sales in 2007. One such prod
the Patient Saf&¢  syringdould enter the market in 2008. Our products leeen and continue to be distributed nationallyugfonumerot
distributors. However, we have been blocked froeeas to the market by exclusive marketing practcemged in by BD which dominates
market. We believe that BB’monopolistic business practices continue desipéie paying $100 million in 2004 to settle a lavtswith us fol
anticompetitive practices, business disparagensent, tortious interference. Although we made liohirogress in some areas, such a
alternate care and international markets, our vekiare not as high as they should be given theenand quality of our product, the fed
and state legislation requiring use of safe neeékces, and the Senate Subcommittee hearings @sGM®We continue to pursue vari
strategies to have better access to the hospitdetas well as other markets, including attemgptim gain access to the market througk
sales efforts, our innovative technology, introduretof new products and, when necessary, litigation

We are focusing on methods of upgrading our manuifsag capability and efficiency in order to enabketo offer our technology a
reduced price. We believe our current capital@aprovides the resources necessary to implemesetbhanges, improve profit margins,
improve our manufacturing capacity and efficienttyereby reducing our unit cost. We are also mamgetnore products international
Beginning in 2004, we were given an award (from PATo supply syringes to various African countrigswards increased significantly frc
2004 to 2007. However, currently there is no fagdior this program. We are hopeful that fundiny be re-established. If so, we will agi
also distribute our products under this programe &ntinue to produce syringes and blood colledtidwe holders in Little EIm, Texas.

Additionally, an Australian distributor was awardadone-year contract in March 2007 to supply ounistaPoint® automate
retraction syringes to all of Queensland HealtB02 acute care facilities. Queensland Health @epartment within the government
Queensland, Australia. The contract was
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effective immediately and renewable for two yeaiganishPoint® products are distributed in Austratip Brisbanebased Scientif
Educational Supplies Pty Ltd.

Product purchases from Double Dove have enabletb uiacrease manufacturing capacity with little ¢apioutlay and provided
competitive manufactured cost. These purchases éa&bled improved profit margins in spite of leditrevenues. The cost of production
unit has generally declined as volumes increasesicWrently obtain roughly 73.1% of our finishedgucts through Double Dove. We beli
we could make up any lontgrm disruption in these supplies by utilizing mofahe capacity at the Little Elm facility, excefpt 5cc and 10¢
syringes which comprised about 7.6% of our 200 &mneres.

We have a Licensing Agreement with BTMD which egpion May 13, 2008. Royalties that were expect&D0¥ were not receiv
due to the time needed to build the factory, asseertuipment, and the related infrastructure as agethe need of BTMD to meet the requ
Chinese government requirements. The facility heenlbcompleted and BTMD is in the process of medfihipese government requiremet
Although successful renegotiation and/or extensibthis agreement cannot be assured, we still coatio expect royalty payments altho
we are unable to predict the date we will begiretmeive such royalties. Royalties should begin dbicimese government requirements are
and BTMD is able to produce and sell products.

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelgptart of the year due, in part, to the demandsynnges during the flu season.

We are committed to the expansion of an existingetvause. This expansion will increase our warehauwsa, provide for additior
office space, and add a second Clean Room.

LIQUIDITY AND FUTURE CAPITAL RESOURCES

At the present time Management does not intendiige requity capital in 2008. Due to the litigateettlements, we have suffici
cash reserves and intend to rely on operationh, reaerves, and debt financing as the primary ongsources of cash.

Historical Sources of Liquidity

We have historically funded operations primarilgrfr proceeds from private placements, loans, aightibn settlements. We we
capitalized with approximately $52,600,000 raiseuht six separate private placement offerings. Viseth$47,375,600 in cash from the pri
sales of an aggregate of 11,710,221 shares of @ibleePreferred Stock. In addition, we obtainedamcellation of $3,679,284 in debt |
$1,550,000 in Accounts payable in exchange foreSevi Class B Convertible Preferred Stock.

We obtained $3,910,000 in 2000 from bank loans loitty $3,435,000 has been repaid and $475,000 viiaameed with a new na
with 1 st International. Additionally, we received a Smalidness Administration loan of $1,000,000 in 199(ay for portions of automal
assembly equipment, muktavity molds, and other equipment. This loan hanlrepaid. Furthermore, we borrowed $5,000,000002inde
our Credit Agreement with Abbott. In October 2002 vepaid the Abbott note with proceeds from a nete from Katie Petroleum, Ir
(“Katie Petroleum”) for $3,000,000 and a portiortieé proceeds from a private placement.

Internal Sources of Liguidity

To achieve break even quarters we need minimalsadeehospital markets which has been difficulblbdain due to the monopolis
marketplace which was the subject of our initiabdait and now also included in our second lawsgdiast BD. We will also continue
attempt to gain access to the market through des sdforts, innovative technology and the intrathrc of new products. We are focusing
methods of upgrading our manufacturing capabilitg afficiency in order to enable us to offer owhieology at a reduced price. We beli
our current capitalization provides the resourcasessary to implement these changes and improveanufacturing capacity and efficien
thereby reducing our unit cost.

Beginning in early 2004, we began to receive shipneé product from Double Dove which enabled used product at lower cost
Fluctuations in the cost and availability of rawteréls and
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inventory and the ability to maintain favorable pligr arrangements and relationships could resutié need to manufacture all (as oppos
26.9%) of the products in the U.S. This could tenapily increase unit costs as we ramp up domestiduction.

We have a Licensing Agreement with BTMD which egpion May 13, 2008. Royalties that were expecte&2D0V were not receiv
due to the time needed to build the factory, as$eeduipment, and the related infrastructure ad asthe need of BTMD to meet the requ
Chinese government requirements. The facility fesenbcompleted and BTMD s in the process of mediihimese government requireme
Although successful renegotiation and/or extensibthis agreement cannot be assured, we still coatio expect royalty payments altho
we are unable to predict the date we will beginetteive such royalties. Royalties should begin dblemese government requirements are
and BTMD is able to produce and sell products. aifécipate that receipt of such royalties wouldéawpositive effect on our liquidity.

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelgart of the year due, in part, to the demandyoinges during the flu season.

Due to increased volumes, our manufacturing urstscbave tended to decline. However, increasingrail transportation costs co
mitigate this trend.

As our products are made from petroleum produbts,iricreasing costs of oil and transportation mayeha negative impact on «
costs to the extent they may not be recoverabtgir price increases of our products.

In the event we continue to have only limited maikecess and cash generated from operations ahdeserves become insuffici
to support operations, we would take cost cuttirgasores to reduce cash requirements. Such measuldsresult in reduction of units be
produced, reduction of workforce, reduction of sakof officers and other nonhourly employees, defeérral of royalty payments.

External Sources of Liquidity

We have obtained several loans over the past sgeans (See Historical Sources of Liguidjtywhich have, together with proce
from the sales of equities and litigation settletsganabled us to pursue development and producfionr products. Currently we believe
could obtain additional funds through loans if resdFurthermore, the shareholders have previoughosazed an additional 5,000,000 shi
of a Class C stock that could, if necessary, beaired and used to raise funds through the sadgoity. We are in the process of finalizir
loan for approximately $4.2 million to fund the exgsion of the warehouse (which will include additibwarehouse space, additional ol
space, and a new Clean Room).

CAPITAL RESOURCES

In 2006, we invested $500,000 in a limited liapildtompany (“LLC”). We are in the process of exercising our option awehtha
investment returned.

Material Commitments for Expenditures

Capital expenditures in 2008 are dependent upoerakvfactors, including, but not limited to, thecsass of projects to decre
production costs, the successful introduction af peoducts, and access to debt financing.

Beginning in 2008, we plan to expand our warehdtsénclude additional warehouse space, additioffide space, and a new Cle
Room). This expansion will be funded by a loamfrhewisville State Bank, a division of 1 International, for approximately $4.2 millic
secured by a 2nd Lien Deed to the land and exigtiniglings.

Trends in Capital Resources

Interest expense will increase due to the pendaam lof approximately $4.2 million, but will be sowteat mitigated by lowt
borrowing rates if current conditions in the cradirkets continue. Interest income may be nedgtive
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affected by lower interest rates and our movemémash to U.S. Treasury bills and other U.S. gowemnt backed securities. Although
believe that we have granted credit to creditthy firms, current economic conditions may afféee timing and/or collectability of sor
accounts.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion contains trend informatiand other forwardeoking statements that involve a number of risks
uncertainties. Our actual future results couldedifhaterially from our historical results of opévas and those discussed in the forwiamking
statements. All period references are to our figegrs ended December 2007, 2006 or 2005. Dollauata have been rounded for eas
reading.

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2007, and Year Ended December 31, 2006

Revenues increased due principally to increaseels sial the international market. Domestic salesew&t.6% of revenues w
international sales comprising the remainder. Jaies of the 1cc syringe increased 7.3% and Stcales increased 30.6%. Unit sales ¢
products increased 7.5%. The discount reimburstsnemded in 2006. The discount reimbursement progexpired after the settlem
agreement under which it was established provided total of $8.0 million in reimbursements. Waalrecognized $8.0 million in cumulat
discount reimbursements by the third quarter of6208ales to three distributors accounted for 36abfb 31.3% of our revenues in 2007
2006, respectively.

Cost of sales as a percentage of revenues decrslggety due to higher volumes offset by the lower averagkng price principall
in the international sales. The increased voluff@aduction resulted in a lower unit cost. Royakpenses were flat.

As a result, gross profits increased and grosstpnafrgins increased slightly from 29.8% in 2008@4% in 2007.
Operating expenses increased from the prior yeargpity due to increases in General and adminiseatosts.

Sales and marketing expenses declined due primarifecreased marketing and trade show expenseealsed compensation
consulting costs were mitigated by reductions atlstoption expenses and travel and entertainment.

Research and development costs were somewhat higfleehad increases in engineering costs due palgifo validation testing ar
the development work on the |V safety catheterl@igter compensation costs.

General and administrative costs increased dueipehy to higher legal expenses. Compensatiots¢asitside accounting costs,
distribution fees also increased. Stock optionesses, shareholder expenses, consulting and gaileiareased. Legal costs concerning
litigation against BD comprise the largest amouriegal fees and have a significant effect on ogremses. Our lawsuit against BD is curre
scheduled for trial in March 2009. After conclusiointhe trial, legal expenses are expected to dsersignificantly. The legal costs incurre
2007 with regard to the Abbott litigation are lovtkan those in 2006. We expect such costs tormaatiintil the litigation is resolved. We &
have higher litigation expenses concerning OMI. Ndd decreases in taxes other than income tax280n. We awarded merit increase
our employees in 2006. We donated product in gernational humanitarian effort in 2006. There dnéseen no stock options awarded s
2004; therefore, this expense continues to deemthe costs become fully amortized with virtualbne recorded in 2007. We also incre:
our allowance for bad debt.
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Preferred Stock dividend requirements declined tdueonversion of Preferred Stock into Common Sto€ke dividend arrearage
December 31, 2007, on all classes of PreferreckStas approximately $12,500,000.

Interest income decreased due to lower interess @td cash balances. Interest expense decresséal ldwer interest rates and ¢
balances. We expect interest income to continugetdine because of declining cash balances, thikahanvironment for declining inter
rates, and the transfer of our cash to U.S. Trgdsills and other government backed securitieserést expense will increase with the add
of a building loan in the approximate amount of2¥illion which is in the process of being finalize

Provision for income tax benefits consists prinyaof the settlement in our favor of a state taxiu@/e also have a valuation rese
for all deferred taxes, with the exception of deddrtaxes on the beneficial conversion feature Gatea with our note payable to Ke
Petroleum.

Cash flow from operations was negative for 2007 priecipally to the loss for the year. The effeéthoncash expenses and
change in working capital were a positive $2.7 ionill

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2006, and Year Ended December 31, 2005

Revenues increased 4.5%, due principally to ineeasles in the alternate care and internationgtetea Domestic sales were 87.
of revenues with international sales comprising thimainder. Unit sales of the 1cc syringe incrda3@.1% and 3cc unit sales incree
19.7%. Unit sales of all products increased 32.6%e hospital market continues to lag despite ¥avprable promotional pricing under
discount program. The increase in discount reisdments in 2006 is due principally to the reductiérthe promotional prices initiated
April 2005, resulting in larger reimbursements,igated by the ending of the reimbursement of tisealints in the third quarter of 2006.
discount reimbursement program expired since thteeseent agreement under which it was establishesiged for a total of $8.0 million
reimbursements. We had recognized $8.0 millioaumulative discount reimbursements by the thirdriguaf 2006. Sales to two distribut
accounted for 31.3% and 34.8% of our revenues @6 2d 2005, respectively.

Cost of sales as a percentage of revenues increlagetb the lower average selling price resultirgnf the ending of the discot
reimbursement program mitigated by higher volunfggroduct produced and sold. The increased volohproduction resulted in a lower u
cost. The effect of the reduction in staff in Agga005 also contributed to the lower unit co2®6. Royalty expenses were higher due
increase in gross revenues.

As a result, gross profits decreased, and grodi prargins declined from 36.3% in 2005 to 29.8%2006.

Operating expenses increased from the prior yeatalincreases in Sales and marketing costs andr@leand administrative costs.

Sales and marketing expenses increased as we wextio grow our sales force, resulting in highenpensation costs, marketing
promotional costs, and travel and entertainmené afgo had increased consulting expense mitigatedrbduction in stock option expense.

Research and development costs were flat. We tadases in consulting costs and decreases in emgigecosts due principally
validation testing and the development work onltheafety catheter
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in 2005. We began marketing the IV safety cathétethe first quarter of 2006. We anticipate thatil we reach economies of scale
manufacturing this product, we will incur lossesitsnsale.

General and administrative costs increased dueipely to higher legal costs, compensation costgisulting, and taxes other tl
income taxes. Decreases in expenses include siptikn expense, shareholder expenses, outside mttgucosts, severance pay,
training. The legal costs incurred in 2006 inareyto the Abbott litigation are higher than thase2005. We expect such costs to cont
until the litigation is resolved. We also havegdition expenses concerning OMI. Compensation dosteased as officers and other sal:
were brought into a more appropriate range in 2€6@5full effect being reflected in 2006. We atsgarded merit increases to our employe
2006. Consulting costs increased due to our cointinefforts to penetrate U.S. and internationatkeis. We had increases in taxes other
income taxes in 2006. We donated product in agrattional humanitarian effort in 2006. There hbeen no stock options awarded s
2004; therefore, this expense continues to deelinhe costs become fully amortized.

Preferred Stock dividend requirements declined tdueonversion of Preferred Stock into Common Sto€ke dividend arrearage
December 31, 2006, on all classes of PreferreckStas approximately $12,200,000.

Interest income increased due to higher interd@ssralnterest expense increased due to higheestteates mitigated by lower d
balances.

Provision for income tax benefits consists prinyaaf federal tax subject to carry back provisioi&ate income taxes are also sul
to the various state€arry back rules. We also have a valuation restowvall deferred taxes, with the exception of defd taxes on tt
beneficial conversion feature associated with aie payable to Katie Petroleum.

Cash flow from operations was negative for 2006 priecipally to the loss for the year. The effeéthoncash expenses and
change in working capital was a positive $500,00®esting activities utilized $2.0 million in cash

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
None.
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following chart summarizes our material obligas and commitments to make future payments ucaietracts for longerm dek
as of December 31, 2007:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less More

Than 1-3 3-5 Than 5
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Long-term debt, including current maturiti  $ 4,285,000 $ 442,29 $ 3,061,28¢ $ 781,42¢ $ —
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We consider the following to be our most significagcounting policies. Careful consideration andaw is given to these and
accounting policies on a routine basis to ensuatttiey are accurately and consistently applied.

Accounts Receivable

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to customeus.alwance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that arétéflduof collection are included in t
allowance. An additional allowance has been eistaddl based on a percentage of receivables outstan@hese provisions are reviewet
determine the adequacy of the allowance for doulsifgounts. Trade receivables are charged off vthere is certainty as to their be
uncollectible. Trade receivables are considerdidgleent when payment has not been made withinraonterms.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales to distributorsnwtittee and risk of ownership passes to the distob generally upon shipme
Revenue is recorded on the basis of sales prickstdbutors, less contractual pricing allowanc€sentractual pricing allowances consis
(i) rebates granted to distributors who provideknag reports which show, among other things, thality that purchased the products,
(i) a provision for estimated contractual priciatjowances for products that we have not receivacking reports. Rebates are recorded \
issued and are applied against the cust@meceivable balance. The provision for contraguging allowances is reviewed at the end of
quarter and adjusted for changes in levels of prtedior which there is no tracking report. Additidly, if it becomes clear that tracking rep:
will not be provided by individual distributors,elfprovision is further adjusted. The estimated ramttial allowance is netted against indivic
distributors’ accounts receivable balances for financial repgriarposes. The resulting net balance is refleatedccounts receivable
accounts payable, as appropriate. The terms anditmors of contractual pricing allowances are goeer by contracts between us and
distributors. Revenue for shipments directly to-esdrs is recognized when title and risk of owngrglaisses from us. Any product shippe
distributed for evaluation purposes is expensed.

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement. This policy providdsat a customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following artied the distributoss facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorizatic
code from us and affix the code to the returnedipca We will not accept returned goods withouetrned goods authorization number.
may refund the customer’s money or replace theuarod

Our return policy also provides that a customer medyrn product that is overstocked. Overstocketgrns are limited to two times
each 12 month period up to one percent of distoibsittotal purchase of products for the prior 12 mawehiod. All product overstocks a
returns are subject to inspection and acceptaneceamnufacturer.

Our international Distribution Agreements do natyide for any returns.

We record an allowance for estimated returns &slaation to accounts receivable and gross saléegoritally, returns have been |
than 0.48% of Total sales.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or regriwith cost being determined using a standard m@shod, which approximal
average cost. A reserve is established for anyssxaeobsolete inventories.
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Marketing Fees

Under a sales and marketing agreement with Ablett,paid marketing fees until we terminated the @mttfor breach. Tt
contracted services were to include participatiopromotional activities, development of educatlaral promotional materials, representa
at trade shows, clinical demonstrations, insergcamd training, and tracking reports detailing gi@cement of our products to enders
Marketing fees were accrued at the time of the eflproduct to Abbott. These fees were paid aftbbdtt provided us a tracking report
product sales to endsers. These costs were included in Sales and timgglexpense in the Statements of Operations. Ndketiag fees hay
been accrued since October 15, 2003, the date &tierdl Marketing and Distribution Agreement wittb#ott was terminated. We filed <
against Abbott in August 2005 for breach of corttra?/e do not expect the eventual liability for teting fees, if any, to exceed the am«
accrued.

Reimbursed Discounts

We received reimbursed discounts from one of thidesgent agreements reached in our previous federitrust lawsuitRetractable
Technologies, Inc. v. BD, et al . Payments under the discount reimbursement prograra recognized upon invoicing of amounts due itttk
agreement, provided collection was reasonably adsuBuch amounts are presented in the Statemfe@yzesations as a separate compone
revenues. All funds available under the discoeithbursement program were recognized by the thiedtgr of 2006.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.

We believe that our market risk exposures regardingcash and cash equivalents are immaterial adongot have instruments
trading purposes. Additionally, reasonable, possii#ar-term changes in market rates or pricesnatliresult in material nederm losses i
earnings.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Retractable Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheeRewctable Technologies, Inc. as of December 8D72and 2006, and the rela
statements of operations, changes in stockhol@eypsity, and cash flows for each of the three yaathe period ended December 31, 2(
Our audits also included the financial statemehedale of Retractable Technologies, Inc., listettém 15(a). These financial statements
financial statement schedule are the responsilafithe Company management. Our responsibility is to expresgpamon on these financ
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaflo(United States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obta@asonable assurance about whether the finast@ééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenemtekhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respect® financial position of Retractal
Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and 2846 the results of its operations and its cashdlfor each of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with accaunprinciples generally accepted in the United etatf America. Also, in our opinic
the related financial statement schedule when densil in relation to the basic financial stateméaken as a whole, presents fairly in
material respects the information set forth therein

We were not engaged to examine management’s assatibut the effectiveness of the Comparigiternal control over financial reporting
of December 31, 2007 included in Iltem 9A(T) of ®empany’s December 31, 2007 FormK @nd, accordingly, we do not express an opi
thereon.

/sl CF & Co., L.L.P.
CF & Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texa:
March 31, 200¢
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2007 2006
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 40,507,43. % 46,814,68!
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $254,008 and $87,030, respecti 1,667,63¢ 1,956, 75¢
Inventories, ne 7,037,12¢ 6,385,78(
Income taxes receivab 2,345,04: 2,355,73:
Other current assets 358,80’ 267,701
Total current assets 51,916,04- 57,780,66:
Property, plant, and equipment, | 11,483,42. 12,212,141
Intangible assets, n 424,56( 279,84¢
Other assets 505,89¢ 522,29¢
Total assets $ 64,329,921 $ 70,794,94.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 5,535,36! $ 4,247,63(
Current portion of lon-term debt 387,90¢ 261,90
Accrued compensatic 539,33( 472,57:
Marketing fees payab 1,419,76( 1,419,76(
Accrued royalties to shareholde 619,30« 2,755
Other accrued liabilitie 263,33¢ 440,25:
Current deferred tax liability 20,62¢ 45,697
Total current liabilities 8,785,63( 6,890,57:
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti 3,747,25¢ 4,137,23:
Long-term deferred tax liability 36,20( 56,82¢
Total liabilities 12,569,08! 11,084,63.
Stockholder’ equity:
Preferred Stock $1 par valt
Class B; authorized: 5,000,000 she
Series |, Class B; issued: 1,000,000 shares; oulistg: 144,000 and 164,000 shares, respectively
(liquidation preference of $900,000 and $1,025 @8pectively. 144,00( 164,00(
Series Il, Class B; issued: 1,000,000 shares;andgtg 219,700 and 224,700, respectively (liquatati
preference of $2,746,250 and $2,808,750, respég}i 219,70( 224,70(
Series lll, Class B; issued: 1,160,445 sharestamnding: 130,245 and 135,245 shares, respectively
(liquidation preference of $1,628,063 and $1,698,%éspectively 130,24¢ 135,24¢
Series |V, Class B; issued: 1,133,800 shares;andgtg 553,500 shares (liquidation preference of
$6,088,500 553,50( 553,50(
Series V, Class B; issued 2,416,221 shares; odtisizinl, 282,471 and 1,363,721 shares, respectivel
(liquidation preference of $5,642,872 and $6,00B, 3@spectively 1,282,47: 1,363,72:
Common Stock, no par value; authorized: 100,000g0@0es; issued and outstanding: 23,755,414 and
23,644,164 shares, respectiv — —
Additional paic-in capital 53,818,98 54,709,10:!
Retained earnings (deficit) (4,388,06¢) 2,560,03¢
Total stockholders’ equity 51,760,83 59,710,31.
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 64,329,921 $ 70,794,94.

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Sales, ne
Reimbursed discounts
Total sales
Cost of Sale:
Costs of manufactured prodt
Royalty expense to shareholders
Total cost of sales
Gross profit

Operating expense
Sales and marketir
Research and developme
General and administrative
Total operating expens
Loss from operations

Interest incom:

Interest expense, net

Net loss before income tax

Benefit for income taxes
Net loss

Preferred Stock dividend requirements
Net loss applicable to common shareholders

Net loss per share - basic and diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding

F-5

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005

26,289,720 $ 20,897,200 $  21,156,66
— 4,427,31. 3,078,35(
26,289,72 25,324,511 24,235,01
16,212,60! 15,684, 45! 13,713,67!
2,087,59( 2,093,82: 1,715,02¢
18,300,20! 17,778,27 15,428,69!
7,089,51! 7.546,24 8,806,31"
5,299,15" 5,545,50( 4,148,68
1,071,14: 958,79¢ 934,20¢
11,565,14 7,756,64° 6,600,13
17,935,44 14,260,94! 11,683,03!
(9,945,92) (6,714,69) (2,876,71)
1,870,51; 1,976,40¢ 1,372,71!
(326,30¢) (411,15¢) (339,68¢)
(8,401,72) (5,149,441 (1,843,68()
(1,453,61) (1,279,96:) (605,365)
(6,948,10:) (3,869,48:) (1,238,32)
(1,399,06:) (1,451,32) (1,502,88)
(8,347,160 $ (5,320,801 $ (2,741,210)
(0.35)$ 0.23)$ (0.12)
23,727,02! 23,591,99! 23,332,27

See accompanying notes to financial statements




RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Series | Class B Series Il Class B Series Il Class B Series IV Class B Series V Class B Common

Shares Amount Shares  Amount Shares  Amount Shares  Amount Shares Amount Shares  Amount

Balance as of
December 31, 200 199,40( $ 199,40( 289,00( $ 289,00( 137,74 $ 137,74! 556,00( $ 556,00( 1,389,97 $ 1,389,97. 23,201,99 $ —

Conversion of Preferred
Stock into Common
Stock (28,4000 (28,400 (33,800 (33,800() (2,500 (2,500 — — (8,750 (8,750 73,45( —

Recognition of stock
option exercist — — — — — — — — — — 236,43t —

Recognition of stock
option compensatio — — — — — — — — — _ _ _

Net loss — — — = — — — — — — _ _

Balance as of
December 31, 200 171,00 171,00 255,20( 255,20( 135,24! 135,24' 556,00( 556,00( 1,381,22 1,381,22; 23,511,88 —

Conversion of Preferred
Stock into Common
Stock (7,000 (7,000 (30,500 (30,500 — — (2,500 (2,500 (17,500 (17,500 57,50( —

Recognition of stock
option exercist — — — — — — — — — — 74,78( —

Recognition of stock
option compensatio — — — — — — — — — _ _ _

Net loss — — — = — — — — — — _ _

Balance as of
December 31, 200 164,00( 164,00( 224,70( 224,70( 135,24! 135,24! 553,50( 553,50( 1,363,72 1,363,72. 23,644,16. —

Conversion of Preferred
Stock into Common
Stock (20,000 (20,000 (5,000 (5,000) (5,000) (5,000 — — (81,25() (81,250  111,25( —

Recognition of stock
option compensatio — — — — — — — — — _ _ _

Dividends declared and
paid on Series | Class
Preferred Stoc — — — — — — — — — — — —

Dividends declared and
paid on Series Il
Class B Preferred Sto — — — — — — — — — _ _ _

Net loss — — — = — — — — — — _ _

Balance as of
December 31, 200 144,000 $ 144,000 219,70C $ 219,70(  130,24' $ 130,24' 553,50( $ 553,50( 1,282,47. $ 1,282,47. 23,755,41 $ —

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common St
Recognition of stock option exerci

Recognition of stock option compensat

Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common St
Recognition of stock option exerci

Recognition of stock option compensat

Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common St

Recognition of stock option compensat

Dividends declared and paid on Series | Class BeRexl Stock

Dividends declared and paid on Series |l Classdé8dpred Stocl

Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 2007
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Additional Retained
Paid-in Earnings
Capital (Deficit) Total
$ 53,424,74. 7,667,84f $ 63,664,70!
73,45(C — —
236,43¢ — 236,43¢
572,42: — 572,42%
= (1,238,327) (1,238,32:)
54,307,05: 6,429,52: 63,235,24:
57,50(C — —
74,78(C — 74,78C
269,77¢ — 269,77¢
= (3,869,482 (3,869,48¢)
54,709,10¢ 2,560,03¢ 59,710,31.
111,25( — —
52,17:¢ — 52,17:¢
(262,81¢) = (262,81¢)
(790,728) — (790,728)
= (6,948,102 (6,948,10¢)
$ 53,818,98 $ (4,388,06¢) $ 51,760,83

See accompanying notes to financial statements




RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Years Ended December 31

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexvi(used) by operating activitie

Depreciation and amortizatic
Capitalized interes
Stock option compensatic
Provision for inventory valuatio
Provision for doubtful accoun
Accreted interes
Deferred income taxe
Loss on disposal of ass¢
(Increase) decrease in ass
Inventories
Accounts receivabl
Income taxes receivab
Other current asse
Increase (decrease) in liabilitie
Accounts payabl
Other accrued liabilitie
Income taxes payable

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipn
Investment in LLC
Acquisitions of patents, trademarks, licenses,iatahgibles

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of lor-term debt and notes payal
Proceeds from lor-term debt
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti
Payment of Preferred Stock dividends

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of period

End of period

Supplemental schedule of cash flow informati
Interest paic
Income taxes pai

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding activities:

Debt assumed to acquire ass

2007 2006 2005
$ (6,948,100 $ (3,869,48) $ (1,238,320
1,430,07: 1,426,74¢ 1,366,90°
(177,08¢) (135,857) (104,961)
6,47¢ 372,29¢ 572,42:

155,60( (61,29€) 13,977
169,22¢ 65,362 64,29¢
120,48¢ 138,15¢ 101,12(

— 534,06¢ (88,86%)

— — 4,474

(806,94¢) (3,026,75¢) 467,24¢
119,897 1,382,79( (1,604,697
10,691 (1,794,670 788,08:
(91,100) 194,44: (163,707
1,287,73! 1,902,01¢ (1,056,427)
506,38¢ (481,84:) 456,621

— — (1,813,08¢)
(4,216,67:) (3,354,037) (2,234,89¢)
(464,41¢) (1,530,357) (2,015,341

— (500,000) —

(188,16¢) (4,57€) —
(652,58°) (2,034,937) (2,015,34)
(384,46() (385,06:) (391,629

— — 1,050,84¢

— 74,78( 236,43¢
(1,053,54) — _
(1,438,00¢) (310,28:) 895,65:
(6,307,25¢) (5,699,24¢) (3,354,597)
46,814,68! 52,513,93! 55,868,52!

$ 4050743 $ 46814,68' $ 52,513,93!
$ 382,901 $ 42542¢ $ 334,127
$ — % 4589 $  2,062,49
$ — % — % 78,45°

S ee accompanying notes to financial statements
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

2.

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Compamygs incorporated in Texas on May 9, 1994, and dasidevelops, manufactures

markets safety syringes and other safety medicalymts for the healthcare profession. The Compaggaib to develop its manufactur
operations in 1995. The Company’s manufacturing arinistrative facilities are located in Littlenk| Texas. The Comparg/priman
products with Notice of Substantial Equivalencette FDA are the VanishPoifit 1cc tuberculin, insulin, and allergy antigen syes
the 3cc, 5cc, and 10cc syringes; autodisable sgriemall diameter tube adapters; blood collectidse tholders; allergy trays; and
safety catheters. We also have the Patient $Sasgringe, which reduces the risk of infection résgl from IV contamination, which fl
Company anticipates will enter the market in 2008e Company has conducted preliminary clinicall@atons and worked wi
national distributors to encourage healthcareifaslto transition from the use of standard syemtp the VanishPoift  syringe.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confteymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresptequires Management to m
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartexints of assets and liabilities and disclosurenaotingent assets and liabilities at
date of the financial statements and the reponteauats of revenues and expenses during the repgrériod. Actual results could difi
significantly from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egsivalents include unrestricted cash and investsneith original maturities of thr
months or less.

Accounts receivable

The Company records trade receivables when revenuwecognized. No product has been consigned ttormgss. The Company’
allowance for doubtful accounts is primarily detered by review of specific trade receivables. Thaseounts that are doubtful

collection are included in the allowance. An aduditil allowance has been established based on anpage of receivables outstand

These provisions are reviewed to determine the watygof the allowance for doubtful accounts. Tresleivables are charged off wi

there is certainty as to their being uncollectiteade receivables are considered delinquent wia@ment has not been made wi

contract terms.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragriith cost being determined using a standard wwthod, which approximal
average cost. A reserve is established for anyssxaeobsolete inventories.

Property, plant, and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at €ogtenditures for maintenance and repairs are ca@®perations as incurred. C
includes major expenditures for improvements aptaeements which extend useful lives or increapacty and interest cost associ:

with significant capital additions. For the yeansded December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, the Compapitalized interest
approximately $177,000; $136,000; and $105,00@eaes/ely. Gains or losses from property disposadsincluded in income.

F-9




Depreciation and amortization are calculated usliegstraight-line method over the following usdfués:

Production equipmet 3 to 13 year:
Office furniture and equipme! 3to 10 year:
Buildings 39 years
Building improvement: 15 years
Automobiles 7 years

Long-lived assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of liwegh assets using an assessment of the estimatisicounted future cash flows rele
to such assets. In the event that assets are foube carried at amounts which are in excess ahastd gross future cash flows,
assets will be adjusted for impairment to a lewshmensurate with a discounted cash flow analysieefinderlying assets.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform with the current year's presentation.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and condgisiagly of patents, a license agreement grantinglusive rights to use paten
technology, and trademarks which are amortizedgutsia straight-line method over 17 years.

Financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is deteradrby reference to various market data and othieiatian techniques as approprii
The Company believes that the fair values of fif@rinostruments approximates their recorded values.

Concentration risks

The Companys financial instruments exposed to concentratidnsredit risk consist primarily of cash, cash eglénts, and accout
receivable. Cash balances, some of which exceedfatierally insured limits, are maintained in finecinstitutions; howeve
Management believes the institutions are of higiditrquality. The majority of accounts receivabte due from companies which
well-established entities. As a consequence, Manageooesiders any exposure from concentrations of tirggks to be limited. Tt
Company had a high concentration of sales witteelsignificant customers. For the year ended DeeeBih 2007, the aforementiot
customers accounted for $9.6 million, or 36.5%mneff sales.

The Company purchases most of its product compserfesth single suppliers, including needle adhesares packaging materials. Th
are multiple sources of these materials. The Companrently obtains roughly 73.1% of its finishetgucts through Double Dove
Chinese manufacturer. In the event that the Compasyunable to purchase such product from DoubleDihve Company would ne
to find an alternate supplier for its 5cc and 16gnges and increase domestic production for hek3xc syringes to avoid a disrupt

in supply.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized for sales to distributorsnatitte and risk of ownership passes to the distdb generally upon shipme

Revenue is recorded on the basis of sales pridestobutors, less contractual pricing allowandg@entractual pricing allowances con
of (i) rebates granted to distributors who providesking reports which show, among other things,fétility that purchased
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the products, and (ii) a provision for estimatedtcactual pricing allowances for products that @@mpany has not received track
reports. Rebates are recorded when issued angpliechagainst the customereceivable balance. The provision for contragbuiing
allowances is reviewed at the end of each quartdraaljusted for changes in levels of products fhictv there is no tracking repc
Additionally, if it becomes clear that tracking cets will not be provided by individual distribugrthe provision is further adjusted.
estimated contractual allowance is netted agamastidual distributorsaccounts receivable balances for financial repgniarposes. Tt
resulting net balance is reflected in accountsivabée or accounts payable, as appropriate. Thasteand conditions of contract
pricing allowances are governed by contracts baetwke Company and its distributors. Revenue foprekints directly to endsers i
recognized when title and risk of ownership padses the Company. Any product shipped or distrildufer evaluation purposes
expensed.

The Companys domestic return policy is set forth in its stadBistribution Agreement. This policy providestla customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following arfiva the distributos facility. In all such cases the distributor madttain al
authorization code from the Company and affix tbdecto the returned product. The Company will aaatept returned goods withot
returned goods authorization number. The Compaany meafund the customer’s money or replace the priodu

The Companys return policy also provides that a customer neyrn product that is overstocked. Overstockirtgrres are limited t
two times in each 12 month period up to one peroédistributor’s total purchase of products for the prior 12 marehod. All produc
overstocks and returns are subject to inspectidreaneptance by manufacturer.

The Company’s international Distribution Agreemesidsnot provide for any returns.

The Company records an allowance for estimatedmnetas a reduction to accounts receivable and gades. Historically, returns he
been less than 0.48% of Total sales.

Marketing fees

Under a sales and marketing agreement with Abbaltotatories, Inc. (“Abbott”)the Company paid marketing fees until the Com
terminated the contract for breach. The contracstexices were to include participation in promoéb activities, development
educational and promotional materials, represemtatit trade shows, clinical demonstrations, ingémgi and training, and tracki
reports detailing the placement of the Company&lpcts to endisers. Marketing fees were accrued at the timéesale of product
Abbott. These fees were paid after Abbott providieel Company a tracking report of product salesnd-esers. These costs w
included in Sales and marketing expense in theetaits of Operations. No marketing fees have beemued since October 15, 20
the date the National Marketing and Distributionrégment with Abbott was terminated. The Compamngdfisuit against Abbott
August 2005 for breach of contract. The Compangsdwot expect the eventual liability for marketfegs, if any, to exceed the amc
accrued.

Reimbursed Discounts

The Company received reimbursed discounts from afnéhe settlement agreements reached in its previederal antitrust lawst
Retractable Technologies, Inc. v. Becton Dickinson and Co. (“BD”) et al . Payments under the discount reimbursement pmogvare
recognized upon invoicing of amounts due underatreement provided collection was reasonably adsugeich amounts are presel
in the Statements of Operations as a separate gwnpof revenues. All funds available under treedint reimbursement program w
recognized by the third quarter of 2006.
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Income taxes

The Company provides for deferred income taxes@om@ance with Statement of Financial Accountirgn8ard No. 109ccounting for
Income Taxes (“SFAS 109”). SFAS 109 requires an asset and liability approacHifiancial accounting and reporting for incomeets
based on the tax effects of differences betweerfittacial statement and tax bases of assets abdities, based on enacted r:
expected to be in effect when such basis differenexerse in future periods. Deferred tax assetspariodically reviewed fi
realizability. The Company has sufficient taxabhedme from prior carryback years to realize allitef current taxable losses. -
Company has established a valuation allowancetfonét deferred tax asset as future taxable inccammot be reasonably assu
Penalties and interest on uncertain tax positioakssified as income taxes in the Statemen@pefations.

Earnings per share

The Company has adopted Statement of Financial wtowy Standards No. 12&arnings Per Share , which establishes standards
computing and presenting earnings per share. Basitings per share is computed by dividing netiegsnfor the period (adjusted
any cumulative dividends for the period) by the giwéd average number of common shares outstandinggdthe period. Tt
Companys potentially dilutive Common Stock equivalentsnsigt of options, convertible debt and convert®teferred Stock and are
antidilutive as the Company is in a loss positiondll periods presented. Accordingly, basic Ipss share is equal to diluted loss
share. Cumulative preferred dividends have beeleddtb net losses for the years ended Decemb&@08¥, 2006 and 2005 to arrive
net loss per share.

Shipping and handling costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling castsart of Cost of sales in the Statements of Gipesa

Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed asihcu

Share-based compensation

The Company has issued options under three diesed Director, officer, and employee compensatians as well as several individ
option agreements. The two 1996 plans have tetednhowever, the options continue until their extpd maturity dates. The Compi
adopted the fair value recognition provisions o&tSment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 1&&ounting for Stock-Based
Compensation , to all awards granted, modified, or settled aflecember 31, 2001. Awards generally vest ovapgsrup to three years.
The Company adopted the provisions of Statemerfiméncial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised4200SFAS No. 123RY,
Share-Based Payment , effective January 1, 2006. It did not have aemat impact on the financial statements of the @any. Ir

accordance with the disclosure requirements of SRAS123R, the Company incurred the following sHaseed compensation costs:

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Cost of Sale: $ 6,64€ $ 67,561 $ 29,131
Sales and marketir 3,08¢ 101,60¢ 182,46¢
Research and developmt (7,863) 12,41¢ 19,43z
General and administrative 4,607 190,711 341,39¢
$ 6,47¢€ $ 372,29¢ $ 572,42:
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Recent Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting StashslBioard issued Statement No. 16d&ir Value Measurements (“SFAS 157”). SFAS
157 defines fair value, establishes a framework f@asuring fair value in generally accepted acdngnprinciples, and expan
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAB id5effective for financial statements issued fiscal years beginning af
November 15, 2007, and interim periods within thgears. The provisions of the new standard aleetapplied prospectively for mi
financial instruments and retrospectively for othas of the beginning of the fiscal year in whibk standard is initially applied. T
Company is evaluating the effect, if any, thataldeption of SFAS 157 will have on its financialtetaents.

3. INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of the following:

December 31

2007 2006
Raw material $ 1,743,99C $ 1,546,28t
Finished goods 5,498,73¢ 4,889,49.
7,242,72! 6,435,78(
Inventory reserve (205,600) (50,000)

$ 7,037,12¢ $ 6,385,78(

4. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant, and equipment consist of the foihy :

December 31

2007 2006
Land $ 261,89: $ 261,89:
Buildings and building improvemen 5,314,72! 5,162,51:
Production equipmet 14,169,90. 14,130,87-
Office furniture and equipme! 1,729,19¢ 1,226,51¢
Construction in progres 2,185,97¢ 2,238,38'
Automobiles 102,321 102,321

23,764,011 23,122,50!
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (12,280,59:) (10,910,36')

$ 11,483,42. $ 12,212,141

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decembh@087, 2006, and 2005 was $1,370,228; $1,3804#¥ $1,325,174, respectively.
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31

2007 2006
License agreemel $ 500,00C $ 500,00(
Trademarks and patents 419,591 231,42
919,591 731,42¢
Accumulated amortization (495,03)) (451,577)
$ 424,560 $ 279,84¢
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In 1995, the Company entered into the license ageaé with the Chief Executive Officer of the Compdor the exclusive right -
manufacture, market, and distribute products utifizautomated retraction technology. This technplisgthe subject of various pate
and patent applications owned by such officer ef@mmpany. The initial licensing fee of $500,000dééng amortized over 17 years.
license agreement also provides for quarterly paysef a 5% royalty fee on gross sales. The royfeléyexpense is recognized in
period in which it is earned. Royalty fees of $Z,@96; $2,093,822; and $1,715,024 are includeddst ©f sales for the years en
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectivelyyalRes payable under this agreement aggregated®,$64 and $2,755
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Grdss s@on which royalties are based were $41,751$87,026,447; and $34,300,¢
for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Amortization expenses for the years ended DeceBihe2007, 2006, and 2005, were $43,454; $41,657 $44,733, respectively. Futi
amortization expense for the years 2008 througlt2 20&stimated to be $53,000 per year.

6. OTHER ASSETS

In 2006, the Company invested $500,000 in a limiigility company (“LLC”). The Company is in the process of exercising it$on
to have that investment returned.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

December 31
2007 2006

Long-term debt consists of the followin

Note payable to Katie Petroleum. Interest accruesprane plus 1%, 8.50%, and 9.25%
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Intenelst was payable monthly through Februar
2004. The original amount of the note of $3,000,0&3 discounted for presentation purpose
$299,346 for stock options issued in conjunctiothwie debt and $412,500 for the intrinsic vi
of a beneficial conversion feature of the debt.iBeigpg March 1, 2004, the loan is payable in e
installments of principal and interest paymentscégt for changes in the interest rate)
approximately $37,000 and matures on SeptemberZ2. Guaranteed by an offic
Approximately $163,736 of the principal payment veasverted into 40,934 shares of Comt
Stock as of March 1, 2006. Not otherwise collateeal. Convertible into Common Stock at $£
per share at the option of the holc $ 1,735,39. $ 1,918,66¢

Note payable to B! International Bank for $2,500,000. The proceedsnfrihe loan paid off t
remaining $475,000 of a revolving credit agreemend funded a warehouse and rel
infrastructure. Payments were interest only duthng first 12 months. After 12 months, paym:
are based on a 20-year amortization with a figar maturity on March 29, 2010. The interest &
December 31, 2007 and 2006 was 7.50% and 8.25%ectxeely, and is based on the amour
funds kept on deposit with the bank. Accordinghterest will vary from the Wall Street Jour
Prime Rate (the “WSJPRYpo the WSJPR plus 1%, with floors that may rangamfr4.25% t
6.50%. Compensating balances & International affecting the interest rate will ganfrom $0 t

$500,000. The Company had in excess of $500,00@eposit with 15! International Ban
throughout the year. The note is secured by thepaoy's land and buildings 2,362,85. 2,428,71:

Note payable to DaimlerChrysler Services North AggerLLC. Sixty (60) monthly payments
$1,009. Interest is 5.49%. Collateralized by a 2B@&ghtliner truck 23,79 34,28¢
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December 31
2007 2006

Note payable to GMAC. Sixty (60) monthly payment$427. Interest is zero percent. Collateral
by a 2005 Chevrolet va 13,12¢ 17,47:
4,135,16!  4,399,13t

Less: current portio (387,90¢)  (261,90f)
$ 3,747,25¢ $ 4,137,23:

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt as afdeer 31, 2007, are as follows:

2008 $ 387,90¢
2009 436,21(
2010 2,551,00t
2011 415,111
2012 344,93:

$4,135,16!

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

On August 12, 2005, the Company filed a lawsuitirrgfaAbbott in the United States District Courttiie Eastern District of Tex:
Texarkana Division. The Company is alleging fraundl dreach of contract in connection with the Nadiokarketing and Distributic
Agreement dated as of May 4, 2000, which was testeth on October 15, 2003. The Company is seekintadas which it estimates

be in millions of dollars of lost profits, out ofopket expenses, and other damages. In additids, Seeking punitive damages, pre-
judgment, and post-judgment interest and attomdges. On October 31, 2005, Abbott moved to disnthe suit and to com|
arbitration of the dispute. The Court ruled in thempanys favor and denied the motion to compel arbitratiédbbott appealed tl
decision to the Fifth Circuit on February 27, 20@tiefing has been completed and oral argumentosaducted on March 3, 2008. |
not possible to predict when exactly the Fifth Gitowill decide the appeal or how. Whether the teraproceeds in litigation
arbitration, Abbott may counterclaim for amountattAbbott believes are owed by the Company undeagreement.

In August 2006, the Company was sued by OccupdtamMedical Innovations Limited (“OMI”in Federal Court of Australia, allegi
that two letters written to OMI by outside counsehtained unjustified threats, but seeking no dasa@MI later amended its compl:

to seek a declaratory judgment that OMI does roinige the Company’s Australian patents, again sgeko damages. Following a one-
day trial in June 2007, the Court held that oneheftwo letters written by outside counsel contdiae unjustified threat and awari
costs to OMI. A one-day trial of the declaratanggment (that OMI does not infringe on the ComparAustralian patents) action is

for April 2008.

On June 15, 2007, the Company filed a lawsuit s in the United States District Court for thaskern District of Texas, Marsh
Division. The Company subsequently amended itsptaimt to add an officer as a plaintiff. The Compaand officer are allegit
violations of the federal and state antitrust lawis]ation of the Lanham Act, and patent infringethe The Company and officer
seeking both damages and injunctive relief in thié sln January 2008, the Court severed the patkmins from the other claims &
stayed proceedings in the other claims pendindutgn of the patent dispute. BD has denied thegations and has counterclaimec
a declaration that the Company’s asserted pateatsalid and unenforceable. The patent casetifos trial in March 2009.

On September 6, 2007, BD and MDC Investment Hoklitige. filed a complaint against the Company i thited States District Col
for the Eastern District of Texas, Texarkana Divisi
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Plaintiffs allege that the VanishPoifitproduct line infringes U.S. patent nos. 6,179,8t8 @,090,656. Plaintiffs seek a declaratio
infringement, an injunction against further infrergent, compensatory damages (with interest), tetsadf the litigation, and such ot
relief as the Court deems just and proper. The famy has counterclaimed for a declaration thatagserted patents are invalid
unenforceable. No trial date has been set.

On March 14, 2008, MedSafe Technologies LLC filembenplaint against the Company and BD in the Un@&ates District Court for tl
District of South Carolina, Greenville Division.lantiffs allege that the Company’s VanishPdint risge product line and BB’ Integr:
™ product line infringe U.S. patent no. 6,074,37Blaintiffs seek unspecified damages including camsptory damages (w
prejudgment interest) and any further relief asGoert deems appropriate. No trial date has been se

INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of theofelhg:
For the Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Current tax provision (benefi
Federa $ (143,459 $ (1,696,31) $ (500,51¢)
State (1,310,159 (117,709) (15,98¢€)
Total current provision (benefit) (1,453,61) (1,814,027 (516,500
Deferred tax provision (benefi
Federa — 458,23: (13,030
State — 75,83: (75,839)
Total deferred tax provision (benel — 534,06¢ (88,867)
Total income tax provision (benefit) $ (1,45361) $ (1,279,96)) $  (605,367)

The Company recognized a tax benefit in 2007 piilgnaiue to the net effect of a state tax refund poior years that had not be
previously recognized.

Deferred taxes are provided for those items refddrtadifferent periods for income tax and finanaigporting purposes. The tax effe
of temporary differences that give rise to sigrifit portions of the deferred tax assets and lt&slare presented below:

The Company has $2,340,291 in tax benefits attttdetto carry back losses for federal tax purpoBes.loss carryforward for 2007 v
expire in 2027 for federal tax purposes and witlihdo expire for state tax purposes in 2012.

2007 2006
Deferred tax asse
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 187131 $ 160,60¢
Accrued expenses and reser 1,204,16! 738,87¢
Employee option expen: 484,21. 484,21.
Inventory 402,40! 299,23:
Non-employee option expen: 313,55 313,55
Deferred tax assets 4,275,65! 1,996,48!
Deferred tax liabilitie:
Property and equipme (1,341,29) (1,344,05I)
Beneficial conversion feature of de- current (20,626 (45,697
Beneficial conversion feature of de- long-term (36,200 (56,829
Deferred tax liabilities (1,398,11) (1,446,57)
Net deferred asse 2,877,53. 549,91¢
Valuation allowance (2,934,35) (652,439
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (56,82¢) $ (102,52}

F-16




10.

A reconciliation of income taxes based on the febstatutory rate and the provision (benefit) foxdme taxes is summarized as follows:

December 31

2007 2006 2005

Income tax (benefit) at the federal statutory rate (35.0)% (35.0)% (35.0)%
State tax (benefit), net of federal (bene (2.9) (2.9) (2.9)
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowa 27.2 10.7 5.4
Permanent difference 1.0 4.0 0.4
State tax refun (22.0) — —
Return to accrual adjustmet 3.2 — —
Other 1.2 (1.7) (0.7)

Effective tax (benefit) rat (17.3)% (24.9)% (32.8)%

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardar8d“FASB”) issued Financial Interpretation No., 4&counting for Income Tax
Uncertainties (“FIN 48")FIN 48 is effective for years beginning after Debem15, 2006. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition thokbkanc
measurement attribute for financial statement reitimyn and measurement of a tax position takenxpeeted to be taken in a tax ret
FIN 48 requires that a company evaluate whethisr‘inore-likely-than-not'that a tax position will be sustained based upeneichnice
merits of the position. Measurement of the tax fimsiis based upon the largest amount of bendditithgreater than 50% likely of be
realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company tdbpIN 48 on January 1, 2007. FIN 48 had no malteffect on the financi
statements upon adoption. During 2007, the Compesgrved approximately $100,000 for state nexsies.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction and in various state and locaisdictions. The Company’federe
income tax returns for all tax years ended on trddecember 31, 2004, remain subject to examindtjothe Internal Revenue Serv
The Companys state and local income tax returns are subjeeké&mination by the respective state and localaaitis over variol
statutes of limitations, most ranging from thredive years from the date of filing.

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock

The Company has one class of Preferred Stock odliisigt Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (“CIBsStock”). The Class B Stock h
five series: Series |, Series Il, Series Ill, S, and Series V.

Class B

The Company has authorized 5,000,000 shares oafstgue Class B Stock which have been allocateshgn$eries I, I, I, IV, and
in the amounts of 144,000; 219,700; 130,245; 5938,30d 1,282,471 shares, respectively. The rengij670,084 authorized shs
have not been assigned a series.

Series | Class B

There were 1,000,000 shares of $1 par value Se@ésss B Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series 4$3IB Stock”jssued and 144,0
and 164,000 outstanding at December 31, 2007 a0é,2@spectively. Holders of Series| Class B btate entitled to receive
cumulative annual dividend of $.50 per share, plyajuarterly if declared by the Board of Directohs.2004, the Company p:
$2,550,000 in dividends. In 2007, the Company g&i62,819 in dividends. At December 31, 2007 ab@b2approximately $36,000 ¢
$226,000, respectively, of dividends which hadlvextn declared were in arrears.

Series | Class B Stock is redeemable after thraesyfeom the date of issuance at the option ofbmpany at a price of $7.50 per sh
plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Each shiafgedes | Class B Stock may, at the option of gteckholder, be converted to «
share of Common Stock after three years from the otissuance or in the event the Company filemgial registration statement unt
the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to these teamstal of 20,000 shares of Series | Class BlSioere converted into Common St
in 2007. In the event of voluntary or involuntangsblution, liquidation or winding up of the Compamolders of Series | Class B St
then outstanding are entitled to $6.25 per shdus @il accrued and unpaid dividends prior to aisfrithutions to holders of Series
Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series 115518 Stock”),
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Series Il Class B Convertible Preferred Stock ({&elll Class B Stock”), Series IV Class B Conitdet Preferred Stock Series I\
Class B Stock”), Series V Class B Convertible Rrefi Stock (“Series V Class B Stock”) or Commoncg&to

Series Il Class B

There were 1,000,000 shares of $1 par value Skri@lsss B Stock issued and there were 219,700224j700 shares outstanding
December 31, 2007 and 2006. Holders of Seriesd6<B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulativeuahdividend of $1.00 per she
payable quarterly if declared by the Board of Dioes. Holders of Series Il Class B Stock generadlye no voting rights until dividen
are in arrears and unpaid for twelve consecutivartgqus. In such case, the holders of Series lISBaStock have the right to elect one-
third of the Board of Directors of the Company.2604, the Company paid $4.6 million in dividends. 2007, the Company ps
$790,725 in dividends.At December 31, 2007 and 2006, approximately $100 dhd $678,000, respectively, of dividends whiatl ho
been declared were in arrears.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after thesgsyfrom the date of issuance at the option ofCbmpany at a price of $15.00
share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Ehahesof Series Il Class B Stock may, at the optibthe stockholder, be convertec
one share of Common Stock after three years fra@ardéte of issuance or in the event the Company éiteinitial registration statem:
under the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to thesas, 5,000 shares of Series Il Class B Stoclkewenverted into Common Stock
2007. In the event of voluntary or involuntary disgion, liquidation or winding up of the Comparhglders of Series Il Class B St
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shiws, all accrued and unpaid dividends, after distion obligations to holders of Serie
Class B Stock have been satisfied and prior todistyibutions to holders of Series Ill Class B $toSeries IV Class B Stock, Serie
Class B Stock or Common Stock.

Series Ill Class B

There were 1,160,445 shares of $1 par value Skéri€tass B Stock issued and 130,245 and 135,24Beshoutstanding at December
2007 and 2006, respectively. Holders of Serie€léss B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulagimeual dividend of $1.00 per sh
payable quarterly if declared by the Board of Dioes. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, approxima$@®85,000 and $2,853,0
respectively, of dividends which have not been aled were in arrears.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after tlyesrs from the date of issuance at the option ®Gbmpany at a price of $15.00
share, plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Bhehe of Series Ill Class B Stock may, at the optibthe stockholder, be converte:
one share of Common Stock after three years fra@ardéte of issuance or in the event the Company éiteinitial registration statem:
under the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to thesas, 5,00&hares of Series Il Class B Stock were conveméa Common Stock
2007. In the event of voluntary or involuntary aisgion, liquidation or winding up of the Comparhglders of Series Ill Class B Stc
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shaus, all accrued and unpaid dividends, after distion obligations to Series | Clas
Stock and Series Il Class B Stock have been sdisfind prior to any distributions to holders ofi&etV Class B Stock, Series V Clas
Stock or Common Stock.

Series IV Class B
There were 1,133,800 shares issued and 553,508ssbatstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006ectgely. Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulasimaual dividend of $1.00 per share, payable qugrtérdeclared by the Board

Directors. Holders of Series IV Class B Stock galigihave no voting rights. At December 31, 200d 2006, approximately $6,478,(
and $5,924,000, respectively, of dividends whichehaot been declared were in arrears.
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Series IV Class B Stock is redeemable after thesgs/from the date of issuance at the option oftbpany at a price of $11.00
share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. E&elnesof Series IV Class B Stock may, at the optibrthe stockholder any tir
subsequent to three years from date of issuanamrbeerted into one share of Common Stock, orénetvent the Company files an ini
registration statement under the Securities Adt3#3. Pursuant to these terms,simares of Series IV Class B Stock were convert
Common Stock in 2007. In the event of voluntaryiroroluntary liquidation, dissolution or winding ugf the Company, holders
Series IV Class B Stock then outstanding are edititb receive liquidating distributions of $11.08r share, plus accrued and un,
dividends after distribution obligations to SerigSlass B Stock, Series Il Class B Stock, and SdfleClass B Stock have been satis
and prior to any distribution to holders of SeNe€lass B Stock or Common Stock.

Series V Class B

There were 2,416,221 shares issued and 1,282,4¥1,863,721 outstanding at December 31, 2007 afé,2@spectively. Holders
Series V Class B Stock are entitled to receiverautative annual dividend of $0.32 per share, payapiarterly, if declared by the Bo.
of Directors. Holders of Series V Class B Stock ggaily have no voting rights. At December 31, 208i¥d 2006, approximate
$2,898,000 and $2,482,000, respectively, of divittawhich have not been declared were in arrears.

Series V Class B Stock is redeemable after twosylram the date of issuance at the option of theng@any at a price of $4.40 per st
plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Each shiaSeoes V Class B Stock may, at the option ofdteekholder any time subsequer
the date of issuance, be converted into CommonkSEursuant to the terms of the certificate of gleation, 81,25Ghares of Series
Class B Stock were converted into Common StoclOiiz2 In the event of voluntary or involuntary ligation, dissolution, or winding |
of the Company, holders of Series V Class B Stbentoutstanding are entitled to receive liquidatiigributions of $4.40 per sha
plus accrued and unpaid dividends after distributibligations to Series | Class B Stock, Serig3ldiss B Stock, Series Ill Class B St¢
and Series IV Class B Stock have been satisfiecpaindto any distribution to the holders of them@oon Stock.

Common stock

The Company is authorized to issue 100,000,000eshafrno par value Common Stock, of which 23,755did 23,644,164 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2007 argl 2&&pectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company had a lease with Mill Street Entergris®ill Street”), a sole proprietorship owned by a 10% shareholderpffices an
storage in Lewisville, Texas. During the years eh@ecember 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, the Compaiay $iat,500; $34,800; a
$34,800, respectively, under this lease. This léage expired in June 2007.

Through December 31, 2005, the Company had a dimg@greement with MediTrade International Corpiorg a company controlle
by a 10% shareholdeThe shareholder was paid $16,667 per month andbreed for business expenses incurred on behdtie
Company, not to exceed $5,000 per month withoutr@pproval for the term of the contract. Theremafthe Company paid MediTre
on a month-to-month consulting agreement wherebyliWtade is paid $6,500 per month plus expensekotal amounts paid
MediTrade for the years ending December 31, 20006 2and 2005 totaled $129,618; $91,883; and $Z7 /2spectively.

The Company has a license agreement with the Exie€utive Officer of the Company. See Note 5.
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During the years ended December 31, 2007, 200628608, the Company paid $30,397; $24,162; and 485 &spectively, to fami
members of its Chief Executive Officer for variceensulting services.

STOCK OPTIONS

Stock options

The Company had three stock option plans that gealifor the granting of stock options to officezmployees, and other individuals
During 1999, the Company approved the 1999 Stocko®Plan. The 1999 Plan is the only plan withcktoptions currently beir
awarded. The Company has reserved 4,000,000 stfa@zsnmon Stock for issuance upon the exercisgtbos under this plan.

The Companyalso has options for common shares outstandingruhdel996 Incentive Stock Option Plan and the 196k Optiol
Plan for Directors and Other Individuals. The th@06 plans have terminated. However, options thsuwler those plans are still
effect.

A committee appointed by the Board of Directors auilsters all plans and recommends to the Boardoseprices at which options .
granted. Shares exercised come from the Compamythorized but unissued Common Stock. The opt@st over periods up to th
years from the date of grant and generally exgireyears after the date of grant. All unvestedomgtissued under the plans expire t
months after termination of employment or serviwéhe Company.

Employee options

A summary of Director, officer, and employee opigranted and outstanding under the Plans is pgezsérlow:

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of peri 2,417,29' $ 8.58 2,495,12! $ 8.38 2,634,88! $ 8.37
Grantec — — — — — —
Exercisec — — (49,780) (2.00) — —
Forfeited (229,840 (6.50) (28,05() (4.47) (139,760) (8.16)
Outstanding at end of period 2,187,45! $ 8.80 2,417,29' $ 8.58 2,495,12! $ 8.38
Exercisable at end of peric 2,187,45' $ 8.80 2,325,77( $ 8.57 1,712,10( $ 8.25
Weighted average fair value of
options granted during peric $ — $ — $ —

The fair value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Bla8icholes option pricing model. No options wereés
in 2007, 2006, or 2005.
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The following table summarizes information aboutdgtor, officer, and employee options outstandingar the aforementioned plan:
December 31, 2007:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares
Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable

$ 10.0C 830,05( 1.87 830,05(
$ 6.9C 451,83( 4.75 451,83(
$ 8.6% 798,40( 4.7C 798,40(
$ 7.5C 25,00(¢ 1.36 25,00(
$ 8.87 82,17¢ 6.36 82,17¢

Non-employee options
A summary of options outstanding during the yeaideel December 31 and held by non-employees idlas/fo

Years Ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of peri 579,70C $ 8.5C 607,20 $ 8.16 843,63¢ $ 6.15
Grantec — — — — — —
Exercisec — — (25,000) (2.00) (236,43¢) (2.00)
Forfeited (30,000) (5.00) (2,500) (1.00) (3) (1.00)
Outstanding at end of period 549,70 $ 8.69 579,70C $ 8.5C 607,20 $ 8.16
Exercisable at end of peri 549,70C $ 8.69 579,70C $ 8.50 607,20C $ 8.16
Weighted average fair value of options
granted during perio $ — $ — $ —

The fair value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Bla8choles option pricing model. No options were ési
in 2007, 2006, or 2005.

The following table summarizes information aboun+employee options outstanding under the aforeroeeti plan at December 31,
2007:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares
Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable
$10.0¢ 317,20( 2.11 317,20(
$6.9C 232,50( 4.75 232,50(
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14.

15.

The Company recorded $6,478; $372,298; and $5724280ckbased compensation expense in 2007, 2006, and g8 ctively. T
total intrinsic value of options exercised was $207,924; and $0 in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respygtivihe aggregate intrinsic value
options outstanding at December 31, 2007 was $@ tdtal compensation cost related to mested stock options to be recognized ir
future was $0 at December 31, 2007.

LITIGATION SETTLEMENTS

In the second quarter of 2003, the Company read®tiiement agreements with Premier Inc.; Premiechasing Partners, L.|
VHA, Inc.; Novation, L.L.C.; Tyco International (JSnc.; and Tyco Healthcare Group L.P. in its poes federal antitrust lawst
Retractable Technologies, Inc. v. BD et al . As part of the settlements, the litigation agafiemier, VHA, Novation, and Tyco has b
dismissed.

Although specific terms are confidential, the agneats included cash payments made in 2004 and fitlaecial consideration as well
provisions that were intended to facilitate theesafl the Company’s VanishPoifit products to Premier and Novation member facili
In exchange for the settlement provisions, the Cangphas agreed to give up its claims against tbesganies.

As part of the settlement agreements, a discountbrgsement program of $8,000,000, which was ndegéal fees, was establist
whereby the Company was being provided quarteimbvarsements for certain discounts given to paeéting facilities. The Compa
offered certain discounts to participating faadtiand was being reimbursed for such discountsselhayments were recognized u
delivery of products provided collection was reasap assured. Cumulative reimbursements of $8,000,000 were rembttirough th
third quarter of 2006. The termination of the disat reimbursement program resulted in a negatiyeact to the Company’profit
margin during the second half of 2006. The dis¢@uagram ended December 31, 2006.

401(k) PLAN

The Company implemented an employee savings aimdment plan (the “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that iseinded to be a tagualified plat
covering substantially all employees. Under thente of the 401(k) Plan, employees may elect to rdmute up to 90% of the
compensation, or the statutory prescribed limiless. The Company may, at its discretion, matshleyee contributions. The Comp:
made matching contributions of approximately $10@;30; and $0 in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respegtivel

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

2007 2006 2005
Domestic sales $ 21,461,71 $ 22,240,34 $ 22,310,15!I
International sale 4,828,00: 3,084,17: 1,924,86¢
Total sales $ 26,289,72I $ 25,324,51! $ 24,235,01!
Long-lived asset:
Domestic $ 11,483,42: $ 12,212,141 $ 11,925,97!
Foreign $ — $ — $ —

The Company does not operate in separate repogafgtaents. The Company has no Iltingd assets in foreign countries. Shipmen
international customers generally require a pregatreither by wire transfer or an irrevocable conéd letter of credit. The Compe
does extend credit to international customers anesoccasions depending upon certain criteria, diety but not limited to, the cre
worthiness of the customer, the stability of thardoy, banking restrictions, and the size of thegeor All transactions are in United Stz
currency.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA - UNAUDITED

The selected quarterly financial data for the pii@nded December 31, 2007 and 2006, have beevedérom the Company’
unaudited financial statements and include all stdjents, consisting only of normal recurring adjumits, necessary for a 1
presentation of the results of the interim periods.

(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)

2007
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Sales, net $ 5774 $ 527t $ 8,04C $ 7,201
Reimbursed discoun — — — —
Total sales 5,774 5,27¢ 8,04C 7,201

Cost of Sales 4,514 3,132 5,85¢ 4,801
Gross profi 1,26C 2,143 2,187 2,40C
Total operating expenses 4,00C 4,101 4,61€ 5,21¢
Loss from operation (2,740) (1,95¢) (2,42¢) (2,81¢)
Interest incomt 541 448 521 360
Interest expense, n (77) (94) (86) (69)
Loss before income taxes (2,27€) (1,604) (1,994) (2,52¢)
Benefit for income taxe — — (1,40€) (48)
Net loss (2,27€) (1,604) (588) (2,480)
Preferred stock dividend requireme (355) (349) (348) (347)
Net loss applicable to common shareholdefs (2,631) $ (1,95%) $ (936) $ (2,827)
Net loss per share - basic and diluted $ (0.11) $ (0.08) $ (0.04) $ (0.12)
Weighted average shares outstanc 23,677,64. 23,731,66: 23,745,201 23,754,58:
Profit margin 21.8% 40.6% 27.2% 33.3%

(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)

2006
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Sales, ne $ 3882 % 530z $ 5332 % 6,381
Reimbursed discounts 1,641 2,13¢ 651 —
Total sales 5,52¢ 7,437 5,98¢ 6,381
Cost of Sales 3,611 4,713 4,65C 4,804
Gross profit 1,912 2,724 1,33¢ 1,577
Total operating expens: 3,152 3,48¢ 3,47z 4,14¢
Loss from operations (1,240) (765) (2,13¢) (2,571)
interest incom 462 489 513 512
Interest expense, net (111) (128) (128) (44)
Loss before income tax: (889) (404) (1,754) (2,10%)
Benefit for income taxes (289) (201) (531) (259)
Net loss (600) (203) (1,223) (1,844)
Preferred stock dividend requirements (367) (364) (361) (359)
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(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)

Net loss applicable to common shareholc $

Net loss per shai- basic and dilute
Weighted average shares outstanc
Profit margin

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 200 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
(967) $ (567) $ (1,584) $ (2,20%)
$ (0.04) $ (0.02) $ (0.07) $ (0.09)
23,521,55. 23,594,11 23,618,16. 23,634,16:
34.€% 36.6% 22.3% 24.7%
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accounté&mon Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
Item 9A(T). Controls and Procedures .

Pursuant to paragraph (b) of Rla-15 or Rule 15d-15 of the Securities ExchangeoAdi934 (the “Exchange Actdnd on Marc
28, 2008, Management, with the participation of Buesident, Chairman, and Chief Executive Offidéromas J. Shaw (the “CEO’and ou
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Douglds Cowan (the “CFO”)acting in their capacities as our principal exeaitind financic
officers, evaluated the effectiveness of our disate controls and procedures, as defined in Rudel58e) or Rule 15d5(e). The CEO al
CFO concluded that, as of December 31, 2007 (tlweoérthe period covered by the report), based enebaluation of these controls
procedures required by paragraph (b) of Rule 13arIBule 15d15 there were no significant deficiencies in thesetrols and procedures. 1
CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosure continl$ procedures are effective to ensure that infoomaequired to be disclosed in
periodic reports is recorded, processed, summadnddeported within the time periods specifiethim SEC’s rules and forms.

Management is responsible for disfaing and maintaining adequate internal contr@roour financial reporting as defined in R1
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Mmment used theternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisgiG®SO”) to evaluate the effectiveness of our internal adrawer financial reportir
as required by paragraph (c) of Rule 13a-15 or RBlé15. Management, with the participation of our CE@ &FO, concluded that ¢
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2007, was effective. No material wealages our internal control over financ
reporting were identified by Management.

This annual report does not inclaohe attestation report of our registered publicoaating firm regarding internal control o
financial reporting. Managemeastreport was not subject to attestation by ourstegéd public accounting firm pursuant to temporaigs o
the Securities and Exchange Commission that persnid provide only Management's report in this amaport.

Our management, including the CEB@ &FO, does not expect that our disclosure cantmotl procedures or our internal control
financial reporting will prevent or detect all erscand all instances of fraud. A control systemmadter how well designed and operated,
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assuraratetth control system’s objectives will be met.

There have been no changes duhiegfdurth quarter of 2007 or subsequent to Decer3fter2007, in our internal control o
financial reporting or in any other factor that maaterially affected or is reasonably likely to erélly affect our internal control over financ
reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information .

We will hold our annual meeting ®aptember 26, 2008, at the Little EIm City HallD1\West Eldorado Parkway; Little EIm, Tex
75068.

Our Amended and Restated Bylawswecently amended. A copy of the Second AmendddRestated Bylaws is attached he
as exhibit No. 3(ii). The amendments address abeuraf issues including, but not limited to, formalg the fact that our shares may be
in either certificated or electronic form.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.
The following table sets forth infeation concerning our Directors, executive offsgzeand certain of our significant employees ¢

the date of this filing. Our Board of Directors sists of a total of seven (7) members, two (2) masbf which are Class 1 Directors and
(5) of which are Class 2 Directors which servetfoo-year terms.

Term as

Director
Name Age Position Expires
EXECUTIVES
Thomas J. Sha 57 Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer, at@s€ 2 Directo 2008
Douglas W. Cowal 64 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasugerd Class 2 Directc 2008
Kathryn M. Duesma 45 Executive Director, Global Heal N/A
Russell B. Kuhimai 54 Vice President, Sale N/A
Michele M. Larios 41 Vice President, General Counsel, and Secre N/A
Lawrence G. Salern 47 Director of Operation N/A
Steven R. Wisne 50 Executive Vice President, Engineering & Productima Class 2 Directc 2008
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Marco Laterze 60 Class 1 Directo 2009
Amy Mack 40 Class 1 Directo 2009
Marwan Sake 52 Class 2 Directo 2008
Clarence Zierhu 79 Class 2 Directo 2008
SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES
Shayne Blythe 39 Director of Sales and Marketing Logisti N/A
John W. Fort lll 39 Director of Accounting N/A
James A. Hoove 60 Director of Quality Assuranc N/A
R. John Mada 47 Production Manage N/A
Jules Millogo 47 Medical Director N/A
Judy Ni Zhu 49 Research and Development Mana N/A

EXECUTIVES

Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder, hagedeas Chairman of the Board, President, Chiefcktwee Officer, and Director since ¢
inception. In addition to his duties overseeing blanagement, he continues to lead our design tegmoiduct development of other med
safety devices that utilize his unique patentectiém ring technology. Mr. Shaw has over 25 yedmxperience in industrial product design
has developed several solutions to complicated améchl engineering challenges. He has been grantétiple patents and has additic
patents pending. Mr. Shaw received a Bachelor @édrge in Civil Engineering from the University ofridona and a Master of Science
Accounting from the University of North Texas.

Douglas W. Cowan is a Vice Presidemd our Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, an®igector. Mr. Cowan joined us as Ct
Financial Officer and was elected to the Board @e&ors in 1999. He is responsible for our finahcaccounting, risk management,
forecasting functions. Mr. Cowan has a Bacheldudiness Administration from Texas Technologicall€pe. He is a CPA licensed in Texas.

Kathryn M. Duesman, RN, joined ns1996 and currently serves as the Executive Dire&lobal Health. She provides clini
expertise on existing products as well as thoskeirelopment. She has been instrumental in devejdpaining and marketing materials and
spoken and been published on safety
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issues. Ms. Duesman works with international agentm promote the use of safe technologies in dpired countries. Ms. Duesmanis a 1
graduate of Texas Woman's University with a Bachelb Science in Nursing. Ms. Duesman¢linical background as a registered n
includes diagnostic, acute, and home healthcargmyr

Russell B. Kuhlman joined us in Retry 1997 and is our Vice President, Sales. MhlKian is responsible for management of
sales force and liaison with GPOs and product itrgifior our sales organization, as well as distidru Mr. Kuhlmans efforts with us hay
resulted in bringing onboard Specialty Distributonsfluencing legislation, and educating influehtteealthcare representatives about
benefits of our product line. Mr. Kuhlman is resiggcthroughout the industry and is a main contdbt the safety effort in this country.
has a sales background in the medical service indtisat includes his most recent work for ICU Medi (formerly BioPlexus), a medic
device manufacturing company, from 1994 to 1997enerhe developed strategic marketing plans for safgty products. Prior to his we
there, Mr. Kuhlman worked as Director of Sales afarketing for Ryan Winfield Medical, Inc., a mediagevice manufacturing compai
from 1989 to 1994, where he launched several nedyuts, developed strategic sales territories,veasl the trainer for Sales and Regit
Managers. Mr. Kuhiman also worked for BD VacutaiffeSystems, a medical products company, in severdtaiées from 1980 to 198
where he was recognized as the National Sales Bapegive for the year 1987. Mr. Kuhlman holds ahgdor of Science in Finance from
University of Tennessee.

Michele M. Larios joined us in Felry 1998 and currently serves as our Vice Presidgeneral Counsel and Secretary. Ms. L:
is responsible for our legal and legislative, ayadissurance, human resource, and regulatory imgctin addition to working on legal mat!
and with outside counsel, Misarios works with legislators on pertinent issuad eelevant legislation. Ms. Larios received alBdor of Arts
in Political Science from Saint Mary’College in Moraga, California, and a Juris Daaterfrom Pepperdine University School of Lav
Malibu, California.

Lawrence G. Salerno has been eneployith us since 1995 and has served as Direct@parations for us since 1998. Hs
responsible for the manufacture of all our produets well as all product development and procesgldpment projects. In addition,
supervises all aspects of the construction andresipa of our facilities in Little EIm, Texas. Mrafrno is the brother of Ms. Lillian E. Saler
a shareholder holding approximately ten percerthefCommon Stock. Mr. Salerno received his BacheldBcience in Economics from 1
University of North Texas.

Steven R. Wisner joined us in Oetob999 as Executive Vice President, EngineerimyRuoduction and as a Director. Mr. Wisrer’
responsibilities include the management of engingeproduction, Chinese operations, and intermatisales. Mr. Wisner has over 30 yeal
experience in product design, development, and faaturing. Mr. Wisner holds a Bachelor of ScieneeComputer Engineering from lo
State University.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Marco Laterza joined us as a Doedffective as of March 22, 2005. Since 1988, Miterza has owned and operated a p
accounting practice. His practice includes corpgragartnership and individual taxation, compilatiesiew of financial statements, finan
planning, business consulting, and trusts andesst&rom 2004 to the present Mr. Laterza has &saed as the Chief Financial Officer for
Blue Software Corporation, a development stagensoét company. Formerly, Mr. Laterza was employed imumber of positions from 1977
1985 with El Paso Natural Gas Company eventuallyisg as its Director of Accounting. Mr. Laterzaceived his Bachelors of Busini
Administration in Accounting from Pace University1972. He is a CPA and has received a CertifichEducational Achievement in Persc
Financial Planning from the American Institute d?AS.

Amy Mack joined us as a Director davember 19, 2007. Since 2003, she has ownedpardhted SPA 02, a medical spa. S
April of 2000, she has owned and operated (andeseas Chief Nursing Officer for) EmergiStaff & Asgates, a nursing staffing company
Dallas, Texas. She served as a registered nwseAugust 1997 to the date she began EmergiSta#fggociates. She obtained her Bact
of Science degree from Texas A&M University in @glé¢ Station, Texas in 1991 and an Associate dégfdarsing from El Centro College
Dallas, Texas in 1994. She is a registered nur3exas.
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Marwan Saker joined our Board of Directors in JAA60. Since 1983, Mr. Saker has served as Chietlixe Officer o
Sovana, Inc., an export management company thalisapagricultural equipment and supplies to ovassaarkets. Since 2000, he has se
as Director of Consolidated Food Concepts Inc.c&ih986, he has served as President of Internafioquorts & Consulting Inc., an exp
management, consulting, and distribution compangces2000, he has served as Vice President of Hen@®rp., an overseas sourc
company. From 1998 to 2001, he served as a Menflidy dnvestments, LLC, an equity investment compa8ince 1999, he has servel
President of Saker Investments Inc., a companyntatages an investment portfolio. Since 1998, Iseskaved as a General Partner of A
Investments, Ltd., an investment management limgtednership. He also serves as a Member of MMDIC La real estate developm
company. Mr. Saker has acted as a representativd. $ companies seeking distribution, licensimg] &anchising in the Middle East, Eurc
and North Africa. Mr. Saker was instrumental in eleyping successful partnerships in more than 15tr@s. He offices in Irving, Texas.

Clarence Zierhut has served on our Board of Dirscstince April 1996. Mr. Zierhut founded an indigdtdesign firm in 1955, Zierh
Design, now Origin Design, that develops new prdsifiom concept through final prototypes. He ceasmshagement of the company fc
period of time but has since resumed his executinees. During his professional career, Mr. Zierhut hasated over 3,000 product desi
for more than 350 companies worldwide, in virtuadlyery field of manufacturing, and has won manyermational awards for desi
excellence. His clients have included Johnson &sdoh, Abbott, Gould, and McDonnell Douglas. He ie®@ a Bachelor of Arts from A
Center College of Design in Los Angeles, California

SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

Shayne Blythe has been with us for over ten yeatsia our Director of Sales and Marketing LogisticShe is responsible
developing and implementing strategic directiorigectives, comprehensive sales and marketing p&ams programs. In addition, she dir
and oversees all aspects of the distribution psoaas customer service policies in order to moratat maintain customer satisfaction. Pric
joining us, Ms. Blythe assisted Mr. Shaw with thregimal 3cc syringe and other SBIR grant projedts. Blythe has a Bachelors of Busir
Administration in management from American Inteioal University.

John W. Fort Ill is our Director of Accounting. Mfort joined us in March of 2000 as a Financial lixgand has served as
Director of Accounting since October of 2002. Hrsmary responsibilities include managing the daydéy operations of the Accounting
Finance Department, coordination of the annualtapeid interim reviews by our independent accaustas well as our cost accounting
forecasting functions. Prior to joining us, he sehas the Manager of Financial Planning for thedpcomarketing department of Exi
Communications. Mr. Fort also served as the Manafi@&udgeting and Projections for Snelling and 8ng] Inc., an international person
services firm. Mr. Fort holds a Bachelor of Busgmé@giministration in Accounting from Tarleton Stataiversity.

James A. Hoover joined us in February 1996 anduisQirector of Quality Assurance. Prior to his bedog Director of Qualit
Assurance he was Production Manager. He is redplerfsir our quality assurance functions. Mr. Hoolias also developed and impleme
FDA required procedures and has been involvedarFDA inspection process. Mr. Hoover joined usrafterking for Sherwood for 26 yea
During his tenure with Sherwood, a medical devianuofacturing company, he gained hawodsexperience in all aspects of the medical dt
manufacturing process. Mr. Hoover began his carétr Sherwood as a materials handler and workedvhig up through a series of positi
with added responsibilities to his final positidmete as Production Manager of Qffie Molding, Operating Room/Critical Care. In 1
capacity, he managed several departments, ranasg@reduct lines, and hired and supervised overe&@iployees. While at Sherwood, he
gained experience with one of the country’s fiefesy syringes, the Monoje€t

R. John Maday joined us in July 1999 and is ourdBection Manager. He is responsible for supervisibrine production of ol
products. Prior to becoming Production Manageramudry 1, 2005, he served as our Production GeBerzdrvisor. Mr. Maday has 25 ye
of manufacturing experience in both class Il arldmkdical devices. He spent three years with Me@orp. supervising two producti
departments and 13 years with Sherwood in whiclydieed handsn experience in all aspects of medical device Hamturing includin
managing the Kit and Packaging department with d®25 employees. Mr. Madag/’formal training includes FDA and Total Qua
Management Systems and he is certified as a BlattkoB Six Sigma Methodology.

26




Dr. Jules Millogo has served as bladical Director since May 2007. His duties in@urkpresenting us at scientific forums
working with the Ministries of Health and interraal organizations on developing injection safatg &ealth workers safety standards
policies. From 2004 to April 2007 Dr. Millogo wasnployed by John Snow, Inc. as the Project Direfborthe Washingtorbased Makin
Medical Injections Safer Project (“MMIS"g $150 million project funded by the U.S. governiiterdecrease unsafe injections and the me
transmission of HIV/AIDS, hepatitis B and C as pafrthe U.S. President Emergency Plan for AIDS &gIPEPFAR which was administe
by PATH). Under his leadership, the MMIS Projeeiied more than 100,000 health workers in safectign practices and donated more
100 million safety syringes to high HIV prevalenceuntries in Africa and the Caribbean. From 2002@84 Dr. Millogo was a technic
advisor for John Snow, Inc. Dr. Milloge’experience includes working in several Africard aisian countries under the World He:
Organization. Dr. Millogo holds a Mastsrof Science in Epidemiology of Communicable Digsagom the University College of London, L
and a MD from the University of Ouagadougou, Bugkifaso. Dr Millogo is fluent in French, Englishdaseveral African languages.

Judy Ni Zhu joined us in 1995 asdur Research and Development Manager. Her prifoans is on new product development
improvement of current products. Prior to joinirggy Ms. Zhu worked as a design engineer with Mrwsba the original 3cc syringe and ot
SBIR grant projects. Ms. Zhu received her BacheloScience from Northwest Polytechnic University Xien, China, and her Master
Engineering from the University of Texas at Arliogt Ms. Zhu has assisted in design modificatiomgHe 3cc syringe, which have maximi
both product reliability and production efficiencghe also designed and developed a manual neesbenbly machine and an autom
lubricating and capping system for the 3cc syriagd developed and assisted in the design of autahtddod collection tube holder assen
equipment. Ms. Zhu has collaborated with Ms. Duasarad Mr. Shaw in the filing of several patent égatlons.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS

There are no family relationshipsoag the above persons except as set forth above.
DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER COMPANIES

No Directors hold Directorshipsr@porting companies other than as set forth above.
INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None of the above persons or argintmss in which such person was an executive offiage been involved in a bankruptcy petit
been subject to a criminal proceeding (excludirdfitr violations and other minor offenses), beehjact to any order enjoining or suspent
their involvement in any type of business, or biemd by a court or administrative body to havdatied a securities law.
SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMRINCE

Section 16 of the Exchange Act rezpiour Directors, executive officers, and persehs own more than 10 percent of a regist
class of our equity securities to file with the SEial reports of beneficial ownership (Form 3)dareports of changes in beneficial owner
(Forms 4 and 5) of our Common Stock and our otheitg securities. Officers, Directors, and gredtem 10 percent shareholders are req
by the SECS regulations to furnish us with copies of all 8&attl6(a) reports they file. Based solely on agevof Forms 3 and 4 furnishec
us, all Directors, Officers, and holders of morartfl0O percent of our equity securities registenaymnt to Section 12 of the Exchange
filed reports required by Section 16(a) of the Eaqaipe Act as of December 31, 2007.
CODE OF ETHICS

Effective as of March 9, 2004, waopted a code of ethics that applies to all emmsyé@cluding, but not limited to, our princi
executive and financial officers. Our Code of Bigsis Conduct and Ethics is designed to deter waingdnd to promote:
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1. Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethicahdiing of actual or apparent conflicts of intesebetween
personal and professional relationships;

2. Full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandabkeldisure in reports and documents that we file wathsubmit to,
the SEC and in our other public communications;

3. Compliance with applicable governmental laws, rusesl regulations;

4, The prompt, internal reporting of violations of tbede to an appropriate person or persons idethtifiehe code;
and

5. Accountability for adherence to the code.

We have posted a copy of the cadewr website at www.vanishpoint.com/investor.aBtease follow the link to Governance t
follow the link to Charters, then click on “RVP Qarate Code of Conduct&ny amendment to this code or waiver of its appia@ato the
principal executive officer, principal financialfifer, principal accounting officer, or controller similar person shall be disclosed to inve:
by means of a Form R-filing with the SEC. We will provide to any persavithout charge, upon request, a copy of such odahics. Suc
requests should be submitted in writing to Mr. DiasgV. Cowan at 511 Lobo Lane, P.O. Box 9, LittlmETexas 75068-0009.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

We have a separatdisignated standing Audit Committee establishealctordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the ExchaAgt
consisting of Messrs. Clarence Zierhut, Marco Laaemand Marwan Saker. Each of the members of thdit Alommittee is independent
determined by the AMEX rules and Item 7(d)(3)(i¥)Sczhedule 14A under the Exchange Act.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has deteedithat we have at least one financial expert sgroh the Audit Committee. Mr. Marco Late
serves as our designated Audit Committee Finarieiglert. Mr. Laterza is independent as independénadefined for Audit Committe
members by the listing standards of the AMEX.
ltem 11. Executive Compensation .

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Objectives of Our Compensation Program

Our executive officer compensatmogram (the “Compensation Progranis)based on the belief that competitive compensat
essential to attract, retain, motivate, and rewagthly qualified and industrious executive officel®ur Compensation Program is intende
accomplish the following:

attract and retain highly talented and productixecetive officers;

provide incentives and rewards for superior pertoroe by the executive officers; and

align the interests of executive officers with theerests of our stockholders.

What the Compensation Program Is Designed to Award

Our Compensation Program is deslgneaward both superior long-term performance lnyexecutive officers and their loyalty.
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Summary of Each Element of Compensation

To achieve these objectives, then@ensation and Benefits Committee has approvedecugve officer compensation program-
consists of four basic components:

base salary;

periodic short-term incentive compensation in threrf of cash bonuses;

periodic long-term incentive compensation in therf@f stock options; and

medical, life, and benefit programs (which are galhe available on the same terms to all employees)

Why We Choose to Pay Each Element of Our Compems&tiogram

Base Salary

We choose to pay a significant comgnt of our compensation in base salary due tofgbethat our financial performance
constrained by the monopolistic activities of Bid/e have been blocked from access to the markexdysive marketing practices engage
by BD who dominates the market. We believe thamiémopolistic business practices continue desfstpaying $100 million to settle a laws
with us in 2004 for anticompetitive practices, Imesis disparagement, and tortious interferencel Wmth time as we believe that we h
access to the market, we believe that it is appatgto weigh our Compensation Program heavilyawof of base salaries rather thal
incentive compensation.

Cash Bonuses

From time to time and when our casbkerves allow (taking into account the continmegd to compete in this monopoli
environment and the continued need for significeash reserves) we grant cash bonuses in orderwardesignificant efforts or tt
accomplishment of short-term goals. The last bosmwsse granted in 2003. The CEO has never beeegrany bonuses of any kind.
Long-Term Incentives: Stock Options

Longerm incentives are provided through grants of kstoptions primarily under our 1999 Stock Option rRlaThe grants a
designed to align the interests of executive officgith those of stockholders and to provide eadtetive officer with a significant incenti
to manage from the perspective of an owner witkauity stake in the Company.

How We Determine the Amount or Formula for Paymiertight of Our Objectives

Executive compensation remainsstimae until there is a review of such compensatjotihé Compensation and Benefits Commit
Compensation, other than that of the Chief Exeeuf¥ficer, is not reviewed annually. Under therterof Mr. Shaws employment agreeme
his compensation is reviewed annually. In the,paken there is a review of executive compensati@have retained an outside consu
firm, Trinity Executive Recruiters, to provide bémsarks for similar compensation given the multipled varied positions each execu
fulfills as well as our size and the hostile enaiment in which we operate.

Base Salary
The base salary for each of ourcetiee officers is subjectively determined primaribn the basis of the following factol
experience, individual performance, contributionotr performance, level of responsibility, dutieeddunctions, salary levels in effect

comparable positions within and without our indysémd internal base salary comparability constitamna.
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These base salaries are revieweaddieally and may be adjusted, based upon thefaaiscussed in the previous sentence, as
as upon individual performance during the previfisal year, changes in the duties, responsilgligiad functions of the executive officer,
general changes in the compensation peer groughichwve compete for executive talent. The relatigght given to each of these factor
the Compensation and Benefits Committeeecommendation, differs from individual to indival, as the Compensation and Ben
Committee deems appropriate.

Periodic Cash Bonuses

For 2007, we did not grant bonuseur executive officers. These bonuses, whed, paie paid on a discretionary basis
determined by the Compensation and Benefits CoreeitFactors considered by the Compensation andfiBeiCommittee in determini
discretionary cash bonuses are personal performénad of responsibility, and many of the samedes considered by the Compensation
Benefits Committee and discussed above when ieveviand sets base salaries, except with a greates fon the prior fiscal year. 1
Compensation and Benefits Committee also consm@rseed to retain cash in deciding whether totgrash bonuses.

Long-Term Incentive: Sock Options

We have issued stock options to our employees fiom to time and may do so in the future. We haseissued any stock options
2005, 2006, and 2007. The options are generallgtgdato regular full time employees and officekdowever, no options have ever b
granted to Thomas J. Shaw, the Company’s PresatehCEO.

If stock options are to be issued, Management pespa proposal to the Compensation and Benefitsniittee. Considerations
Management in its initial proposal in determininguatable aggregate fair market value of optionsegranted include our financial conditi
the number of options already outstanding, and#rnefit to the employees. The proposal includesrimétion relating to the expected expe
of such grants to be recognized by us, the apprteinmumber of options to be issued, the numberptibies currently outstanding, 1
employees to be included, the amount of stock atlreutstanding, and the method under which th@ap would be awarded. If the propc
is approved by the Compensation and Benefits Cotaejithe proposal is submitted to the Board of dines.

Once the dollar amount of options to be grantedpproved, Management begins determining the agtregamber of shar
underlying options that can be granted under sygroaal (based on the fair value of an option fug purchase of one underlying she
Factors included in the determination of the valfian option grant for the purchase of one shaskide current market price of the Company’
stock, the proposed exercise price, the propospiiagion date, the volatility of the Compasystock, and the risk free rate. We may reta
independent outside consultant to determine sultfevan the past we have utilized the Bl&®gholes model; but other methods, such a
binomial method, may be used in the future as rmppropriate methods are developed.

After the aggregate number of shares underlyingofit®ns to be granted has been determined, weaddidhe options to our varic
departments based on their annual compensatios timeé performance rating. The individual empkgeallocation factor is the numerato
a fraction. The denominator is the departnergim of all factors (annual compensation timedopmiance ratings of all the eligit
employees). The resulting fraction is multiplieg the stock options, to be awarded to determineethployees individual portion of th
aggregate approved options.

The allocation may be further reviewed by the depant's management if they believe certain employees weteawarded ¢
appropriate number of options, which Managemeriteeihsider.

Each stock option grant allows éixecutive officer to acquire shares of Common Stick fixed price per share (typically, and n
less than, the closing stock price of the CommartiSon the date of grant) for a fixed period (usu&n years). Each option gener.
becomes exercisable after three years, contingemt the executive offices’ continued employment with us. Accordingly, tikeck optior
grant will provide a return to the executive offiamly if the executive officer remains employedus/during the vesting period, and then
if the market price of the underlying Common Staglpreciates.

Allocation Between Lo erm/Current and Between Cash/NGash Compensation

All of our long-term compensatioonsists of noreash compensation in the form of stock options. B&keve that the granting
stock options incentivizes executives to maximige longterm strengths as well as our stock price. Howevecause we are operating
monopolistic environment and our stock price htkelrelationship with our performance, the mogngicant component of compensatiol
base salary and not stock options. Managememicented to maximize shareholder value and will dgarded if they do so. Howevel
significant base salary enables us to retain tispetent Management despite the current inabdifyrovide valuable equity incentives.

How Determinations Are Made as to When Awards Aranfed

Generally, option awards are grdnée the discretion of the Board after recommendatf the Compensation and Bene
Committee.

Unfortunately, our stock price does always react as expected to our achieveméasordingly, at times options have been gra
to aid in retaining competent and experienced eexsi without regard to the then current stock @aridowever, such options always h
exercise prices that are at or above fair markietevan the date of grant.
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In addition, there is no relatioipsbetween the date of grant of options and ousg@ssion of material ngoublic information.
Because we are competing in a contentious antiémwgitonment, we are often in possession of mateda-public information. However,
options granted to executives require a minimuraghyrear vesting period. Furthermore, it is oufgyalvith regard to options that (although
options could be exercised) the underlying shaoetdcnot be sold into the market while the exeautivas in possession of material rublic
information under our insider trading policy. Aedingly, we believe that there is minimal risktbé executive profiting from such mate
nonpublic information.

What Specific Items of Corporate Performance Arkehainto Account in Setting Compensation Policied Making Compensation Decisions

Cash reserves as well as trendaligs and costs are taken into account when caoimgjdbe advisability of increasing base salarik
granting cash bonuses. At such times that anjhedet factors make it inadvisable to increase salam grant bonuses, then consideratir
given to increasing option awards taking into actdhe value of prior option awards.

Awards are granted on the basisistbrical performance. Accordingly, there is nscdetion to change the awards once granted.

Factors We Consider in Determining to Change Corsgaigon Materially

We consider our cash position, entriiquidity trends, and the short-term and ldegn needs for cash reserves (especially in lif
the hostile environment in which we operate) whealw@ating whether we can change compensation rafjeat a given time.

On an individual by individual basis, we also caolesithe value of past option compensation, the etitiyeness of that individuad’
base salary, and their individual contribution tw goals.

How Amounts Realized from Past Compensation Afteitier Elements of Compensation

We are very aware that the vastonitgj of options granted to our executives are igantly out of the money and that they r
remain so until we are able to obtain real acoeshe market. Accordingly, future compensation lilkely continue to be dominated by b.
salary as well as periodic bonuses when possible.

The Impact of the Accounting and Tax Treatment®of Types of Compensation

Stock options granted to executiaed other employees are expensed for accountimpges under FAS 123(R). We expense
our option costs as we do the costs of salariesbandses. Accordingly, the impact of tax treatmantarious compensation forms does
impact our compensation decisions. Stock optioreegp is not recognized for tax purposes, exceftercase of noqualified stock options
For non-qualified stock options, the intrinsic valof the option is recognized when the option ereised.

Our Policy Regarding Hedging Stock Ownership

We prohibit certain stock transaes by employees and Directors, including:

1. Purchases and sales of stock within a six montiogher
2. Short sales; and
3. Transactions in puts, calls, or other derivativeusities.

Furthermore, employees and Directoe required to pre-clear any hedging transagtion
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Benchmarking of Our Compensation Program

In 2003, we hired Trinity ExecutiRecruiters, Inc. to assist us in providing benctik®mdor compensation by similarly siz
companies in similar industries for persons thad lpmsitions which are currently fulfilled by vatie members of our executive team. Tri
Executive Recruiters performed a survey of othdsliply held companies with $205® million in revenues in the Medical Equipment
Supplies Industry. Fortpine companies were included in the search witbta bf 346 executives. However, for each exeeytthe list o
executives to use as comparisons was tailoredrtesymond to each executive’s particular job funio

These benchmarks supported the @osgiion and Benefit Committee’s recommendationd Boards approval of) an increase
the base salary of Mr. Wisner, Mr. Cowan, and Marids both in 2003 and again in 2005.

Although we have obtained benchrimarknformation with regard to the CE©position, such benchmarks were not utilized laask
for increasing Mr. Shaw'salary in 2005. His salary was increased atdbemmendation of the Compensation and Benefitsrittee as we
as a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors dubé fact that he had never been granted optipasybonuses and had not had a ma
increase in salary in many years. However, sudchiaarks support an increase of at least the ammade.

The Role of Our Executives and Directors in Detainti Compensation

Management establishes the inittaposed recommendations regarding compensaticalfemployees, including themselves. <
proposal is then submitted to the Compensation Bedefits Committee. In the event that a proposahffirmed the proposal is th
recommended to the entire Board of Directors fooiz.

Compensation Pursuant to Employment Agreement

We have an Employment Agreemenhwilr. Thomas J. Shaw. However the Employment Agi# is being modified to avc
adverse tax consequences to Mr. Shaw created hyassage of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 other executives (or Directc
are compensated pursuant to employment agreements.

The Employment Agreement with Mha® (the “Employment Agreemenpyovides for an initial period of three years whetdes
September 2002 that automatically and continuorestgws for consecutive twgear periods. The Employment Agreement is termmaithe
by us or Mr. Shaw upon 30 days’ written notice.

The Employment Agreement providasan annual salary of at least $150,000 with anuahsalary increase equal to no less tha
percentage increase in the Consumer Price Indegldine previous calendar year. (However, the Baauthorized a salary increase
$400,000.) The Employment Agreement requires MratShaw’s salary be reviewed by the Board of Directors ekletuary, which shall ma
such increases as it considers appropriate. Inalg@2008, the Board of Directors accepted the resendation of the Compensation
Benefits Committee to increase Mr. Shawalary by the 2007 percentage increase in thsuoer Price Index (which increase was reqt
under the Employment Agreement). Mr. Shaw is astitled to participate in all executive bonusesthas Board of Directors, in its st
discretion, shall determine.

Under the Employment Agreement,ase obligated to provide certain fringe benefitgluding, but not limited to, participation
pension plans, profitharing plans, employee stock ownership planskstppreciation rights, hospitalization and heaitburance, disabili
and life insurance, paid vacation, and sick le&Ve.are also obligated to reimburse him for anyorable and necessary business expe
including travel and entertainment expenses, nacgss carry on his duties. Pursuant to the EmplaytmAgreement, we are obligatec
indemnify Mr. Shaw for all legal expenses and lieibs incurred with any proceeding involving hing keason of his being an officer or ag
We are further obligated to pay reasonable attofeey and expenses in the event that, in Mr. Shaale judgment, he needs to retain cot
or otherwise expend his personal funds for his e
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Mr. Shaw has agreed to a one-yearcompete, not to hire or attempt to hire employeesohe year, and to not make known
customers or accounts or to call on or solicit accounts or customers in the event of terminatiohi®employment for one year unless
termination is without cause or pursuant to a chavfgcontrol. Furthermore, Mr. Shaw has the righder this agreement to resign in the e
that there is a change in control which is defilmethe Employment Agreement as a change in the nitajof Directors within any 12 mon
period without twothirds approval of the shares outstanding andledtib vote, or a merger where less than 50% ofothtstanding stoc
survives and a majority of the Board of Directaemmins, or the sale of substantially all of outresssor any other person acquires more

50% of the voting capital. Mr. Shaw retained tightrto participate in other businesses as loney do not compete with us and so long ¢
devotes to us the necessary working time.

However, we and Mr. Shaw have agjteeoperate the Employment Agreement under thed Regulations issued under Section 4
of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, we waltnong other things, defer certain payments uméltermination of a period equal to

months and one day after the occurrence of ceetagmts warranting payment, and be obligated tmndafhange in control in the Employm
Agreement as follows:

A “Change of Control” shall be deemed to have oemlion either of the following dates: (i) the date/ one person (other
than Mr. Shaw), or more than one person acting goap, acquires (or has acquired during the 12tmperiod ending on

the date of the most recent acquisition by suchgreor persons) ownership of stock of the Comparsg@ssing thirty percent
(30%) or more of the total possible voting powetta stock of the Company (assuming the immediateersion of all then

outstanding convertible preferred stock) or (i@ thate a majority of members of the Board of Dwexis replaced during any
12-month period by Directors whose appointmentlecten is not endorsed by a majority of the memh#rthe Company’s

Board of Directors before the date of the appoiminoe election.

We will also be obligated to define a “Permanergdbility” as:

Mr. Shaw being unable to engage in any substag#aiful activity by reason of any medically detematble physical or

mental impairment which can be expected to resulieiath or can be expected to last for a continpeui®d of not less than
12 months or is, by reason of any medically deteatnie physical or mental impairment which can bpeeted to result in

death or can be expected to last for a continuetdsg of not less than 12 months, receiving incoeptacement benefits for a
period of not less than 3 months under an accidedthealth plan covering employees of the Compar. Shaw shall also

be deemed to be disabled if he is determined tothdly disabled by the Social Security Adminisimat
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SUMMARY OF TOTAL COMPENSATION

The following Summary Compensation Table sets furéhtotal compensation paid or accrued by us thesprior three years to or
the account of the principal executive officer, gacipal financial officer, and the three highpaid additional executive officers:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2005 -2007

Option All Other
Salary Awards M Compensation Total

Name and principal position Year %) $) %) $)

@) (b) (©) (f) 0] 0)
Thomas J. Shar 2005 307,70z — — 307,70z
President and CE! 2006 400,00( — — 400,00(¢
(principal executive officer 2007 400,00( — 4,50C®) 404,50(
Douglas W. Cowal 2005 248,31¢ 114,26( — 362,57¢
Vice President, CF( 2006 290,13( 58,372 — 348,50z
(principal financial officer 2007 290,10¢ 778 4,500®) 295,381
Steven R. Wisne 2005 247,69: 14,24C — 261,93:
Executive Vice Presider 2006 290,00( 8,367 6,75C 305,117
Engineering and Productic 2007 290,00( 758 4,500 295,25¢
Michele M. Larios 2005 258,67¢ 113,97 — 372,65
Vice President 2006 351,29¢ 58,26¢ — 409,56¢
General Couns 2007 350,00( 797 4,503 355,29
Russell B. Kuhlmai 2005 122,06 12,182 — 134,24¢
Vice President, Sale 2006 132,59: 36,61¢ — 169,20¢
2007 134,77¢ 369 2,6950) 137,84:
@ The fair value of each option graestimated on the date of grant using the BBdheles option pricing model with the follow

weighted average assumptions used for grants iAd: 200 dividend yield; expected volatility of 37%sk free interest rate of 4.89%; anc
expected life of 9.0 years. No options were issimed006 or 2007. The options were issued under the 1999 Stock OfRian, a copy ¢
which Plan and amendment was filed as Exhibit NO6s6-10.7.

(2) This amount constitutes the excessketaralue of the underlying shares of an exercg&edk option over the exercise price.

(3) This amount was compensation purstaotir matching contributions to the 401(k) plan.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END
The following Outstanding Equity Avds at Fiscal Yedend Table sets forth information regarding unexssdioptions current
held by the principal executive officer, the pripal financial officer, and the three highest paiditional executive officers.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2007 Fiscal Year Enc
Option Awards

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised Option
Options Exercise Option
#) Price Expiration
Name Exercisable (6] Date
(@) (b) (e) ®
Thomas J. Sha
President, CE(
(principal executive officer
Douglas W. Cowal 25,00(D 10 06/30/09
Vice President, CF( 25,000 10 11/01/10
(principal financial officer’ 25,00(® 6.90 09/30/12
125,00(4) 8.65 06/23/13
4,00C®) 8.87 05/11/14
Steven R. Wisne 150,00((6) 10 10/24/09
Executive Vice Presider 15,000 10 11/01/10
Engineering and Productic 20,00(®) 6.90 09/30/12
12,500 8.65 06/23/13
3,90((10) 8.87 05/11/14
Michele M. Larios 5,00C(11) 10 07/09/08
Vice President 5,00C(12) 10 03/09/08
General Counse¢ 15,40((13) 10 06/30/09
25,000(14) 10 11/01/10
25,00((15) 6.90 09/30/12
124,60((16) 8.65 06/23/13
4,10C@7) 8.87 05/11/14
Russell B. Kuhimai 7,500(18) 10 07/08/08
Vice President, Sale 15,60((19) 10 06/30/09
10,00((20) 10 11/01/10
20,0002 6.90 09/30/12
79,400(22) 8.65 06/23/13
1,90((23) 8.87 05/11/14

() Options for the purchase of 12,500 shares vestellilgnl, 2001, and for the remaining shares vesteduly 1, 2002.
2 These options vested on November 1, 2003.

3) These options vested on September 30, 2005.

4) These options vested on June 23, 2006.
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(5)
(6)

(7)

(8)

(©)

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)

(23)

These options vested on May 11, 2007.

Options for the purchase of 75,000 shares vestgdobober 25, 2001, and the remainder vested onb@ci2b, 2002.
These options vested on November 1, 2003.

These options vested on September 30, 2005.

These options vested on June 23, 2006.

These options vested on May 11, 2007.

These options vested on July 9, 2001.

These options vested on March 9, 2001.

Options for the purchase of 7,700 shares vestelliiynl, 2001, and the remainder vested on JulpQ22
These options vested on November 1, 2003.

These options vested on September 30, 2005.

These options vested on June 23, 2006.

These options vested on May 11, 2007.

These options vested on July 9, 2001.

Options for the purchase of 7,800 shares vestelliiynl, 2001, and the remainder vested on JulpQ22
These options vested on November 1, 2003.

These options vested on September 30, 2005.

These options vested on June 23, 2006.

These options shares vested on May 11, 2007.

PENSION BENEFITS

We do not have a pension plan otien the 401(k) plan available to all employees.

401(k) Plan

We implemented an employee savimgs retirement plan (the “401(k) Plan”) in 2005ttimintended to be a tayualified plat

covering substantially all employees. Under thiengeof the 401(k) Plan, employees may elect tordmute up to 90% of their compensation
the statutory prescribed limit, if less. We may, car discretion, match employee contributions. Wade matching contributions
approximately $111,000, $0, and $0 in 2007, 2066,2005, respectively.
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POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CATROL

The following table identifies thgpes and amounts of payments that shall be maddrtdhomas Shaw, our Chief Execui

Officer, in the event of a termination of his empitent or a change in control per his Employmente&grent. Such payments shall be n

by us

and shall be one-time, lump sum payments.

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN C ONTROL
ASSUMING OCCURRENCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20071

A Payment
Equal to the
Salary Amounts Pro-Rata Greater of Payment
Through Owed Under Portion of Salary Through Equal to
Trigger Benefit Eligible Trigger Date or 90 Day¢ Value of

Payment Triggering Event Event Date Plans® Bonus for 24 Months Salary Payments®

Death X X X — —

Disability X X X 800,00( 800,00(

Termination With Caus X X — —

Termination Without Caus X X X 800,00( 800,00(

Resignation (Other Than After a

Change in Control X X X — 98,63( 98,63(

Resignation (After a Change in

Control) X X X 800,00( 800,00(

(1) The above payments describe obliga tions undeiSHaw’s agreement as written. However, we and Mr. Shawg hgreed to operate
plan under the final Regulations issued under 8edi09A of the Internal Revenue Code such thataityued payment would r
constitute norgualified defined compensation. The Employment &grent is in the process of being modified to enslia¢ no right
thereunder would constitute non-qualified definechpensat ion.

2 Mr. Shaw participates in our benefit plans whichrad discriminate in scope, terms, or operatiofawor of executive officers. Su
plans are generally available to all salaried eygés. Accordingly, the value of such paymentsas included in the Value o
Payments” column.

3) This value does not include payments under ourefitgplans for reasons set forth in footnote 1 aboin addition, it does not includ

value for a bonus as bonuses are authorized oniydieally and there is currently no authorized bemprogram. Furthermore, Mr. Stk
has never been given a bonus. In addition, thisevassumes that the triggering event occurred ecemMber 31, 2007. Authoriz
payments under the Employment Agreement are algpechto one dollar less than the amount that woelgse Mr. Shaw to be 1
recipient of a parachute payment under Section 280@ the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

Mr. Shaw is obligated under the HEogment Agreement for one year not to compete wih to recruit or attempt to recruit

employees or to solicit our customers or accountstlierwise to make known our customers and acsdonbthers unless his termination
without cause or occurs after a change in control.

37




COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

The following table identifies thypes and amounts of compensation earned by owclns (with the exception of those that
named Executive Officers as described in footndiethe table) in the last Fiscal Year:

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2007

Fees
Earned or
Paid in All Other

Cash Compensation Total
Name %) %) (%)
@w (b) (9) (h)
Marco Laterze $ 3,00 $ — $ 3,00C
Amy Mack — 4,50 4,50C
Marwan Sake 1,50C — 1,50C
Jimmie Shiu, Former Directc 2,00C — 2,00C
Clarence Zierhu 3,00C — 3,00C

(1) Messrs. Thomas J. Shaw, Douglas WwaPoand Steven Wisner are Named Executive Offigdre are also Directors. Th

compensation is reflected in the Summary Compersatid other tables presented earlier.
(2) Ms. Mack’s Company was paid thesed&uim 2007 for participation in a clinical trial.

Narrative Explanation of Director Compensation Eafor 2007

In 2007 we paid each nemployee Director a fee of $500 per meeting anulvarsed travel expenses. In the past, we haveeg
to each Director (except Mr. Shaw) stock optionsG@mmon Stock. We do not pay any additional am&diat committee participation
special assignment.

Generally, employee Directors asmpensated as discussed in the COMPENSATION DISCOSRAND ANALYSIS. However
one employee, Mr. Thomas J. Shaw, our President GB®, is compensated pursuant to an employmenteagnat. Please see
Compensation Pursuant to Employment Agreemeat forth above for an in depth summary of thegeof such agreement.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Eiggtion

The Compensation and Benefits Catemiis currently composed of Messrs. Clarencehziteeind Marco Laterza.
Dr. Jimmie Shiu, a former independent Director vegpointed to the committee on August 8, 2006. Ibiu resigned as a Director
November 19, 2007. Each of these current and fommembers of this committee is/was an independesrd member at the time of tF
service on the committee and none have ever beplogees.

There are no interlocking Directorsexecutive officers between us and any otherpaom. Accordingly, none of our executi
officers or Directors served as a Director for &ieotentity one of whose executives or Directorsextion our Board of Directors.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation and Benefits Catemihas reviewed and discussed the COMPENSATIOSICDISSION AND ANALYSIS
required by Item 402(b) with Management and, basedhe review and discussions referred to in pagr(e)(5)(i)(A) of Item 402, h
recommended to the Board of Directors that the CEMBATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS be included in threport.

Clarence Zierht
Marco Laterz
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattesr.
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The following table sets forth infeation relating to our equity compensation plamsfaDecember 31, 2007:
Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of securities

remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities to Weighted average equity compensation
be issued upon exercis exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected
warrants and rights warrants and rights in column(a))
Plan category (@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans appro\
by security holder 2,451,15! $ 8.92 2,548,84!
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holder 286,00( $ 7.56 N/A
Total 2,737,15! N/A 2,548,84!
* In conjunction with a $3 million Loan Agreement aiheé purchase of 525,000 Series V shares by Katielum, we issued optic

for the purchase of 136,439 shares of our CommookSit an exercise price of $1 per share to KagtedReum and two affiliates. Options
136,436 shares were exercised in 2005.

In conjunction with a $2.5 milliaworking capital loan, purchase of a real estate aoid a $1,000,000 construction loan (which
never drawn on) we issued an option to Katie Petirol for the purchase of 100,000 shares of our Camtock at an exercise price of $1
share. The options were exercised in 2005.

We authorized the issuance of atioopfor the purchase of 200,000 shares of CommioekSto Jimmie Shiu, M.D., for his pi
services in introducing us to purchasers of varieerses of Preferred Stock as well as for introdgais to Mr. Jack Jackson, who contrc
Katie Petroleum. The option is exercisable at $®®&0share and will terminate in 2012.

We authorized the issuance of aioogor the purchase of 25,000 shares of CommonkSio Mr. Harry Watson for his past servi
in assisting us in protecting our intellectual prdp. The option is exercisable at $6.90 per shackwill terminate in 2012.

In connection with a Consulting Agment with International Export and Consulting,iggied an option for the purchase of 61
shares of Common Stock to Marwan Saker. The opgiexercisable at $10.00 and will expire in 2010.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table sets forth @@ntinformation regarding the beneficial ownersbiur capital stock as of March 1, 2008, for ¢

person known by us to own beneficially five percentnore of the voting capital stock. Each sharééoldentified in the table possesses
voting and investment power with respect to hibershares except as noted below.

Name and Address o Amount and Nature of Percent of
Title of Class Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership Class®
Common Stocl
Thomas J. Sha® 11,280,00! 47.2%%?
511 Lobo Lane,
P.O. Box 9

Little ElIm, TX 7506¢-0009

Suzanne M. Augus® 2,800,001 11.7%%
5310 Buena Vista Drive

Frisco, TX 7503«

Lillian E. Salernd® 2,434,50( 10.2%
432 Edwards
Lewisville, TX 75067

Signia Capital Management, LL®) 1,549,46: 6.5%
108 N. Washington St., Ste. 305
Spokane, Washington 992

Class B Stocl

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

Thomas J. Sha 80,00( 3.5%
Lillian E. Salernc 12,50( 1%

The percentages of Common Stock are based on 283@B2hares of Common Stock equivalents consistfin23,800,064 shares
Common Stock outstanding and 92,500 shares of iPeef&Stock convertible by the above persons wiGindays of this Report. T
percentages of Class B Stock are based on 2,285l266s of Class B Stock outstanding.

80,000 of the shares identified as Common Stockpesterred shares which are eligible for conversida Common Stock within ¢
days of the Report. 2,800,000 of the shares aredvby Ms. Suzanne August (see footnote 3) but@méolled by Mr. Shaw, pursuz
to a Voting Agreement. These shares are permaneatitrolled by Mr. Shaw until such time as theg apold by Ms. August. The
shares are included in calculating Mr. Shaw’s Comi8tock equivalents and percentages in the abole. ta

Ms. Augusts 2,800,000 shares are controlled by Mr. Thom&Shaw, pursuant to a Voting Agreement. See foot@oter a mor
detailed explanation. Accordingly, they are alsoluded in the Common Stock equivalents and peagest for Thomas Shaw in
above table.

12,500 of the shares identified as Common Stockpeterred shares which are eligible for conversisto Common Stock within ¢
days of the Report.

The number of shares held by this entity was obthiftom a Schedule 13G/A filed on February 4, 2008ursuant to the Sched
13G/A, Signia Capital Management, LLC has sole ngotpower for 635,938 of the shares and sole diipespower for a total «
1,549,462 shares (inclusive of the sole voting pstares).
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

Amount and
Nature of
Name of Beneficial Percent of
Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class
Common Stocl
As a Grour. Officers and Director 12,565,901 50.C%
As Individuals Thomas J. Sha{f) 11,280,001 44.9%
Marwan Sakef® 461,00( 1.8%
Clarence Zierhut? 61,00C <1%
Douglas W. Cowaf?) 204,00( 1%
Steven R. Wisnef) 206,40( 1%
Russell B. Kuhlmar) 134,40( 1%
Michele M. Larios®) 209,10( 1%
Marco Laterzz 10,00C <1%
Class B Stocl
As a Grouf Officers and Director 435,00( 19.0%
As Individuals Thomas J. Sha 80,00( 3.5%
Marwan Sake 355,00( 15.5%

The percentages of Common Stock are based on 296MB8hares of Common Stock equivalents consistin®3,800,064 shares
Common Stock outstanding at March 1, 2008, 4354l20res of Preferred Stock convertible by the alpmrsons and options for 1
purchase of 895,900 shares of Common Stock obtaifgbthe above persons within 60 days of this Refidne percentages of Clas
stock are based on 2,285,266 shares of Class R Stastanding.

80,000 of the shares identified as Common Stockpezterred shares which are eligible for conversida Common Stock within ¢
days of the Report. 2,800,000 of the shares aren@mmStock shares owned by Ms. Suzanne August keutartrolled by Mr. Sha
pursuant to a Voting Agreement. These sharesemragmently controlled by Mr. Shaw until such tinsethey are sold by Ms. Augu:
These shares are included in calculating Mr. Sh&@emon Stock equivalents and percentages in theeatable.

355,000 shares identified as Common Stock are peefeshares which are eligible for conversion i@mmmon Stock within 60 days
this Report. The shares are held as follows: Shkesstments holds 15,500 shares of Series |V @aSsnvertible Preferred Stock ¢
25,000 shares of Series V Class B Convertible BexfeStock, Sovana Cayman Islands, Inc. holds 80@0ghares of Series IV Clas
Convertible Preferred Stock, and My Investmentslfidl4,500 shares of Series IV Class B Convertibddered Stock. Mr. Saker is
Officer or Director and shareholder for each ofstheompanies. The remaining 106,000 shares iceht#s Common Stock are shi
obtainable through the exercise of options heltibySaker within 60 days of the Report.

51,000 of these shares identified as Common Steekleares acquirable by the exercise of stock aptidgthin 60 days of the Report.
These shares identified as Common Stock are shagesrable by the exercise of stock options wisiindays of the Report.

201,400 of these shares identified as Common Stoekhares acquirable by the exercise of stockmptiithin 60 days of the Report.

These shares identified as Common Stock are shagesrable by the exercise of stock options wisiindays of the Report.

41




(8) 199,100 of these shares identified as Common Stoekhares acquirable by the exercise of stockmptiithin 60 days of the Report.

There are no arrangements, the operation of whichldvresult in a change in control of the Compaother than the fact tt
Ms. August’s shares shall cease to be controlleibyShaw under their Voting Agreement upon thaledo a third party.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ins, and Director Independence.

Related Party Transactions

We believe that all of the transactions set fortoty were made on terms no less favorable to us ¢bald have been obtained fr
unaffiliated third parties. In accordance with dwdit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee hagiewed and approved all related pi
transactions. In particular, the Audit Committee reviews all poged transactions where the amount involved meetzaeeds $120,000.

Thomas J. Shaw, our President and Chief Executffiedd who beneficially owned 35.3% of the outstangdCommon Stock (at
controlled another 11.8% pursuant to a Voting Agreet with Ms. Suzanne August) as of March 1, 20@8 paid a licensing fee of $500,!
(amortized over 17 years) by us for the exclusiveldwide licensing rights to manufacture, markedll,sand distribute retractable med
safety products. In addition, Mr. Shaw and Ms. Astgtogether, receive an aggregate five percerdltypn gross sales of all licensed prod
sold to customers over the life of the Technolodggehsing Agreement. Such license is in the prooéssing amended to cover additic
patents and products. A royalty of $1,471,046 paid in 2007.

We have an oral consulting agreement with MediTradernational Corporation, a company controlled Mg. Lillian Salerno,
shareholder holding approximately 10% of the ComrStock. It is paid $6,500 per month plus expendes2007, it was paid aggreg
consideration of $129,618.

Director Independence

The Board of Directors has the responsibility fetadlishing corporate policies and for our ovepaiformance, although it is r
involved in day-today operations. Currently, a majority (four of sevef the Directors serving on our Board of Direstare independe
Directors as defined in Section 121(A) of the figtistandards of the AMEX. Our current independeineddors are Messrs. Clarence Zier
Marwan Saker, Marco Laterza, and Ms. Amy Mack. ndienShiu, M.D. also served as a Director (priotMs. Mack’s appointment) un
November 19, 200"

The Board of Directors, in reviewing the indepermenf its members, further considered the fact Wepaid Ms. Macls compan
$4,500 in 2007 for participation in a clinical triaThe Board of Directors determined that her peledence was not compromised by
transaction.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
AUDIT FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit ofanmual financial statements
2007 and 2006 and the reviews of the financiakestaents included in our Forms T®-or services normally provided by the accounta
connection with statutory and regulatory filings foose fiscal years were $174,583 and $160,68perively.

AUDIT RELATED FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit of 40k (k) plan for 2007 and 20
were $13,500 and $0, respectively.

TAX FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foegaration of federal and state income tax retantstax consulting costs relate:
notices from taxing authorities for 2007 and 20@8ev$149,291 and $56,118, respectively.
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PRE-APPROVAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
The engagement of CF & Co., L.L.P. was entered potsuant to the approval policies and proceduréissoAudit Committee. Befo
CF & Co., L.L.P. was engaged to render serviceetigagement was approved by the Audit Committdee dnhgagement is for audit and
services which were detailed separately. The AGdinmittee implemented its approval procedurestley were not delegated to any o
party. All of the services provided were pre-apmaby the Audit Committee.
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(@ (1) Allfinancial statements: See Retractable Techgiels Inc. Index to Financial Statements on Pe2.

(2) Those financial statement schedules required fddzeby Item 8 of this form, and by paragraph igJow. Schedule 1I-Schedule of
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ethddecember 31, 2007, 2006, and 2(

Balance at
beginning Balance at
of period Additions Deductions end of period
Provision for Inventorie
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 97,31¢ $ 25,27 $ (11,29¢) $ 111,29¢
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 111,29¢ $ —  $ (61,29¢) $ 50,00(
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 50,00 $ 155,60C $ —  $ 205,60(
Provision for Accounts Receivabl
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 196,32( $ 70,85¢ $ —  $ 267,17/
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 267,17«  $ —  $ (180,14¢) % 87,03(
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 87,03C $ 166,97¢ $ — 3 254,00¢
Deferred Tax Valuatiol
Fiscal year ended 20( $ —  $ 99,28( $ — 3 99,28(
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 99,28C $ 541,14: $ —  $ 640,42
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 640,42 $ 3,026,50¢ $ — 3 3,666,93.
Provision for Rebate (A) (B)
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 3,955,85° $ 12,540,89° $ 14,052,79: $ 2,443,96(
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 2,443,96( $ 20,329,97. $ 20,061,18- $ 2,712,75(
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 2,712,75( $ 15,329,841 $ 13,404,09 $ 4,638,49:
(A) Represents estimated rebates deducted from gnossures

(B) Represents rebates credited to the distrit
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(3).  Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incamated herein by reference to exhibits previougddfwith the SEC.

(b) EXHIBITS

Exhibit No. Description of Document

3() Third Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatid RTI filed on November 1, 2004* as amendedhat Statement ¢
Change of Registered Office/Agent

3(ii) Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of R

10.1 Sample United States Distribution Agreement

10.2 Sample Foreign Distribution Agreement*

10.3 Employment Agreement between RTI and Thomas J. $lsed as of September 28, 1999 *** (This is a nganaent
compensation contrac

10.4 Technology License Agreement between Thomas J. 8haviRT| dated the 28day of June 1995***

10.5 Loan Agreement among RTI, Katie Petroleum and Thodn&haw as of the 30day of September, 2002 and Promissory
Noter+

10.6 RTI's 1999 Stock Option Plan**

10.7 First Amendment to 1999 Stock Option Plan***!

10.8 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan of RTI*

10.9 1996 Stock Option Plan for Directors and Other Vidiials***

10.10 License Agreement by and between RTI and BaiyinsiarMedical Device Co., Ltd. dated as of May 13)3{

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriimg**

311 Certification of Principal Executive Officer*

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer*

32 Section 1350 Certifications*

* Incorporated herein by reference to s Form 1-Q filed on November 14, 20(

o Filed herewitt

*kk Incorporated herein by reference to ’s Registration Statement on Forn-SB filed on June 23, 20(

Fhkk Incorporated herein by reference to ’'s Form &K filed on October 10, 200

Fkkk ok Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1+-KSB filed on March 31, 200

1) Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1+-Q filed on August 15, 200
Tt Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 10KSI-A2 filed on September 24, 20I
(c) Excluded Financial Statement Schedules: N
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the reaiigthas duly caused this repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theéoeduly authorized.

RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC
(Registrant

By: /s/ Thomas J. Sha
THOMAS J. SHAW
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

Date: March 31, 200¢

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

s/ Steven R. Wisne

Steven R. Wisne

Executive Vice President, Engineering
Production and Directc

March 31, 200¢

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa
Douglas W. Cowal
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasussrd Directol

March 31, 200¢

/sl Clarence Zierht
Clarence Zierhu
Director

March 31, 200¢

/s Amy Mack
Amy Mack
Director

March 31, 200¢

/s/ Marco Laterzi
Marco Laterze
Director

March 31, 200¢
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Exhibit 3(i)
Form 401

Filed in the Office of the
Secretary of State of Texe
Filing #: 131149700 10/24/20!

Document #: 1906497000(
Statement of Change o Image Generated Electronicall

Filing Fee: See Instructions Registered Office/Agent for Web Filing

Secretary of State
P.O. Box 13697
Austin, TX 7871-3697
FAX: 512/463-5709

Entity Information

The name of the entity is :
RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

The file number issued to the entity by the secyaté state is131149700

The registered agent and registered office of thigyeas currently shown on the records of the etaey of state are:

Ralph S. Janvey
2600 San Jacinto Tower, 2121 San Jacinto Street, I, TX, USA 75201

Change to Registered Agent/Registered Office
The following changes are made to the registeretitzand/or office information of the named entity:
Registered Agent Change
O A. The new registered agent is an organizationr{otbe entity named above) by the name of:

OR
O B. The new registered agent is an individual resichf the state whose name is:

Registered Office Change

C. The business address of the registered agdriharregistered office address is changed to:
2100 Ross Avenue, Suite 2600, Dallas, TX, USA 75201

The street address of the registered office asditatthis instrument is the same as the registegedt’s business address.
Statement of Approval

The change specified in this statement has bedwazed by the entity in the manner required byBI@C or in the manner required by the law
governing the filing entity, as applicable.

Effectiveness of Filing
A. This document becomes effective when the doauinsdiled by the secretary of state.

O B. This document becomes effective at a latez,dahich is not more than ninety (90) days fromdhee of its filing by the secretary of
state. The delayed effective date is:

Execution
The undersigned signs this document subject tpdimalties imposed by law for the submission of éenmlly false or fraudulent instrument.

Date: October 24, 2007 Douglas W. Cowan
Signature and title of authorized person(s)(segungons)

FILING OFFICE COPY




Exhibit 3(ii)
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED

BYLAWS
OF
RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

ARTICLE |

OFFICES
11 Registered Office The registered office of the Corporation shall2d®0 Ross Avenue, Suite 26
Dallas, Texas 75201 or such other address as Bballesignated by the Board of Directors. The Cafpmm ma

change its Registered Office, registered agenotr by filing a statement of change with the Segyeof State of tr
State of Texas.

1.2 Registered Agent The name of the registered agent of the Corporadt such address is Ralpt
Janvey or such other person as shall be desighgtde Board of Directors of the Corporation.

1.3 Other Offices. The Corporation may also have offices at suckrghaces, within or outside the Stat
Texas, where the Corporation is qualified to doirmess, as the Board of Directors may from timarneetdesignate,
business of the Corporation may require.

ARTICLE Il
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

2.1 Place of Meetings Meetings of shareholders entitled to vote shalhbld at any place within or withe
the State of Texas designated by the Board of Riregursuant to authority hereinafter grantedh® Board, or b
written consent of all persons entitled to vota¢laeé Any meeting is valid wherever held if heldthg written conse
of all the persons entitled to vote thereat, gie@her before or after the meeting and filed whle Secretary of ti
corporation.

2.2 Time of Annual Meeting Business Transacted. The annual meeting of theekblders entitled to v¢
shall be held on such date and at such time aklshalesignated from time to time by the Board okBtors. At suc
meeting Directors shall be elected and any othesiness may be transacted which is within the povedrshe
shareholders.

2.3 Notice of Meetings Notice of all meetings of shareholders shall beery in writing to shareholde
entitled to vote by the President, or Secretanjyothe Officer or person calling the meeting,inrgcase of his neglect
refusal, or if there is no person charged withdhgy of giving notice, by any Director or shareleldThe notice sh:
be given to each shareholder, either personalbygrepaid mail. If mailed, such notice shall berded to be deliver:
when deposited in the United States mail addresséae shareholder at his address as it appeatiseostock transf
books of the Corporation, with postage thereon.paid




2.4 Time and Notice Notice of any meeting of shareholders shall v @ each shareholder entitlec
vote not less than ten (10) days nor more thay §0) days before the meeting, except in the chsemeeting for tr
purpose of approving a merger or consolidation @gent, in which case the notice must be given ess than twen
(20) days prior to the date of the meeting.

2.5 Contents of Notice Notice of any meeting of shareholders shall dpdahie place, date, and hour of
meeting. The Notice may state the means of any term@mmunications by which shareholders may beiderex
present and may vote at the meeting. The notia# also specify the purpose of the meeting iitispecial meetir
or if its purpose, or one of its purposes, willtbeconsider a proposed amendment of the Articlesadrporation, t
consider a proposed merger or consolidation, teiden a proposed reduction of stated capital witltmoendment,
consider a voluntary dissolution or the revocatbma voluntary dissolution by the act of the Cogimn, or to consids
a proposed disposition of all, or substantially afl the assets of the Corporation outside of ttdnary course «
business.

2.6 Notice of Adjourned Meeting When a shareholdersieeting is adjourned for thirty (30) days or m
notice of the adjourned meeting shall be givennathé case of an original meeting. When a meesnadjourned fc
less than thirty (30) days, it is not necessargit@ any notice of the time and place of the adjedrmeeting or of ti
business to be transacted thereat, other thanrmuacement at the meeting at which the adjournmseaken.

2.7 Call of Special MeetingsUpon request in writing to the President, Vieesident, or Secretary, sen
registered mail or delivered to the Officer in marsby any persons entitled to call a meeting @rsholders, the
forthwith shall cause notice to be given to therghalders entitled to vote, that a meeting willhe¢d at a time fixed t
the Officer, not less than ten (10) days afterrdeeipt of the request. If the notice is not givathin seven (7) da
after the date of delivery, or the date of mailofghe request, the persons calling the meeting fixathe time of th
meeting and give the notice in the manner provistethese Amended and Restated Bylaws (“Bylawsigthinc
contained in this section shall be construed astifig) fixing, or affecting the time or date whennaeeting ¢
shareholders called by action of the Board of Doecmay be held.

2.8 Persons Entitled to Call Special MeetingS$pecial meetings of the shareholders, for anyqss
whatsoever, may be called at any time by any offéilewing: (1) the President; (2) the Board of &dtors; (3) th
President at the request of the holders of nottlesms 66 2/3% of all outstanding shares of the G@fmon entitled t
vote at such meetings.

2.9 Quorum of ShareholdersThe presence in person or by proxy of the persontled to vote Fift
Percent (50%) of the voting shares at any meetogstdutes a quorum for the transaction of busiresspt a
otherwise provided by statute or these Bylaws.

2.10 Loss of Quorum In the absence of a quorum, any meeting of sleédets may be adjourned from ti
to time by the vote of a majority of the sharestksat to vote, the holders of which are either prasin person ¢
represented by proxy thereat, but no other busimagsbe
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transacted. Notwithstanding the above, shareholpiegsent at a duly organized meeting with a quopuesent me
continue to do business until adjournment, notwéhding the withdrawal of enough shareholders &wdedess than
quorum.

2.11 Record Date for Determination of ShareholdeFse Board of Directors may fix in advance a degéh
record date for any such determination of sharedre|dsuch date in any case to be no more than(f@y days and,
case of meeting of shareholders, not less tha(l@ndays prior to the date on which the particaletion requiring suc
determination of shareholders is to be taken.

2.12 Date of Notice or Resolution for Determination dia®eholders If no record date is fixed for t
determination of shareholders entitled to noticerdab vote at a meeting of shareholders, the olat@hich notice of tr
meeting is mailed or the date on which the resmtutif the Board of Directors declaring such divides adopted, i
the case may be, is the record date for such detation of shareholders.

2.13  Adjourned Meetings When any determination of shareholders entited/dte at any meeting
shareholders has been made as provided in thid&rsiuch determination shall apply to any adjowentithereof.

2.14 Inspectors of ElectionThe Chairman of each meeting of shareholderd appbint one or more persc
to act as inspector(s) of election. The inspectaf®lection shall report to the meeting the numiiieshares of ea
class and series of stock, and of all classesgsepted either in person or by proxy that are ledtito vote. Th
inspector(s) of election shall oversee the votéhefshareholders for the election of Directors fomdany other matte
that are put to a vote of shareholders entitlegdi® at the meeting; judge the qualifications odrsholders votini
collect, count, and report the results of ball@stdy any shareholders voting in person; and paruch other duti
as may be required by the Chairman of the meetinigeoshareholders.

2.15 Notice of Shareholder Busines#At an annual meeting of shareholders, only sug$iness shall |
conducted as shall have been brought before thérmgd€@ by or at the direction of the Board of Bitors or (ii) by an
shareholder of the Corporation entitled to vote welbmplies with the notice procedure set forth. Bosiness to t
properly brought before an annual meeting by aet@der, the shareholder entitled to vote must lgven timely
notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of ther@ration.

To be timely, a shareholdsrhotice must be delivered to or mailed and reckatdhe principal executive offic
of the Corporation, not less than foftye (45) days before the date the Corporation eagits proxy materials for t
prior year's annual meeting (such date to be ifiedtin the prior year’'s proxy statement). A shaieler’s notice to th
Secretary shall set forth as to each matter theekblder proposes to bring before the annual mgetie following
information: (a) a brief description of the busimekesired to be brought before the annual meetdgtlze reasons f
conducting such business at the annual meetindhébipame and address of the shareholder propesitty busines
(c) the number of shares of the Corporation which l@eneficially owned by the shareholder; and () enaterie
interest of the shareholder




in such business. Notwithstanding anything in tH&glaws to the contrary, no business shall be cotetliat an annt
meeting except in accordance with these proceddies.Chairman of an annual meeting shall, if thetsfavarran
determine and declare to the meeting that busiwassnot properly brought before the meeting anaicitordance wi
these provisions, and if he should so determineshiadl so declare to the meeting and any such essinot proper
brought before the meeting shall not be transacted.

2.16  Voting List . At least eleven (11) days before each meetinghaireholders, a complete list of
shareholders entitled to vote at such meeting paajpurnment thereof, arranged in alphabeticaégndith the addre
of and the type and number of shares held by eddil, be kept on file at the registered office leé Corporation ar
shall be subject to inspection of any shareholdeind the whole time of the meeting. The share lpgwided by th
Corporations transfer agent shall be prima facie evidence aghb are the shareholders entitled to examine Bsic
However, failure to prepare and to make availabtghdist in the manner provided above shall no¢@fthe validity ¢
any action taken at the meeting. Alternatively, likeof shareholders may be kept on a reasonatugssible electror
network, if the information required to gain accdesthe list is provided with the notice of the reg. The
Corporation is not required to include any eledtrooontact information of any shareholder on thd. lilf the
Corporation elects to make the list available onelattronic network, the Corporation will take reagble steps
ensure that the information is available only tareholders of the Corporation. The list will beguced and kept op
at the place and for the duration of the meeting &l be subject to inspection by any shareholgersent. If th
meeting is held by remote communication, the lisstrbe open to the examination of any shareholatethke duratio
of the meeting on a reasonable accessible electrativork, and the information required to accésslist must b
provided to shareholders with the notice of thetmge

2.17 Votes Per ShareEach outstanding share, regardless of clasd,tshahtitled to one vote on each me
submitted to a vote at a meeting of the sharehs|aetept to the extent that the voting rightshafres of any class
classes are limited by the Articles of Incorponatias amended.

2.18 Cumulative Voting. Directors shall be elected by a plurality votein@lative voting shall not |
permitted.

2.19 Voting by Voice and Ballot Elections for Directors need not be by ballotagsla shareholder entitle
vote demands election by ballot at the electiontzefdre the voting begins.

2.20 Proxies. A shareholder may vote either in person or byxyprexecuted in writing by a sharehol
entitled to vote or by his authorized attorneyantf No proxy shall be valid after eleven (11) nisnfrom the date of |
execution unless otherwise provided in the proxactEproxy shall be revocable unless expressly geavtherein to t
irrevocable, and in no event shall it remain irresdole for a period of more than eleven (11) monthtelegram tele
cablegram, or similar transmission by the sharedrolok a photographic, photostatic, facsimile, oneotsimila
reproduction of a writing executed by the sharetoWll be treated as an
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execution in writing. Any electronic transmissionust contain or be accompanied by information frehich it can b
determined that the transmission was authorizetthéghareholder.

2.21  Waiver of Notice. Any notice required by law or these Bylaws maywasved by the execution by 1
person entitled to the notice of a written waivesach notice, which may be signed before or dftertime stated in tl
notice.

2.22  Action Without Meeting. Any action that may be taken at a meeting ofsth@reholders, may be tal
without a meeting if authorized by a writing datet signed by the shareholder or shareholders gyaahless than tl
minimum number of votes that would be necessangke such action at a meeting at which the holdél share
entitled to vote on the action were present andd.of he writing authorizing the action without aetieg must be file
with the President of the Corporation. An elecitotransmission (if the Corporation can determitat tthe
transmission was transmitted by the shareholdetherdate it was transmitted) by a shareholder proguction of
writing signed by a shareholder is regarded asesidgar the purposes of this Section of the Bylasnsent given
electronic communication is not regarded as deddeuntil it is reproduced in paper form and dekeerto thi
Corporation. Any signed consent or consents, sigaed copy thereof, shall be placed in the MinBo®k of the
Corporation. Prompt notice of any action takensbyreholders without a meeting by less than unamsnwaritter
consent, if permitted, must be given to those st@ders who did not consent in writing to the actibut advanc
notice is not required.

2.23  Conduct of Meetings At every meeting of the shareholders, the Presjde in his absence, the Vice-
President designated by the President, or in teerad® of any such designation, a Chairman (whd bhabne of th
Vice-Presidents, if any is present) chosen by majonitynterest of the shareholders of the Corporati@sent in persc
or by proxy and entitled to vote, shall act as @han. The Secretary of the Corporation, or in biseace, an Assist:
Secretary, shall act as Secretary of all meetirfigheoshareholders. In the absence at such meetitige Secretary
Assistant Secretary, the Chairman may appoint @angérson to act as Secretary of the meeting.

2.24 Telephone or Remote Communication Meetingdhareholders may participate in and hold a mgdty
means of a conference telephone or other similanshef remote communication equipment so thatatigpants il
the meeting can communicate with each other. ddaation in such a meeting will constitute preseatéhe meetin
except when a person participates in the meetinth®express purpose of objecting to the transaaif any busine:
on the ground that the meeting is not lawfully edllor convened. If voting takes place at such atimg, the
Corporation must (A) implement reasonable meastaesgerify that each person considered present amohified t
vote at the meeting is a shareholder and (B) miaiataecord of any vote or other action taken atrtteeting.
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ARTICLE I
DIRECTORS

3.1 Directors Defined “Directors” when used in relation to any power or duty reqgiriollective actior
means “Board of Directors.”

3.2 Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporation dhdoaporate powers shall be exercised b
under authority of the Board of Directors, subjéxtlimitation imposed by law the Articles of Incamation, a
amended, or these Bylaws as to action which regain¢horization or approval by the shareholders.

3.3 Number and Election of Directors The business and affairs of the Corporationl dleamanaged by
Board of Directors, which shall have and may exeraill of the powers of the Corporation, excephsaagare expres:
conferred upon the Shareholders by law, by theckediof Incorporation or by these Bylaws. Subjedhe rights of th
holders of shares of any series of preferred stihen outstanding to elect additional Directors undpecific
circumstances, the Board of Directors shall cortfistot less than three (3) nor more than tweortg-(21) persons. T
exact number of Directors within the minimum andximaum limitations specified in the preceding sectgishall b
fixed from time to time by either: (i) the Board Directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by pontg of the entir
Board of Directors, (ii) the affirmative vote ofelinolders of 66 2/3% or more of the voting powealbbf the shares
the Corporation entitled to vote generally in tHecgon of Directors, voting together as a singlass, or (iii) thi
Articles of Incorporation. No decrease in the numdieDirectors constituting the Board of Directaisall shorten tr
term of any incumbent Director; provided, howebat the term of existing Directors may be shorteteecomply witl
the Texas Corporation Act. The Directors shall heded into two classes, as nearly equal in nunasepossible, wii
the term of office of the first class to expiretla 2001 annual meeting of shareholders and the @ééthe second cla
to expire at the 2002 annual meeting of sharehsl@ar initial two (2) year termand with the members of each clas
hold office until their successors have been etkated qualified. At each annual meeting of shaiddrsl following suc
initial classification and election, Directors, @led to succeed those Directors whose terms exghied|, be elected for
term of office for the class whose term of officg@kes at all such future annual meetings.

3.4 Vacancies Vacancies in the Board of Directors shall existhe case of the happening of any oi
following events: (a) the death, resignation, amogal of any Directors; (b) the authorized numbémDirectors it
increased; (c) at any annual, regular, or speciaktmmg of shareholders at which any Director isctel@, th
shareholders entitled to vote fail to elect thd &ulthorized number of Directors to be voted fortheit meeting; ¢
(d) the terms of Directors elected pursuant toddimd default voting rights end prior to a meetihthe shareholders.

3.5 Declaration of Vacancy The Board of Directors may declare vacant the®efdf a Director in either
the following cases: (a) if he is adjudged incorepeby an order of court,
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or finally convicted of a felony; or (b) if withigixty (60) days after notice of his election, heslmot accept the offi
either in writing or by attending a meeting of 8eard of Directors.

3.6 Filling Vacancies by DirectorsVacancies of generally elected Directors mayilkedfby an affirmativ.
vote of a majority of the remaining generally etectDirectors, though less than a quorum, or byla samainini
generally elected Director. Vacancies of Directetected pursuant to a dividend default election dogferre:
shareholders shall be filled by the remaining Oiwex so elected. Each Director so elected shall bffice until hic
successor is elected at an annual, regular orapeeeting of the shareholders.

3.7 Filling Vacancies by Shareholders Reduction of Authorized Number of Directordn the event
vacancy in the number of generally elected Directorin the number of Directors elected pursuamefault dividen
voting rights of preferred shareholders exists isnabot filled by the appropriate remaining Direstothe vacancy m.
be filled by a vote of either the common stockhadder the holders of preferred shares with thetrighelect th
Director whose vacancy is being filled, as apprateri If the Board of Directors accepts the resignadf a Directo
tendered to take effect at a future time, the gmpate remaining Directors failing to fill the vasay within ter
(10) days of the effective date of the resignatibie, shareholders may elect a successor to take affiless the Boa
fills the vacancy prior to the shareholderste. A reduction of the authorized number of Dioes does not remove &
Director prior to the expiration of his term of iof.

3.8 Removal of Directors Any Director, or the entire Board of Directorsaynbe removed from office

any time only for cause and only by the affirmatwate of the holders of 6&/3% or more of the voting power of all
the shares of the Corporation entitled to votehm ¢lection of such Directors. “Caussiall be exclusively defined
mean: (a) conviction of a felony, (b) proof of tgeoss negligence or willful misconduct of such DBtog which it
materially detrimental to the Corporation, or (cd@f of a breach of fiduciary duty of such Directanich is materiall
detrimental to the Corporation.

3.9 Place of Meetings Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shallheld at any place within
without the State of Texas which has been desigrfaben time to time by resolution of the Board grwritten conset
of all members of the Board. In the absence of sladignation, regular meetings shall be held atebestered office
the Corporation. Special meetings of the Board ayeld either at a place so designated or atethistered office
Any regular or special meeting is valid, whereveldh if held on written consent of all members lo¢ Board give
either before or after the meeting and filed wite Secretary of the Corporation.

3.10 Regular and Special MeetingRegular meetings of the Board of Directors shalheld at such time a
place as shall from time to time be determinedhigyBoard. Special meetings of the Board of Direcsirall be calle
by the President or if he is absent or is unablkefuses to act, by a Vice-President or by anyDivectors.

3.11 Notice of Meeting Written notice of the time and place of the regur special meetings of the Bo
of Directors shall be delivered personally to eBafector, or sent to each
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Director by mail or by other form of written commaation at least two (2) days before the meetihthe address of
Director is not shown on the records and is nadifgascertainable, notice shall be addressedrtodtithe city of plac
in which the meetings of the Directors are regylaeld. Notice of the time and place of holdingaaijourned meetir
of a meeting need not be given to absent Diredftding time and place are fixed at the meeting atjed.

3.12 Call of Regular Meeting All regular meetings of the Board of Directorstbis Corporation shall |
called by the President, or, if he is absent an&ble or refuses to act, by any Vice-Presideblyany two Directors.

3.13 Validation of Meeting Defectively Called or Noticed he transactions of any meeting of the Boal
Directors, however called and noticed or wherewdd hare as valid as though had at a meeting delly after regule
call and notice, if a quorum is present, and ihei before or after the meeting, each of the Darscnot present sign:
waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meetorgan approval of the minutes thereof. All suchwees, consents,
approvals shall be filed with the corporate recondsmade a part of the minutes of the meeting. rslémce by
Director at a meeting shall constitute a waivenatice of the meeting, unless the express purpmssutch attendance
to present the objection that the meeting is nefuly called or convened.

3.14 Quorum. A majority of the authorized number of Direct@@nstitutes a quorum of the Board for
transaction of business.

3.15 Majority Action . Every act or decision done or made by a majaftyghe Directors present at ¢
meeting duly held at which a quorum is presentésdct of the Board of Directors, unless an aatioa greater numb
is required by the Articles of Incorporation, asesntled, or these Bylaws. Each Director who is pitesea meeting wi
be deemed to have assented to any action takemlainseeting unless his dissent to the action isredtin the minutt
of the meeting, or unless he shall file his writthssent thereto with the Secretary of the meatinghall forward suc
dissent by registered mail to the Secretary ofdbporation immediately after such meeting.

3.16  Action by Consent of Board Without MeetingAny action required or permitted to be taken bg
Board of Directors under the law shall individuadly collectively be taken without a meeting, with@uior notice an
without a vote if a consent in writing to such aatis signed by all members of the Board of Direct&uch writte
consent or consents shall be filed with the minofete proceedings of the Board. Such action hytew consent shg
have the same force and effect as a unanimousovatech Directors. A telegram, telex, cablegramothier electron
transmission by a Director consenting to an actmrbe taken and transmitted by a Director is careid writter
signed, and dated for the purposes of this Sedtithhe transmission sets forth or is delivered witformation fron
which the Corporation can determine that the trassion was transmitted by the Director and the detevhich th
Director transmitted the transmission. Any cectife or other document filed under the law whidhates to action ¢
taken shall state that the action was taken byiorars written consent of the Board of Directorshwiit a meeting ai
that these Bylaws authorize the Directors to spaw such statement shall be prima facie evidehsach authority.
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3.17 Adjournment. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of thee€iors present may adjourn from tim
time until the time fixed for the next regular magtof the Board.

3.18 Conduct of Meetings At every meeting of the Board of Directors, theaigman of the Board
Directors, if there shall be such an Officer, ahdat, the President, or in his absence a \Recesident designated
him, or in the absence of such designation, a @tairchosen by a majority of the Directors pressm)l preside. Tt
Secretary of the Corporation shall act as Secrathtlie Board of Directors. In case the Secretagll e absent fro
any meeting, the Chairman may appoint any persacttas Secretary of the meeting.

3.19 Indemnification of Directors and Officers’he Board of Directors shall authorize the Coation to pa
or reimburse any present or former Director or €ffiof the Corporation any costs or expenses dgtaatl necessari
incurred by him in any action, suit, or proceediagvhich he is made a party by reason of his hgldinch positior
provided, however, that he shall not receive suctemnification if he be finally adjudicated therembe liable fc
gross negligence. The indemnification herein pregicshall also extend to good faith expendituresuried ir
anticipation of, or preparation for, threateneghmposed litigation. The Board of Directors maypnoper cases, exte
the indemnification to cover the good faith setigrmof any such action, suit, or proceeding, whefibenally instituter
or not to the maximum extent permitted by law.

3.20 Interested DirectorsAny contract or other transaction between thep@a@tion and any of its Directc
(or any corporation or entity in which any of itsr&tors is directly or indirectly interested) dhbé valid for al
purposes notwithstanding the presence of such iret the meeting authorizing such contract ondagtion, or h
participation in such meeting. The foregoing shabvever, apply only if the interest of each sugre&ior is known ¢
disclosed to the Board of Directors and it shallertheless authorize or ratify such contract andeation by a majori
of the Directors present, each such interestedcidirdo be counted in determining whether a quolsipresent, but n
in calculating the majority necessary to carry suate. This section shall not be construed to iz any contract
transaction which would be valid in the absencthisf paragraph.

3.21 Committees The Board of Directors, by an affirmative voteaomajority of the members constitut
the Board of Directors, may appoint such committessch shall have and may exercise such powershab Ise
conferred or authorized by resolution of the Bo&tdwever, no such committee shall have power dnaity to tak
any action that is specifically required by statictdbe taken by the entire Board of Directors. Ajanty of any suc
committee may determine its action and fix the tiamel place of its meetings unless the Board of diors sha
otherwise provide. The Board of Directors, by saffirmative vote, shall have power at any time barmge the powe
and members of such committee. In the absencesquadlification of any member of such committee @nmittees, th
member or members thereof present at any meetidgnah disqualified from voting, whether or not he tbey
constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint amatmember of the Board of Directors to act at thestimg in the
place of any such absent or disqualified membeachEEommittee shall keep regular minutes of itstmgge and repo
the same to the Board of Directors when




required. At meetings of any committee, a majoatythe members of that committee constitutes aruquofor the
transaction of business, and the act of a majofitthe members present at any meeting at whichoaugu is presel
will be the act of the committee, except as othsevspecifically provided by statute, the Articléddrecorporation, &
amended, or these Bylaws. The designation of anyntittee of the Board of Directors and the delegathereto ¢
authority will not operate to relieve the Boardifectors or any member thereof of any responsybithposed on tr
Board or the member by law.

3.22 Telephone or Remote Communication MeetingBirectors may participate in and hold a meetiy
means of a conference telephone or other similansief remote communication equipment so thatatigpants ii
the meeting can communicate with each other. ddaation in such a meeting will constitute preseatéhe meetin
except when a person participates in the meetingh®express purpose of objecting to the transaaif any busine:
on the ground that the meeting is not lawfully edllor convened. If voting takes place at such a&timg the
Corporation must: (A) implement reasonable meastoeserify that each person considered presentpamohitted t
vote at the meeting is a Director and (B) maintanecord of any vote or other action taken at teeting.

3.23 Compensation of Directors Directors may receive compensation for theivises and reimburseme
for their expenses established by the Board ofdiors, by resolution, provided that nothing heneitt preclude an
Director from serving the Corporation in any othapacity and receiving compensation for that setvic

3.24 Resignations A Director may resign at any time by giving weit or electronic transmission of a no
to the Chairman of the Board of Directors. Thagmstion will take effect as of the date of theaipt of notice or ar
later time specified therein, and, unless othersisecified, the acceptance of the resignation matl be necessary
make it effective.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

4.1 Number and Titles The Officers of the Corporation shall be a Presida VicePresident, a Secreta
and a Treasurer. The Corporation may also haviheadliscretion of the Board of Directors, a Chamnaé the Boarc
one or more additional VicBresidents, one or more Assistant Secretariespon#re Assistant Treasurers, and ¢
other Officers as may be appointed in accordante twe provisions of Section 4.3 of this Articlen®©person may hc
two or more offices.

4.2 Election. The Officers of the Corporation, except such €fifs as may be appointed in accordance
the provisions of Section 4.3 or Section 4.5 of #iticle, shall be chosen by the Board of Direst@nd each shall hc
his office until he shall resign or shall be remd\a otherwise disqualified to serve, or his susoeshall be elect
and qualified.

4.3 Subordinate Officers The Board of Directors may appoint such othetid@fs or agents as the busir
of the Corporation may require, each of whom shalldl office for such
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period, have such authority, and perform such dwggare provided in these Bylaws or as the BoBRirectors ma
from time to time determine. The Board of Directoray delegate to any Officer or committee the powexppoint an
such subordinate Officers, committees, or ageotspécify their duties, and to determine their cengation.

4.4 Removal and ResignatiomAny Officer may be removed, either with or with@ause, by a majority
the Directors at any regular or special meetinghef Board, or, except in case of an Officer chdsgithe Board ¢
Directors, by any committee or Officer upon whonslspower of removal may be conferred by the Bodrigectors
provided, however, that such removal shall not lté wrejudice to the contract rights, if any, oétherson remove
Any Officer may resign at any time by giving writtenotice to the Board of Directors or to the Prestd or th
Secretary of the Corporation. Any such resignasball take effect at the date of the receipt othsootice or at ar
later time specified therein; and, unless othervaigecified therein, the acceptance of such resmmaghall not b
necessary to make it effective.

4.5 Vacancies If the office of the President, Videresident, Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Segr@at
any), or Assistant Treasurer (if any) becomes vialsgmeason of death, resignation, removal, ormifse, the Board «
Directors shall elect a successor who shall hdidefor the unexpired term and until his success@lected.

4.6 Chairman of the BoardThe Chairman of the Board, if there shall be saiclOfficer, shall, if presel
preside at all meetings of the Board of Directord at all meetings of the shareholders and sha# ltze responsibili
of directing and consulting with the President aogervising the President in the discharge offdili® duties hereaft
specified in Section 4.7. Further, the Chairmarthef Board is hereby authorized to exercise, inahsence of tt
President, the same authority and powers as aetnhaéer vested in the President, except when wikerrequired b
law.

4.7 President Subject to the direction of the Board of Direstoand subject to the powers vested ir
Chairman of the Board by these Bylaws, if therellda such an Officer, the President shall be tiefCExecutivi
Officer of the Corporation and, as such, shall &ponsible for the general supervision, directaorg control of th
business and Officers of the Corporation, and stalk the general powers and duties of managernsaatly vested i
the office of the President of a corporation, by Board of Directors or the Bylaws. Within this laarity and in th
course of his duties he shall:

(&) Conduct Meetings Preside at all meetings of the shareholders ianthe absence of the Chairman of
Board, at all meetings of the Board of Directorsl amall be ex officio a member of all the standoggnmittees
including the Executive Committee, if any.

(b) Sign Share CertificatesSign all certificates of stock of the Corporatianconjunction with the Secretary
Assistant Secretary, unless otherwise ordereddBtard of Directors.

(c) Execute InstrumentsWhen authorized by the Board of Directors, execntthe name of the Corporat
deeds, conveyances, notices, leases, checks,, dfifi®f exchange,
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warrants, promissory notes, bonds, debenturesiamist and other papers and instruments in writing.

(d) Hire and Fire EmployeesSubject to the authorization of the Board of Dioes, appoint and remo
employ and discharge, and prescribe the dutiesfiantie compensation of all agents, employees, @atks of th
Corporation other than the duly appointed Officerghe Corporation.

(e) Meetings of the Other Corporatiaridnless otherwise directed by the Board of Direstattend in person
by substitute appointed by him, and act and votbaalf of the Corporation, at all meetings of shareholders of al
corporation in which this Corporation holds stock.

4.8 Vice-President In the absence or disability of the Presiderd,\ticePresidents, in order of their rank
fixed by the Board of Directors, or, if not rankelde VicePresident designated by the Board of Directord| pe&orm
all the duties of the President, and when so adivadl have all the powers of and be subject tthallrestrictions on tl
President.

4.9 Secretary The Secretary shall:

(@) Sign Share CertificatesSign, with the President or a Viéresident, certificates for the shares of
Corporation.

(b) Attest Bylaws Attest and keep at the principal office of ther@@wation the original or a copy of its Byla
as amended or otherwise altered to date.

(c) Minutes of Meetings Keep at the principal office of the Corporatian,such other place as the Boar:
Directors may order, a book of minutes of all magdi of its Directors and shareholders, Executiven@dtee, if any
and other committees, with the time and place édihg, whether regular or special, and if spedia\v authorized, tt
notice thereof given, the names of those presebiractors’ meetings, the number of shares of members pres
represented at shareholders’ meetings, and the@dowys thereof.

(d) Sign or Attest Documents and Affix Sedign or attest such documents as may be reghyrdaw or the
business of the Corporation, and to keep the catposeal and affix it to such instruments as maydessary
proper.

(e) Notices See that all notices are duly given in accordamitie the provisions of these Bylaws or as reqt
by law. In case of the absence or disability of $seretary, or his refusal to or neglect to acticeanay be given ai
served by a Vice-President or by the Board of Daec

() Custodian of Records and Se#&e custodian of the records and of the seal@fQbrporation and see the
is engraved, lithographed, printed, stamped, ingae@sipon, or affixed to all certificated share®pto their issuant
and to any documents, the execution of
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which on behalf of the Corporation under its sealeiquired and duly authorized in accordance vhighgrovisions ¢
these Bylaws.

(g) Share RegisterMonitor the share register kept by the Corporasidransfer agent showing the names o
shareholders and their addresses; the numberotl&dsue, and class of shares represented by edstanding sha
certificate; and the number and date of cancellatib each certificate surrendered for cancellatimg all relevai
information for holders of uncertificated shares.the event the Corporation has no transfer ageatSecretary wi
maintain the above mentioned records at the prahaffice of the Corporation.

(h) Reports and StatementSee that the books, reports, statements, catgfc and all other documents
records required by law are properly kept and filed

(i) Exhibit Records Exhibit at all reasonable times to any Directorapplication, or on written demand sta
the purpose thereof of any person who has beenaeelsbider of record for at least six (6) months edrately
preceding his demand or who is the holder of recbrak least Five Percent (5%) of all of the outdiag shares of tl
Corporation, upon application, the Bylaws, the sheegister, and minutes of proceedings of the &lodders an
Directors of the Corporation.

() Other Duties In general, perform all duties incident to théoaf of Secretary, and such other duties as
time to time may be assigned to him by the BoarDicéctors.

(k) Absence of Secretaryin the case of the absence or disability of teer&ary or his refusal or neglect to
the Assistant Secretary, or if there be none, tleadurer, acting as Assistant Secretary, may peréirof the function
of the Secretary. The Assistant Secretary andsiirea, or any person thereunto authorized by thsiéent or a Vice-
President or by the Board of Directors, may perfthimnfunctions of the Secretary.

4.10  Assistant Secretary At the request of the Secretary or in his absemcedisability, the Assista
Secretary, designated as set forth in precedingidbet.9(k) of these Bylaws, shall perform all thaties of th
Secretary. The Assistant Secretary shall perforam sher duties from time to time assigned to hyntlie Board ¢
Directors or the Secretary.

411 Treasurer The Treasurer shall:

(a) Funds— Custody and DepositHave charge and custody of, and be responsibl@affdunds and securiti
of the Corporation, and deposit all such fundshie name of the Corporation in such banks, trustpzones, or oth
depositories as shall be selected by the Boardretidrs.

(b) Funds— Receipts Receive and give receipt for monies due and gaytalthe Corporation from any sou
whatsoever.
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(c) Funds— Disbursements Disburse or cause to be disbursed the fundseoCtrporation as may be direc
by the Board of Directors, taking proper voucherssiuch disbursements.

(d) Maintain Accounts Keep and maintain adequate and correct accoanthé Corporatiors properties ar
business transactions, including account of itetasdiabilities, receipts, disbursements, gainssés, capital surpl
and shares. Any surplus, including earned surplaisiin surplus, and surplus arising from a reductiostafted capit
shall be classified according to source and shavanseparate account.

(e) Exhibit Records Exhibit at all reasonable times the books of aotcand records to any Director
application, or to any person who has been a shltehof record for at least six (6) months imméeliapreceding h
demand or who is the holder of record of at leage Percent (5%) of all outstanding shares of tleepGration o
written demand stating the purpose thereof, duougjness hours at the office of the Corporationrevtseich books ai
records are kept.

(N Reports to President and Director®ender to the President and Directors, whenewey tequest it, ¢
account of all his transactions as Treasurer artdeofinancial condition of the Corporation.

(g) Financial Report to ShareholdefBrepare, or cause to be prepared, and certiffirthecial statements to
included in the annual report to shareholders tat@msents of the affairs of the Corporation.

(h) Bond. Give to the Corporation a bond, if required bg Board of Directors or by the President, in a
and with one or more sureties, or a surety comgatigfactory to the Board, for the faithful perf@amce of the duties
his office and for the restoration to the Corpamatiin case of his death, resignation, retiremantgemoval from office
of all books, papers, vouchers, money, and othepgity of whatever kind in his possession or urercontro
belonging to the Corporation.

(i) Other Duties. In general, perform all the duties incident te tiffice of Treasurer and such other dutie
from time to time may be assigned to him by therBad Directors.

() Absence of Treasurein case of the absence or disability of the Tweaxsor his refusal or neglect to act,
Assistant Treasurer or the Secretary acting assfssgi Treasurer, may perform all of the functiohthe Treasurer.
the absence or inability to act, or refusal or aegto act, of the Treasurer, the Assistant Treasand the Secretary,
any person thereunto authorized by the Presidesat \dicePresident or by the Board of Directors, may perfaing
functions of the Treasurer.

4.12  Assistant TreasurerThe Assistant Treasurer, if required to do saHgyBoard of Directors, shall gi
bond for the faithful discharge of his duties, utls sum, and with such sureties as the Board adirs shall requir
At the request of the Treasurer, or in his absencdisability, the Assistant Treasurer designatedet forth in th
preceding Section 4.11(j) of
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these Bylaws shall perform all of the duties of Tmeasurer, and when so acting, he shall havéalpbwers of, and
subject to all the restrictions on, the Treasurer shall perform such other duties as from timén® may be assign
to him by the Board of Directors or the Treasurer.

4.13 Salaries The salaries of the Officers shall be fixed frtme to time by the Board of Directors, anc
Officer shall be prevented from receiving suchisaby reason of the fact that he is also a Direofahe Corporation.

ARTICLE V
EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS AND DEPOSIT OF FUNDS

5.1 Authority for Execution of InstrumentsThe Board of Directors, except as otherwise mlediin thes
Bylaws, may authorize any Officer or Officers, agen agents, to enter into any contract or exeauid deliver an
instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Gafion, and such authority may be general or oeqfito specifi
instances; and unless so authorized, no Officezntagr employee other than the President shall laayepower ¢
authority to bind the Corporation by any contracengagement or to pledge its credit or to rendiable pecuniaril
for any purpose or in any amount.

5.2 Execution of Instruments Unless otherwise specifically determined by theai8l of Directors ¢
otherwise required by law, formal contracts of erporation, promissory notes, mortgages, and ath@fence ¢
indebtedness of the Corporation, and other corparstruments or documents, and certificated shafregock owne
by the Corporation, shall be executed, signedndoesed by the President or a Vieessident and by the Secretar
the Treasurer, or any Assistant Secretary or Asgdidireasurer, and may have the corporate seaédfthereto.

5.3 Bank Accounts and DepositAll funds of the Corporation shall be depositeahi time to time to tr
credit of the Corporation with such banks, trushpanies, or other depositories as the Board ofciire may select
as may be selected by any Officer or Officers, ageagents of the Corporation to whom such poway tre delegate
from time to time by the Board of Directors.

54 Endorsements Without Countersignatutendorsements for deposit to the credit of thepGration ir
any of its duly authorized depositories may be madieout countersignature by the President or aig¥President, ¢
the Treasurer or any Assistant Treasurer, or byahgr Officer or agent of the Corporation to whtme Board ¢
Directors, by resolution, shall have delegatedpiwer, or by hand stamped impression in the nantieeo€orporation.

5.5 Signing of Checks, Drafts, EtAll checks, drafts, or other orders for paymentoney, notes, or oth
evidences of indebtedness, issued in the name payable to the Corporation shall be signed or e@tbby suc
person or persons and in such manner as shalltbexdeed from time to time by the Chief Executivéfi€er and th
Treasurer.
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ARTICLE VI
ISSUANCE AND TRANSFER OF CERTIFICATED AND UNCERTIEATED SHARES

6.1 Classes and Series of Shard@fie Corporation may issue shares with such préas, rights, privilege
and restrictions as stated in the Articles of Ipooation, as amended.

6.2 Form of Shares. The shares of the Corporation may be eitherfaated shares or uncertificated sh:
or a combination thereof. A resolution approvedabyajority of the Board of Directors may provitkatt some or all «
any or all classes and series of the shares dZdnporation will be uncertificated shares. If herporation changes
uncertificated shares after certificates have bssumed, a certificated ownership interest sub@t¢hé change becon
an uncertificated ownership interest only afterdhsdificate is surrendered to the Corporation.

6.3 Certificates for Fully Paid Shared\either certificated nor uncertificated shares/rba issued by tt
Corporation until the full amount of the considevathas been paid. When such consideration has jbaiento th
Corporation, the shares shall be deemed to have ibsged and the certificate, or similar documémnain the case
uncertificated shares, representing such shaedisk&hissued to the shareholder.

6.4 Fractional Shares The Corporation may, but shall not be obligatedidsue a certificate, or simi
documentation in the case of uncertificated shdoes fractional share, and the Board of Directaesy, in lieu therec
arrange for the disposition thereof by those ettithereto, by paying the fair value in cash aniigs scrip in registere
or bearer form which shall entitle the holder taceige a certificate, or similar documentation ire tbase
uncertificated shares, for a full share only uple surrender of such scrip aggregating a full shareertificate, o
similar documentation in the case of uncertificatdtares, for a fractional share shall, but scriglishot, unles
otherwise provided herein, entitle the holder tereise voting rights, to receive dividends, or &otigipate in any of tt
assets of the Corporation in the event of liquaatiSuch scrip, if issued, shall become void if agthanged f
certificates, or similar documentation in the cagencertificated shares, representing full shavesin one year aft:
its issue, or such scrip may be subject to the itiondthat the shares for which it is exchangeab&y be sold by tt
Corporation and the proceeds thereof distributetthéoholders of such scrip, and the same may beduo any othe
conditions which the Board of Directors may deemisable.

6.5 Consideration for SharesThe consideration paid for the issuance of shar@g consist of money pa
labor done, property actually received, promisswies or the promise of future services.

6.6 Contents of Share CertificatesCertificates for shares, or similar documentationthe case «
uncertificated shares, shall be of such form aylé sprinted or otherwise, as the
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Board of Directors may designate, and each ceatdicor similar documentation in the case of uifteated shares
shall state all of the following facts:

(a) That the Corporation is organized under theslafsthe State of Texas;
(b) The name of the person to whom issued;
(c) The number and class of shares and the demgratthe series, if any, which such certificagépnesents; ar

(d) The par value of each share represented by sadificate or similar documentation in the cad
uncertificated shares, or a statement that theestaae without par value.

6.7 Restriction on TransferAny restrictions imposed by the Corporation oa $lale or other disposition
its shares and on the transfer thereof must beedogt length or in summary form on the face of eeehificate
representing shares to which the restriction appdiesimilar documentation in the case of uncedted shares. T
certificate may, however, state on the face or bhaksuch a restriction exists pursuant to a fipdailocument and tr
the Corporation will furnish a copy of the documémthe holder of the certificate without charg@npvritten reque
to the Corporation at its principal place of busse

6.8 Preemptive RightsIn the case of certificated shares, any preemptghts of a shareholder to acq
unissued or treasury shares of the Corporationtwduie limited or denied by the Articles of Incorgibon, as amende
must be set forth at length on the face or badkefcertificate representing shares subject thehetlieu of providing
such a statement in full on the certificate, aestent on the face or back of the certificate mayvige that th
Corporation will furnish such information to anyasbholder without charge upon written request eoQlorporation
its principal place of business and that a copgugh information is on file in the office of thec®etary of State.

6.9 Signing Certificates— Facsimile SignaturesAll certificated shares shall be signed by thesRfent or
Vice-President and the Secretary or an Assistacite®ey. The signatures of the President or \Heesident, Secrete
or Assistant Secretary may be facsimiles if théiftaate is countersigned by a transfer agent grstered by a registr
either of whichis not the Corporation itself or an employee of @wporation. If the Officer who has signed or w&
facsimile signature has been placed on the catditas ceased to be such Officer before theicatéfis issued, tl
certificate may be issued by the Corporation whth $ame effect as if he were such Officer at the dfits issuance.

6.10 Transfer of Lost or Destroyed Sharek the case of certificated shares, where a stent#icate ha
been lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully taked the owner fails to notify the Corporationttwdt fact within .
reasonable time after he has notice of it, and Gbeporation registers a transfer of the share sgmted by tF
certificate before receiving such a notificatidme owner is precluded from asserting against th@@ation any clair
for registering the transfer or any claim to a reastificate.
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6.11 Replacement of Lost or Destroyed Certificatds the case of certificated shares, where thddradf ¢
share certificate claims that the certificate hasrblost, destroyed, or wrongfully taken, the Compon shall issue
new certificate in place of the original certifieaf the owner so requests (before the Corporat@as notice that tl
share has been acquired by a bona fide purchasdrfilas with the Corporation a sufficient indenynibond an
satisfies any other reasonable requirements impogéde Board of Directors.

6.12 Transfer After Replacementf, after the issue of a new security as a repfant for a lost, destroyed.
wrongfully taken certificated security, a bona figerchaser of the original certificate presentfort registration ¢
transfer, the Corporation must register the transfdess registration would result in overissueadidition to any righ
on the indemnity bond, the Corporation may recdter new security from the person to whom it wasi@sisor an
person taken under him except a bona fide purchaser

6.13 Transfers of Share<Certificated shares of the Corporation will obly transferred on its books upon
surrender to the Corporation of the share certdgaluly endorsed or accompanied by proper evidehseccessio
assignment, or authority to transfer. The surresieertificates shall be canceled, new certifeasued to the pers
entitled to them, and the transaction recordedhenliooks of the Corporation. Uncertificated shasdk only be
transferred on the books of the Corporation up@wihtten instruction from the registered or beciafiowner of suc
uncertificated shares or from a duly authorizedratty, or from an individual presenting proper evice of successic
assignment, or authority to transfer the stock.

6.14 Transfer Agents and Registrardhe Board of Directors may appoint one or moesgfer agents
transfer clerks, and one or more registrars whitall referably be an incorporated bank or trushgany, eithe
domestic or foreign, who shall be appointed at stictes and places as the requirements of the Catipar ma
necessitate and the Board of Directors may desgnat

6.15 Deemed Ownership A person in whose name shares of stock standh@rmadoks of the Corporati
shall be deemed the owner thereof as regards trpEoion.

6.16 Reasonable Doubts as to Right to TransféWhen a transfer of shares is requested and ik
reasonable doubt as to the right of the personirsgéike transfer, the Corporation or its transigerd, before recordii
the transfer of the shares on its books or issaing certificate therefor, or similar documentationthe case ¢
uncertificated shares, may require from the pesmeking the transfer reasonable proof of his righte transfer.
there remains a reasonable doubt for the righhéottansfer, the Corporation may refuse a transfégss the pers:
gives adequate security or a bond or indemnity @eecby a corporate surety or by two individualesigs satisfacto
to the Corporation as to form, amount, and reasbtyabf sureties. The bond shall be conditionedpimtect th
Corporation, its Officers, transfer agents, andstegys, or any of them, against any loss, damageenses, or otr
liability to the owner of the issuance of new slsare
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ARTICLE VII
CORPORATE RECORDS, REPORTS, AND SEAL

7.1 Minutes of Corporate MeetingsThe Corporation shall keep at the registereaceffor such other pla
as the Board of Directors may order, a book of t@awf all meetings of its Directors and of its reftelders ¢
members with the time and place of holding, whetlegular or special, and, if special, how authatjzthe notic
thereof given the names of those present at Dir€ateeetings, the number of shares or members presegpr@sente
at shareholders’ or members’ meetings, and thesprtings thereof.

7.2 Books of Account. The Corporation shall keep and maintain adeqgaate correct accounts of
properties and business transactions, includinglads of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disborents, gains, loss
capital, surplus, and shares. Any surplus, inclgdiarned surplus, paid-surplus, and surplus arising from a reduc
of stated capital, shall be classified accordingdorce and shown in a separate account.

7.3 Share RegisterThe Corporation shall keep at the registerecceffor at the office of the transfer ag
a share register, showing the names of the shatetsohnd their addresses, and the number and <laisskares held
each and the number and date of certificates isémedhares, and the number and date or cancellatioeven
certificate surrendered for cancellation, and alevant information for holders of uncertificateases. The abo
specified information may be kept by the Corpomation information storage devices related to eledtralat:
processing equipment provided that such equipnsecapable of reproducing the information in cleelyible form fo
the purposes of inspection as provided in Secfiohsnd 7.5 of these Bylaws.

7.4 Inspection of Records by Shareholdefny person who shall have been a shareholdegaufrd for ¢
least six (6) months immediately preceding his damar who is the holder of record of at least FRexcent (5%) «
all of the outstanding shares of the Corporationywatten demand stating the purpose thereof, Inasight to examin
in person, or by agent, accountant, or attornegngtreasonable time or times, for any proper pagpds books at
records of account, minutes, and record of shadens| and is entitled to make extracts therefrofter(gayment ¢
costs).

7.5 Inspection of Records by Director&very Director shall have the absolute rightrat eeasonable tin
to inspect all books, records, documents of evang,kand the physical properties of the Corporateomd also of i
subsidiary corporations, domestic or foreign. Sugpection by a Director may be made in personymagent c
attorney, and the right of inspection includesrighat to make extracts.

7.6 Annual Report to Shareholderd’he Board of Directors shall cause an annualrtepobe sent to tf
shareholders not later than one hundred twenty)(d2¢s after the close of the fiscal or calendarye
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7.7 Contents of Annual ReportsThe annual report shall include the followingaintial statements:
(a) Balance sheets for the previous two fiscal gear

(b) Statements of Operations for the previous thiseal years;

(c) Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ EquitytHe previous three fiscal years; and

(d) Statements of Cash Flows for the previous thiseal years.

7.8 Preparation of Financial Statemenighe financial statements shall be prepared fimgrbboks and sh.
be in accordance with accounting principles geheeaicepted in the United States of America.

7.9 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be deteed by the Board of Directors.

7.10 Corporate Seal The Board of Directors may adopt, use, and tltmealter the corporate seal, and
seal may be used by causing it or a facsimile wf e impressed, affixed, or reproduced or othegwi

ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

8.1 Adoption, Amendment, Repeal of Bylaws by DirectorBhese Bylaws may be altered, amende
repealed, and new Bylaws may be adopted by thereffive vote of a majority of either the Board afdators or th
shareholders, present at any meeting at which auquof each respective body is present, provided tiotice of th
proposed alteration, amendment, repeal, or adophail be contained in the notice of the meetirtys power to alte
amend, or repeal the Bylaws, and to adopt new Bgjlaway be modified or divested by action of shalddre
representing a majority of the voting common stotkhe Corporation taken at any regular or spetiaéting of th
shareholders. Notwithstanding any other provisiontained in these Bylaws to the contrary, Sectidn 2.2, 2.3, 2..
2.7, 2.8 and 2.19 of Article II, Section 3.3 an8 8f Article Ill, and this Article VIII of these Bgws may be amends
supplemented, or repealed only by the affirmatioéevof 66 2/3% or more of all of the shares of @mporatiol
entitled to vote generally in the election of Di@s, voting together as a single class.

ARTICLE IX

MISCELLANEOUS

9.1 Waivers of Notice Whenever any notice is required to be given fosrareholder or Director under
provisions of the law or the Articles of Incorpocat, as
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amended, or these Bylaws, a waiver thereof in mgjtor waiver by electronic transmission, signed byhsperson ¢
persons entitled to said notice, whether beforafter the time stated therein, shall be deemedvatgrit to the giving «
such notice. Attendance of a Director or a shadgrolwhether in person or by proxy, at any meesingll constitute
waiver of notice of such meeting, except where dbicctor or shareholder attends a meeting foettmress purpose
objecting to the transaction of any business orgtband that the meeting is not lawfully calledconvened.

9.2 Rules of Order. The rules contained in the current edition of &tk Rules of Order Newly Revis
shall govern the Corporation in all cases to whiay are applicable and in which they are not istzient with thes
Bylaws and any special rules of order the Corponathay adopt.

9.3 Invalid Provisions. If any part of these Bylaws is held invalid ooperative for any reason,
remaining parts, as far as possible and reasonaliliée valid and operative.

9.4 Relation to Articles of Incorporation, as Amendedhese Bylaws are subject to and governed k
Articles of Incorporation, as amended.

9.5 Section Headings The headings contained in these Bylaws aredfi@rence purposes only and will
affect in any way the meaning or interpretatiothafse Bylaws.

9.6 Gender and Number When the context requires, the gender of alldsarsed in these Bylaws incluc
the masculine, feminine, and neuter, and the nummibalt words includes the singular and the plural.

The above and foregoing Bylaws and all amendmeandssapplements to them are superseded by thesad

Amended and Restated Bylaws which accurately iraratp all amendments set forth as of theth25ay of March
2008.

Retractable Technologies, Ir
By:/s/ Thomas J. Sha

Thomas J. Sha
Presiden

ATTEST:

/s/ Michele M. Larios
Michele M. Larios
Secretary
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Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement Form S-8 (No. 3830041) of Retractable Technologies, Inc. of

report dated March 31, 2008 relating to our auélithe financial statements and financial statensmtitedule, which appear in this Anr
Report on Form 10-K of Retractable Technologies, far the year ended December 31, 2007.

/s/ CF & Co., L.L.P
CF & Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texa:
March 31, 200¢




Exhibit 31.:
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
[, Thomas J. Shaw, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amndtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, tegqas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(nd internal control over financial reportireg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervi:
to ensure that material information relating to tegistrant, including its consolidated subsidisiris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financgorting, or caused such internal control oveaficial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presaémtdds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfburth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabm® that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosé@sed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal contnér financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisability to record, process, summarize, and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaiveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2008

/s/ Thomas J. Sha

THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
[, Douglas W. Cowan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amndtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, tegqas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(nd internal control over financial reportireg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervi:
to ensure that material information relating to tegistrant, including its consolidated subsidisiris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financgorting, or caused such internal control oveaficial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presaémtdds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfburth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabm® that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosé@sed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal contnér financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisability to record, process, summarize, and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaiveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2008

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa
DOUGLAS W. COWAN
VICE PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Solely in connection with the filing of the Annu&kport of Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Canyd) on Form 1K for the period ende
December 31, 2007, as filed with the United St&esurities and Exchange Commission on the dateohéie “Report”),the undersigne
Thomas J. Shaw, Chief Executive Officer, and Dosigld. Cowan, Chief Financial Officer, do hereby ifgrtpursuant to 18 U.S.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@G&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faidyesents, in all material respects, the financtaidition and results of operations of
Company.

Date: March 31, 2008

/s/ Thomas J. Sha

THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa
DOUGLAS W. COWAN
VICE PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




